
 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
SHAWN    DON   SUZANNE   GREGORY    JIM    REBECCA   CHRIS 
BARIGAR   HALL   HAWKINS  LANTING    MUNN, JR.  MILLS SOJKA  TALKINGTON 
         Vice Mayor      Mayor 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5:00 P.M. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG  
CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM 
INTRODUCTION OF STAFF 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA:   
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 
  

AGENDA ITEMS Purpose By: 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. Consideration of a request to approve the accounts payable for March 12 – 18, 2013. 
2. Consideration of a request to approve the February 25, 2013, City Council Amended Minutes. 
3. Consideration of a request to approve:  
 Curb-Gutter and Sidewalk Improvement Deferral Agreements for: 
 J. Adair & Karen Johnson for property located at 4th Avenue South 
 Kenma Arrington for property located at 3023 East 3400 North 
 Road Improvements Deferral Agreement for: 
 Gary and Jan Thietten Family Trust for property along Eastland Drive. 

Improvement Agreement for Developments for: 
Canyon Park, L.L.C. for the Canyon Park Amended Subdivision 
Thietten Family Trust for the Eastland Heights Amended Subdivision 
WS&V, LLC for Lot 1, Block 1, WS& V First Amended  

4. Consideration of a request to approve blocking off parking spaces in the 100 Block of 2nd 
Avenue North for the Twin Falls High School Junior/Senior Prom on Saturday, April 5, 2013, 
from 7:00 p.m. until 11:00 p.m. 

Action Staff Report 
Sharon Bryan 
Leila A. Sanchez 
Troy Vitek  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ryan Howe 
 
 

II. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION:  
1. Presentation of Twin Falls Fire Department Level III Firefighter Certification to Brian Rice. 
2. Presentation of a service plaque to Ray Wight in recognition of his service on the Golf Advisory 

Commission. 
3. Presentation of service plaques to Wayne Bohrn and Lane Jacobson in recognition  of their 

service on the Twin Falls Planning & Zoning Commission. 
4. Consideration of a request to approve Contract Amendment No. 12 for CH2M HILL for the 

operation and maintenance of the Waste Treatment Plant, industrial pre-treatment program 
and associated sewer lift stations. 

5. Presentation of the City of Twin Falls’ 2012 audited financial statements by Scott Hunsaker of 
Mahlke Hunsaker & Company, PLLC. 

6. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council. 

 
Presentation 
Presentation 
 
Presentation 
 
Action 
 
 
Presentation 
 

 
Ron Clark 
Dennis Bowyer 
 
Mitch Humble 
 
Jon Caton/ 
Shawn Moffitt  
 
Lorie Race/ 
Scott Hunsaker 

III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

  

IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00 P.M. – None. 
  

 

 
 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT:    
 

 
 

*Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in the above noticed meeting 
should contact Leila Sanchez at (208) 735-7287 at least two working days before the meeting. 

AGENDA 
Meeting of the Twin Falls City Council 

Monday, March 18, 2013 
City Council Chambers 

305 3rd Avenue East -Twin Falls, Idaho 



Agenda 
March 18, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

Twin Falls City Council-Public Hearing Procedures for Zoning Requests 
 

1. Prior to opening the first Public Hearing of the session, the Mayor shall review the public hearing procedures. 
 

2. Individuals wishing to testify or speak before the City Council shall wait to be recognized by the Mayor, approach the 
microphone/podium, state their name and address, then proceed with their comments.  Following their statements, 
they shall write their name and address on the record sheet(s) provided by the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall make 
an audio recording of the Public Hearing. 

 
 

3. The Applicant, or the spokesperson for the Applicant, will make a presentation on the application/request (request).  
No changes to the request may be made by the applicant after the publication of the Notice of Public Hearing.  The 
presentation should include the following: 

• A complete explanation and description of the request. 
• Why the request is being made. 
• Location of the Property. 
• Impacts on the surrounding properties and efforts to mitigate those impacts. 

Applicant is limited to 15 minutes, unless a written request for additional time is received, at least 72 hours prior to 
the hearing, and granted by the Mayor. 
 

4. A City Staff Report shall summarize the application and history of the request. 
• The City Council may ask questions of staff or the applicant pertaining to the request. 

 
5. The general public will then be given the opportunity to provide their testimony regarding the request.  The Mayor 

may limit public testimony to no less than two minutes per person. 
• Five or more individuals, having received personal public notice of the application under consideration, may 

select by written petition, a spokesperson.  The written petition must be received at least 72 hours prior to 
the hearing and must be granted by the mayor.  The spokesperson shall be limited to 15 minutes.   

• Written comments, including e-mail, shall be either read into the record or displayed to the public on the 
overhead projector. 

• Following the Public Testimony, the applicant is permitted five (5) minutes to respond to Public Testimony. 
 

6. Following the Public Testimony and Applicant’s response, the hearing shall continue.  The City Council, as 
recognized by the Mayor, shall be allowed to question the Applicant, Staff or anyone who has testified.  The Mayor 
may again establish time limits. 
 

7. The Mayor shall close the Public Hearing.  The City Council shall deliberate on the request.  Deliberations and 
decisions shall be based upon the information and testimony provided during the Public Hearing.  Once the Public 
Hearing is closed, additional testimony from the staff, applicant or public is not allowed.  Legal or procedural 
questions may be directed to the City Attorney. 

 
 

* Any person not conforming to the above rules may be prohibited from speaking.  Persons refusing to comply with such 
prohibitions may be asked to leave the hearing and, thereafter removed from the room by order of the Mayor. 



 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
SHAWN    DON   SUZANNE   GREGORY    JIM    REBECCA   CHRIS 
BARIGAR   HALL   HAWKINS  LANTING    MUNN, JR.  MILLS SOJKA  TALKINGTON 
         Vice Mayor      Mayor 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5:00 P.M. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG  
CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM 
INTRODUCTION OF STAFF 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA:   
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 

AGENDA ITEMS Purpose By: 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. Consideration of a request to approve the accounts payable for February 20 – 25, 2013, 
total:  $486,223.44. 

2. Consideration of a request to approve a Liquor License for Europe Bar and Deli LLC, 679 
Filer Avenue. 

Action 
 

Staff Report 
Sharon Bryan 
 
Sharon Bryan 

II. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 
1. Presentation of Peace Officer Standards and Training Council Certificates to the following 

individuals before the Twin Falls City Council:  Officer Justin Cyr, Officer Jaime Harper, 
Officer Aaron Nay, Officer Harbans Thiara, Detective Gregg Lockwood, and Detective Ben 
Mittlestadt. 

2. Consideration of a request to approve an Air Service Agreement with SkyWest Airlines.  
3. Consideration of a request to select Andritz Separation as the equipment supplier for the 

Twin Falls Wastewater Treatment Plant Dewatering Equipment project. 
4. Consideration of a request to amend City Code 6-5-2 by the addition of a new subsection (C) 

providing for a civil penalty for damaged and junked equipment and vehicle violations. 
5. Discussion regarding the purchase of a Ford SUV patrol vehicle to be used by a canine team 

and two Ford sedans for use by patrol officers. 
6. Consideration of funding the construction of Baxter’s Park and the Community Garden. 
7. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council. 

 

 
Presentation 
 
 
 
Action 
Action 
 
Action 
 
Discussion 
 
Action 
 

 
Brian Pike 
Anthony Barnhart 
Bryan Krear 

Bill Carberry 
Lee Glaesemann 
 
Mitch Humble 
 
Anthony Barnhart 
 
Dennis Bowyer 
 

III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

  

IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00 P.M.  
1. Consideration of a request to adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit an 

application to the Idaho Department of Commerce to partially finance improvements to the 
Twin Falls Senior Center.   

 
Public Hearing 

 
Jeannette Roe,  
Twin Falls Senior Center 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT: 
Executive Session 67-2345(1)(f) to communicate with legal counsel for the public agency to 
discuss the legal ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation, or controversies not yet 
being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated.  The mere presence of legal counsel at an 
executive session does not satisfy this requirement. 

 

  
 

*Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in the above noticed meeting 
should contact Leila Sanchez at (208) 735-7287 at least two working days before the meeting. 
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5:00 P.M. 
 

Present: Shawn Barigar, Don Hall, Suzanne Hawkins, Greg Lanting, Jim Munn, Rebecca Mills Sojka, Chris Talkington 
Absent:  None 
Staff Present:  City Manager Travis Rothweiler, City Attorney Fritz Wonderlich, Community Development Director Mitch Humble,  
  Assistant to the City Manager Mike Williams, Public Information Officer Josh Palmer, Police Chief Brian Pike,  
  Parks & Recreation Director Dennis Bowyer, Captain Anthony Barnhart, Captain Bryan Krear,  
  Airport Manager Bill Carberry, Zoning & Development Manager Rene’e  V. Carraway, Project Engineer Lee Glaesemann, 
  Code Compliance Officer Sean Standley,  IS Project Coordinator Tami Lauda, Deputy City Clerk Sharon Bryan, 
  Deputy City Clerk/Recording Secretary Leila A. Sanchez 
 
Mayor Lanting called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.  He then invited all present, who wished to, to recite the pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
with him.  Mayor Lanting introduced staff. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA:   
 
City Manager Rothweiler requested the removal of Executive Session 67-2345(1)(f). 
 
MOTION: 
Councilperson Munn made the motion to approve the amendment to the agenda as presented.  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Hall 
and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 

AGENDA ITEMS 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. Consideration of a request to approve the accounts payable for February 20 – 25, 2013, total:  $486,223.44. 
2. Consideration of a request to approve a Liquor License for Europe Bar and Deli LLC, 679 Filer Avenue. 

 
 MOTION: 
 Councilperson Hawkins made the motion to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  The motion was seconded by 
 Councilperson Barigar and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 
II. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

1. Presentation of Peace Officer Standards and Training Council Certificates to the following individuals before the Twin Falls City 
Council:  Officer Justin Cyr, Officer Jaime Harper, Officer Aaron Nay, Officer Harbans Thiara, Detective Gregg Lockwood, and 
Detective Ben Mittlestadt. 

 
 Captain Barnhart gave the presentation. 
 
 Mayor Lanting, Vice Mayor Hall, and Captain Bryan Krear presented certificates to Officer Justin Cyr, Officer Jaime Harper, 
 Officer Aaron Nay, Officer Harbans Thiara, Detective Gregg Lockwood, and Detective Ben Mittlestadt. 
 

2. Consideration of a request to approve an Air Service Agreement with SkyWest Airlines.  
 
 Airport Manager Carberry explained the request.   
 
 Staff recommends the City Council approve the air service agreement with SkyWest Airlines and authorize the Mayor to sign the 
 agreement. 
 
 Council discussion followed. 
 Councilperson Talkington asked for an estimation of the subsidy in a flight basis that may be paid to SkyWest for the quarter as 
 specified in the agreement.   
 
 Airport Manager Carberry stated that he is unable to anticipate an estimate of the subsidy.  The agreement calls for quarterly reporting 
 by the airline.  
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 Councilperson Barigar explained that in addition to the $10,000 from the Airport’s marketing budget, the Chamber of Commerce  is 
 committed for $55,000, for a marketing program to promote the new service, and the goal is to encourage everyone to use SkyWest’s 
 services. 
 
 MOTION: 
 Vice Mayor Hall made a motion to approve the air service agreement with SkyWest Airlines and authorize the Mayor to sign the 
 agreement, as presented.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Talkington and roll call vote showed all members present 
 voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 

3. Consideration of a request to select Andritz Separation as the equipment supplier for the Twin Falls Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Dewatering Equipment project. 

 
 Project Engineer Lee Glaesemann explained the request. 
 
 Staff recommends that Andritz Separation be selected and notified as the equipment supplier for the Twin Falls Wastewater 
 Treatment Plant Dewatering Equipment Project.   
 
 Council discussion followed. 
 -Dewatering system’s compatibility with future improvements made to the wastewater treatment plant if a bond is passed. 
 -Conditions of the contract 
  
 Project Engineer Glaesemann stated for clarification that the City is not entering into a contract to buy equipment, but Andritiz 
 Separation will provide the guarantee price for the dewatering system design. The project is anticipated to begin bidding June 2013 
 and to award the contract in July/August. 

 
 MOTION: 

Councilperson Mills Sojka made the motion to select Andritz Separation as the equipment supplier for the Twin Falls Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Dewatering Equipment project in the amount of $489,000, as presented.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilperson  Barigar and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 

 
 

4. Consideration of a request to amend City Code 6-5-2 by the addition of a new subsection (C) providing for a civil penalty for damaged 
and junked equipment and vehicle violations. 

 
 Community Development Director Humble explained the request. 
 
 Approval of this request will allow Code Enforcement personnel to deal with junked vehicle and equipment violations with the same, 
 more effective, process as is used for high weeds and grass violations.  The end result will be greater compliance to the Code in a 
 timelier manner. 
 
 City Staff recommends that the Council adopt the attached ordinance as presented. 
 
 Council discussion followed. 
 -Removal of weed and junk process. 
  
 City Attorney Wonderlich explained that under Idaho statute, the City is allowed to file a tax lien for the cost of removal of weeds only.  
 The City is not allowed to remove junk off property. A criminal complaint will be filed if a resident refuses to comply.    
 
 Council discussion followed. 
 -Complaint process 
 -Effectiveness of monetary penalty 
 -Dismantled vehicles in a screened fenced yard 
  
 Code Enforcement Officer Sean Standley explained that the resident is given approximately two to three weeks to comply with City 
 code before a fine is issued.   He also explained that non-working vehicles are to be in an enclosed building and not a screened 
 fenced yard.   
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Councilperson Mills Sojka stated that the Youth Council has a volunteer program that assists in cleanup.  In addition, she stated the 
following concerns:  The elderly, one man’s junk is another man’s treasure, the difficulty when the City is stating what you can and 
cannot store on personal property, the fines of $100, $200, and $300 are not an insignificant amount for someone, and are the fines 
proportionate to the code violation if you have non-operating equipment or  weeds.  She wants to make sure the City is being fair and 
equitable. 
 
Vice Mayor Don Hall stated that it appears that residents are now complying with weed violations since the civil penalty has been in 
place. 

 
 Community Development Director Humble stated that PSI will assist in picking up junk.  
  
 MOTION: 
 Councilperson Talkington made the motion to suspend the rules and place Ordinance 3047, entitled:   
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO, AMENDING TWIN FALLS CITY CODE §6-5-2 

BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SUBSECTION (C) PROVIDING FOR A CIVIL PENALTY FOR DAMAGED AND JUNKED 
EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE VIOLATIONS. 

 
 on third and final reading by title only. 
 
 The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Hall and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 
 to 0. 
 
 Deputy City Clerk Sanchez read the ordinance title. 
 
 MOTION: 

Vice Mayor Hall made the motion to adopt Ordinance 3047, as presented.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Barigar and 
roll call vote showed Councilpersons Barigar, Hall, Hawkins, Lanting, Munn, and Talkington voted in favor of the motion.  
Councilperson Mills Sojka voted against the motion.  Approved 6 to 1. 

 
5. Discussion regarding the purchase of a Ford SUV patrol vehicle to be used by a canine team and two Ford sedans for use by patrol 

officers. 
 
 Captain Barnhart discussed the request. 
  
 Purchasing the Ford SUV will be an advantage for the canine officer, giving him/her more workspace and providing a better 

environment for the team.  It is also anticipated that moving to Ford vehicles will result in lower maintenance costs than those 
experienced with Dodge Chargers. 

 
 Council discussion followed. 
 -Vehicle costs 
 -Fuel economy 
 -Dodge maintenance costs 
 -Extra battery not needed - additional savings of $500  
 -Disposal of Dodge Chargers 
  
 Captain Barnhart stated that the Ford vehicles would be purchased off the State bid and would be purchased locally.  He believes the 

Ford vehicles are $2,000 more per vehicle.    The utility vehicle is $27,000 and $25,000 for the sedan vehicle.   
 
 City Manager Rothweiler explained that Norm Hatke, Shop Maintenance Supervisor, has been working with Police Department staff.    
 The City  has been spending approximately $2,000 per vehicle per year for the maintenance of the Dodge vehicles.  The Ford vehicle 
 is designed and built only for police purposes.  
 
 Norm Hatke, Shop Maintenance Supervisor, explained that the Dodge Chargers can be sent to Boise for the auction process, rather 
 than being sent to a local auction.  
 
 City Manager Rothweiler stated that he recommends allowing the Police Department to continue to work with Norm Hatke to find the 
 best alternative vehicles that will match the long term needs for the department.  The department would like to purchase three Ford 
 Crossovers. 
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 Council gave an overall consensus of approving the purchase of three Ford vehicles. 
 

6. Consideration of funding the construction of Baxter’s Park and the Community Garden. 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Bowyer explained the cost estimates for the dog park and community garden, with the idea that the 
dog park will use all the property at Blake St. N. and Shoup Ave. W. and have the community garden at the recently donated property 
the City acquired along the north side of Filer Avenue West, in between Wendell St. and Grandview Dr. N.  If the dog park uses all the 
property at Blake and Shoup, then the site would be divided up into three areas so one area would rest every third year to prevent 
overuse.   
 

  Staff is seeking direction from the City Council if the City will have funding available to construct the dog park and the community  
  garden this budget year. 
 
  Council discussion followed. 
  -Greenhouse 
  -Two year deferral agreement for curb, gutter, sidewalk  
  -Bathrooms 
   
  Parks & Recreation Director Bowyer stated that the greenhouse located at the Blake and Shoup location is not fully functional.   
  The Canyon View Hospital provided the water and power to greenhouse.  The greenhouse could be moved to another site.   
 
  City Manager Rothweiler explained that he requested that staff present detailed costs of a dog park and community garden to the 
  Council.  This fiscal year the bulk of capital improvement money has been allocated to the Auger Falls Project.  The Parks &  
  Recreation Department is budgeted $330,000, towards annual park capital improvements. 
 
  Vice Mayor Hall stated that Mike McClimans brought it to his attention that the City of Boise did a pilot program on unfenced dog  
  parks.   
 
  Parks & Recreation Director Bowyer explained the details of the City of Boise 2011 Pilot Program that was tested at 6 to 8 sites,  
  where dogs were allowed off leash at certain time periods.  The results appeared to be successful.    He explained that he has  
  discussed a test pilot program in the City of Twin Falls with city staff, the Parks & Recreation Commission, and the Magic Valley  
  Canine Social Club.   
 
  Mayor Lanting asked for clarification of the previous cost estimate of a dog park as discussed with Parks & Recreation Director  
  Bowyer. 
 
  Parks & Recreation Director Bowyer explained that there is increased cost for the irrigation system and fencing.  The cost for the bare 
  minimum for a dog park is approximately $52,800, of which $17,000 has been raised by the Magic Valley Canine Social Club.   Also, 
  the Magic Valley Canine Social Club has applied for a Seagraves Foundation grant for $45,000. 
 
  City Manager Rothweiler stated that he would recommend that the Council not defer the paving of the parking lot.  This would  
  add in $4,000 to the dog park. 
  
  Parks & Recreation Director Bowyer explained the bare cost of a community garden would be approximately $24,800.   
 
  Councilperson Munn stated his concern of discussing a capital improvement project outside the normal budgeting process.   
 
  Councilperson Mills Sojka stated that discussion has been made on the community garden and dog park for the past several years 
  and both were requested by the citizens of Twin Falls.  The last proposal on the community garden was a single location with access 
  to the greenhouse.   
   
  Mayor Lanting explained that having the community garden at Filer Ave. W. would be a more suitable location.  
  
  Larry  Davidson stated that either location for the community garden will work.  His concern is the open canals on both properties.  He 
  stated he spoke with the University of Idaho’s irrigation specialist, and on third of an acre, watering would be very minimal. 
    
  Council discussion followed. 
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  -Sufficient water shares and availability of water at Blake and Shoup 
  -Fundraisers  
   
  Councilperson Barigar stated his concern of projects that have not been completed and the need for shelters, restrooms, and  
  playground equipment in neighborhood parks.  He suggested fundraising to both groups.   
 
  Councilperson Talkington proposed directing staff to come up with a plan to utilize existing parks, geographically located,  for a one 
  year trial basis for specified times, and the responsibility of dog owners to clean up waste. 
 
  Parks & Recreation Director Bowyer stated that he will present a proposal to the Parks & Recreation Commission and staff to discuss 
  the pros and cons, and set up neighborhood meetings and explain what is being done and discuss their concerns.   
 

7. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council.  None. 
 
III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS:  None. 
 
 
 
IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00 P.M.  

1. Consideration of a request to adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit an application to the Idaho Department of 
Commerce to partially finance improvements to the Twin Falls Senior Center.   

 
 Jeannette Roe, Twin Falls Senior Center, explained the request.   
 

This is an application to help make necessary improvements to the Twin Falls Senior Center to better provide services to the users of 
the facility.  No funds from the City are being requested. The Idaho Department of Commerce – Community Development Block Grant 
(ICDBG) program is designed to assist Senior Centers to modify or build infrastructure that will assist the community’s low- and 
moderate-income residents.  The proposed project will meet the guidelines and requirements of the ICDBG program. In order for the 
Senior Center to submit an application to the Idaho Department of Commerce, the Council must hold a public hearing on the 
application; and then determine if the Council will authorize the Mayor to sign and submit the application. 
 
City Manager Rothweiler explained that the City’s responsibilities are to hold a public hearing and to ensure that the City Council gives 
its authorization to approve improvements to the Senior Center, which is city-owned property.   
 
The public hearing was opened for public input and was closed with no input. 
 
MOTION: 

 Councilperson Barigar made a motion to adopt Resolution 1899 as presented.  The motion was seconded by  
 Councilperson Talkington and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT: 

Executive Session 67-2345(1)(f) to communicate with legal counsel for the public agency to discuss the legal ramifications of and legal 
options for pending litigation, or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated.  The mere presence of legal 
counsel at an executive session does not satisfy this requirement.  (Approved to remove from the agenda.) 

 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:17 P.M. 
 
 Leila A. Sanchez 
 Deputy City Clerk/Recording Secretary 
 
 

 



















































































































 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request:   

Presentation of Twin Falls Fire Department Level III Firefighter Certification to Brian Rice. 
  

 
Time Estimate: 

Approximately 5 Minutes 
 
Background:   

Chief Clark would like to take this opportunity to recognize Firefighter Brian Rice for completing his 
Twin Falls Fire Department Firefighter Level III Certification.  This advanced fire service training 
includes classes and coursework on various subjects including a three-part series in Managing 
Company Tactical Operations, Incident Command System, Fire Cause Determination, and 
obtaining his State Fire Inspector Certification.   

 
Approval Process:   

None    
 
Budget Impact: 

None 
 
Regulatory Impact:   
 None  
 
Conclusion:  
  None 
 
Attachments: 

None 
 

Date: March 18, 2013, City Council Meeting 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:   Ron Clark, Fire Chief 



1 

 
 

 

Request: 
Presentation of a service plaque to Ray Wight in recognition of his service on the Golf Advisory 
Commission. 
 
Time Estimate: 
Staff presentation will take approximately 5 minutes.  
  
Background: 
Ray Wight served two full three year terms on the Commission.  He started on the Commission 
in March 2007.  Ray was very active on the Commission.  He served as Chairperson of the 
Commission for the past year.  Ray was very instrumental in starting the “Friends of Muni” golf 
tournament to raise funds for the golf course itself.  In the past 5 years, $50,000 has been raised 
for the betterment of the golf course. 
 
Approval Process: 
None 
 
Budget Impact: 
The cost of the plaque. 
 
Regulatory Impact: 
None 
 
Conclusion: 
Staff recommends that the City Council honor Ray Wight for his 6 years of service to the Golf 
Advisory Commission and to the City of Twin Falls. 
 
Attachments: 
None 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Date: Monday March 18, 2013 City Council Meeting 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Dennis J. Bowyer, Parks & Recreation Director 
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_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Request: 
Consideration of a request to present Certificates of Appreciation to Wayne Bohrn and D. Lane 
Jacobson in recognition of their service on the Twin Falls Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
Time Estimate:   
Staff presentation will take approximately 5 minutes. 
 
Background:   
Wayne Bohrn served five years on the Commission and D. Lane Jacobson served three years on 
the Commission.   
 
Approval Process:    
None 
 
Budget Impact:     
The cost of the plaques 
 
Regulatory Impact:   
None 

 
Conclusion:   
Staff recommends that the City Council honor Wayne Bohrn and D. Lane Jacobson for their 
service on the Twin Falls Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
Attachments: 
Certificates of Appreciation 

 

Date: Monday, March 18, City Council Meeting 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:   Mitch Humble, Community Development Director 
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_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request: 
 
Consider Contract Amendment No. 12 from CH2M HILL for the operation and maintenance of the Waste 
Treatment Plant, industrial pre-treatment program and associated sewer lift stations. 
 
Time Estimate: 
 
The staff presentation will take approximately 5 minutes. 
 
CH2M HILL will have a short presentation that will take approximately 5-10 minutes. 
 
Following the presentations, staff anticipates some time for questions and answers. 
 
Background:  
 
The City originally contracted with CH2M HILL in 1985. The contract was entered into in an effort to 
reverse a history of discharge violations and ongoing operating deficiencies. In the intervening 27 years, 
CH2M HILL has an excellent record of operating the facility within discharge standards. The most recent 
agreement with CH2M HILL was executed in 2001 and has been amended on an annual basis since that 
time to reflect changes in operating conditions and fees. The 2001 agreement was for a period of 10 years 
with a 120 day cancellation provision. Amendment No. 10, signed in February 2011, extended the 2001 
agreement three years through September 30, 2014. 
 
This year, CH2M HILL is presenting Amendment No.12.  Mr. Shawn Moffitt, CH2M HILL’s project 
manager, will be present during this year’s amendment presentation to council.  The proposed contract 
has a 14.7% increase from FY 2011-2012.  Section 2 (4.2) includes a change on the rebate structure. In 
the past, CH2M HILL would rebate 100% of the difference between the actual and estimated Total Direct 
Costs. CH2M HILL will now also rebate the management fee associated with that difference. Section 3 
(4.5) changes what was billable if the Total Direct Cost is exceeded. Instead of only allowing changes 
based on electrical and natural gas rate increases, the City of Twin Falls will pay the difference and the 
management fee for expenses over the Total Direct Cost. Section 5 (8.2) is a change to the original 2001 
agreement’s Force Majeure language. Section 6 (8.3) was an addition to the Force Majeure language that 
was not included in the original 2001 Agreement. 
 
The Fee: 
 
Amendment #12 updates operating conditions for our treatment facilities and shows current year 
electrical usage in Section 7. Section 8 of the amendment shows the projected operating characteristics for 
the facility.  Section 8 estimates for flow, BOD and TSS reflect an increase from FY12.  The proposed 
base fee for the year is $3,223,733.00 which is a 14.7% increase over the fee for FY 2011-12. The Base 
Fee represents the total cost of service.  
 

March 18, 2013, City Council Meeting 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  Jon Caton, Public Works Director, Shawn Moffitt, CH2MHILL 
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The base fee shown in section 1 (4.1) is the total compensation paid to CH2M HILL for services 
rendered. Total Direct Cost is the projected cost of operating the city’s treatment plants, maintaining lift 
stations and administering the industrial pretreatment program. Total Direct Costs is divided into 
maintenance & operating expenses and repairs.  M&O costs, including repair costs, are projected to be 
$2,642,404.00.  At the end of the year our contract requires CH2M HILL to rebate to the City 100% of 
the M&O costs that have not been spent (and the associated margin with those costs) and 100% of repair 
costs that have not been spent. The difference between the Base Fee and Total Direct Costs is overhead 
and profit. 
 
Approval Process: 
 
This amendment requires council approval and the Mayor’s signature. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
These costs have been budgeted for FY13. 
 
Regulatory Impact: 
 
NA 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Staff recommends that Council approve the amendment as presented. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1.  Amendment No. 12 
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AMENDMENT NO. 12 
to the  

AGREEMENT FOR OPERATIONS  
MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

for the  
CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO 

 
 
This Amendment No. 12 (the “Amendment”) is made and entered into this 1st day of October, 2012 (the 
“Effective Date”) between the City of Twin Falls, Idaho (hereinafter “Twin Falls”) and Operations 
Management International, Inc. (hereinafter “CH2M HILL OMI”) (each a “Party” and collectively, the 
“Parties”).     
 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Agreement for Operations, Maintenance and Management Services 
for the City of Twin Falls, Idaho Wastewater Treatment Facility, Pump Stations and UASB, effective October 
1, 2001; 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement for Operations, Maintenance and Management Services for the City of Twin 
Falls, Idaho Wastewater Treatment Facility, Pump Stations and UASB was amended by Amendment No. 1 
on October 15, 2002, Amendment No. 2 on September 22, 2003,  Amendment No. 3 on October 1, 2004, 
Amendment No. 4 on October 1, 2005,  Amendment No. 5 on October 1, 2006,  Amendment No. 6 on 
October 1, 2007; Amendment No. 7 on October 1, 2008; Amendment No. 8 on October 1, 2009; Amendment 
No. 9 on October 1, 2010; Amendment No. 10 on February 7, 2011; Amendment No. 11 on January 23, 
2012; and the Agreement for Operations, Maintenance and Management Services for the City of Twin Falls, 
Idaho Wastewater Treatment Facility, Pump Stations and UASB, Amendments No. 1, 2, 3, 4 , 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 
10, and 11 being collectively referred to as the “Agreement”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to further modify the Agreement as more fully set forth herein. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Twin Falls and CH2M HILL OMI agree to amend the Agreement as follows:  
 
1. Article 4.1 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 
 

4.1 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI as compensation for services performed under this 
Agreement a Base Fee of Three Million Two Hundred Twenty Three Thousand Seven 
Hundred Thirty Three Dollars ($3,223,733) for the time period of October 1, 2012 through 
September 30, 2013 (the “Current Term”).  Subsequent year’s Base Fee shall be determined 
as specified in Article 4.4. 

 
2. Article 4.2 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 
 

4.2 The estimated Total Direct Cost for providing services during the time period of October 1, 
2012 through September 30, 2013 is Two Million Six Hundred Forty Two Thousand Four 
Hundred Four Dollars ($2,642,404).  If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is less 
than the estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then CH2M HILL OMI will rebate 
Twin Falls One Hundred Percent (100%) of the difference between the actual and estimated 
Total Direct Costs plus the management fee associated with those costs. 

 
3. Article 4.5 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 
 

4.5 If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is greater than the estimated Total Direct 
Cost for the Current Term, then Twin Falls will pay One Hundred Percent (100%) of the 
difference between the actual and estimated Total Direct Costs plus the management fee 
associated with those costs.  This element of the payment structure will remain in place only 
for the time period of October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013. 
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4. Article 5.1 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 
 

5.1 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL a monthly Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as follows: Two 
Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand, Six Hundred Forty Four Dollars and Forty Two Cents 
($268,644.42) which shall be due and payable on the 10th of the month the services are 
provided. 

 
5. Appendix A, Definition A.10 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 
 

   
Description   Municipal Facility  UASB Facility 
         
Electrical Energy  797,599 kWh   103,865 kWh 
 
Electrical Demand  1433 kW   190 kW 
 
Rate Schedule   19p    9s 
 
Effective Date   June 1, 2012    June 1, 2012 
 

      
 
6. Appendix C, paragraph C.5 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 
 

C.5 The estimated costs for service under this Agreement are based upon the following annual 
average characteristics: 

 
Parameter  Municipal   UASB  Measurement 
   Facility 
 
Flow   7.18    1.33   MGD 
 
BOD5   21,192    13,102  lbs/day 
 
TSS   14,248    2,466   lbs/day 
 

An increase of ten percent (10%) or more in any of these characteristics, based upon a ninety day (90) 
average, will be evaluated to determine cost impact and, if necessary, an adjustment will be made by letter of 
agreement. 
 
7. Appendix C, paragraph C.6 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following Article. 

 
C.6 The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS loadings 

during the period August 2011 through July 2012 are identified below.  Any addition or 
deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as agreed upon by 
Twin Falls, and/or a ten percent (10%) change in the loadings from any industrial discharger 
shall constitute a change in the scope of services.    

 
Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L 

{lbs/day} 
TSS, mg/L 
{lbs/day} 

AP Gem Linen 0.097 167{160} 98{94} 
Independent Meat 0.096 45{36} 40{32} 
City of Kimberly 0.253 295{626} 292{624} 
Longview Fibre 0.014 530{60} 126{14} 
ConAgra D1 0.677 642{4,080} 307{1,699} 



 Page 3 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L 
{lbs/day} 

TSS, mg/L 
{lbs/day} 

ConAgra D2 1.33 1033{13,102} 194{2,466} 
Glanbia Inc. 0.546 693{3,170} 186{848} 
Cummins Family Produce 0.006 55{10} 137{20} 
Chobani 
(values and cost to be 
determined) 

TBD TBD TBD 

 
The Parties acknowledge that CH2M HILL OMI recently entered into an agreement with Chobani 
Idaho, Inc. to provide wastewater treatment services at the Chobani facility.  The Parties 
acknowledge that there is no conflict of interest for CH2M HILL OMI to provide these services to 
Chobani while CH2M HILL OMI provides oversight for the City of Twin Falls’ industrial pretreatment 
program, which now includes Chobani as an industrial discharger. 

 
 
This Amendment constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior oral and 
written understandings with respect to the subject matter set forth herein.  Unless specifically stated all other 
terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  Neither this Amendment nor the 
Agreement may be modified except in writing signed by an authorized representative of the Parties. 
 
The Parties, intending to be legally bound, indicate their approval of the Amendment by their signatures 
below. 
 
 
Authorized Signature:     Authorized Signature:  
 
OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT    CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
 
 
 
              
Name:  Natalie L. Eldredge    Name:  Gregory Lanting 
Title:  Vice President     Title:  Mayor 
Date:                                          Date:       
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AGREEMENT 
for 

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE, AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
for the 

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY, PUMP STATIONS, AND UASB 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on this _____ day of __________ 2001 between The City of Twin 
Falls, Idaho (hereinafter “Twin Falls”), whose address is 321 Second Avenue East, P.O. Box 
1907, Twin Falls, Idaho 83301, and Operations Management International, Inc., (hereinafter 
“OMI”) whose address for any formal notice is P.O. Box 6607, Englewood, CO 80155-6607 
9193 S. Jamaica St, Suite 400, Englewood, CO 80112 [Amendment #1]. 
 
Twin Falls and OMI agree: 
 
1. GENERAL 
 

1.1 All definitions of words or phrases used in this Agreement are contained in 
Appendix A. 

 
1.2 All grounds, facilities, equipment, and vehicles now owned by Twin Falls or 

acquired by Twin Falls shall remain the property of Twin Falls. 
 

1.3 This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Idaho. 

 
1.4 This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of each of the 

parties, but neither party will assign this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the other party. 

 
1.5 All notices shall be in writing and transmitted by certified mail to the address 

noted above. 
 

1.6 This Agreement, including Appendices, is the entire Agreement of the parties. 
This Agreement may be modified only by written agreement signed by both 
parties. Wherever used, the terms “OMI” and “Twin Falls” shall include the 
respective officers, agents, directors, elected or appointed officials, and 
employees. 

 
2. SCOPE OF SERVICES—OMI 
 

OMI shall: 
 

2.1 Provide the services necessary for the management, operation and maintenance of 
the equipment, vehicles, grounds, and facilities identified in Appendices B and F. 
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2.2 Within the design capacity and capability of the Project manage, operate, and 
maintain the Project so that effluent discharged from the Project meets the 
requirements specified in Appendix C. OMI may alter processes and/or facilities 
to achieve the objectives of this Agreement; provided, however, that no alteration 
shall be without Twin Falls written approval if alteration shall cost in excess of 
Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). 

 
 Within the design and capability of the Project, manage, operate and maintain the 

project so that effluent discharged from the Project meets the requirements 
specified in Appendix C.  CH2M HILL may alter processes and/or facilities to 
achieve the objectives of this Agreement, provided, however, that no alteration 
shall be without Twin Falls written approval if alteration shall cost in excess of 
Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00). [Amendment #11] 

 
2.3 Prepare all NPDES permit reports and submit these to Twin Falls for transmittal 

to appropriate agencies within NPDES time limits. 
 

2.4 Perform all laboratory testing and sampling presently required by the  
NPDES permit. 

 
2.5 OMI will operate the Twin Falls wastewater treatment facilities so as to treat 

industrial wastes from the industries outlined in Appendix D in accordance with 
industrial user agreements between all industries and Twin Falls. 

 
2.6 Maintain the present industrial waste sampling and laboratory analysis program, 

as described in Appendix D. Results of all industrial sampling and testing shall be 
reported to Twin Falls by the 12th day of the following month. 

 
2.7 Maintain the Twin Falls EPA-approved pretreatment program. 

 
2.8 Pay all Cost incurred in normal Project operations. 

 
2.9 OMI will pay all sales tax on materials and equipment purchased by OMI and all 

taxes measured by the income of OMI. 
 

2.10 Provide Twin Falls, on a monthly basis, a report of Direct Cost in the format and 
in the level of detail shown in Appendix E. 

 
2.11 Provide and document all Maintenance for the Project. Twin Falls shall have the 

right to inspect these records during normal business hours. 
 

2.12 Provide and document all Repairs for the Project, provided the total amount OMI 
shall be required to pay does not exceed Fifty-Three Thousand Eight Hundred 
Seventy Dollars ($53,870) per year during the term of this Agreement as defined 
in Article 7.1 Twin Falls shall pay for all repairs in excess of the Repairs limit. 
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 Provide and document all Repairs for the Project, provided the total amount 
CH2M HILL OMI shall be required to pay does not exceed Seventy Thousand 
Dollars ($70,000.00) per year during the term of this Agreement as defined in 
Article 7.1.  Twin Falls shall pay for all repairs in excess of the Repairs limit. 
[Amendment #11] 

 
2.13 Provide Twin Falls with an accounting of Repairs on a monthly basis. OMI will 

provide Twin Falls with a detailed invoice of Repairs over the Repairs limit. Twin 
Falls at its option may request a detailed invoice of repairs under the  
Repairs limit. 

 
2.14 Negotiate each year with Twin Falls the Repairs limit in Article 2.12, should 

Twin Falls and OMI fail to agree, the Repairs limit will be determined by  
the application of the Municipal Cost Index (MCI) component of the Base Fee 
Adjustment Formula referred to in Article 4.4. 

 
2.15 Rebate to Twin Falls the entire amount that actual Repairs are less than the 

Repairs limit defined in Article 2.12 in any year of this Agreement. 
 

2.16 Maintain an inventory list of vehicles and equipment that are being used at the 
Project by OMI. 

 
2.17 Staff the Project with employees who have met the certification requirement of 

the State of Idaho. OMI will permit the City to interview any replacement for 
OMI’s Project Manager. OMI will make every effort to provide a Project 
Manager who is satisfactory to the City. 

 
2.18 Provide twenty four (24) hours per day access to Project for Twin Falls personnel. 

Visits may be made at any time by any of Twin Falls employees so designated by 
Twin Falls representative. Keys for Project shall be provided to Twin Falls by  
OMI. All visitors to the Project shall comply with OMI’s operating and  
safety procedures. 
 

2.19 Proceed to take such actions that OMI deems necessary to protect public health 
and Twin Falls facilities in an emergency situation. OMI will make every effort to 
contact Twin Falls City Manager prior to taking any action. OMI will provide a 
written report detailing the actions taken within twenty four (24) hours after the 
emergency has terminated. 
 

2.20 Perform other services that are incidental to the Scope of Services as directed by 
Twin Falls. Such services will be invoiced to Twin Falls at OMI’s Cost plus 
fifteen percent (15%). 
 

2.21 Provide two (2) rounds of Chronic Toxicity testing as required by the Twin Falls 
NPDES permit. The testing will occur in January and July. 
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Provide two (2) rounds of Chronic Toxicity testing annually as required by the 
Twin Falls NPDES permit. [Amendment #1] 
 

2.22 Provide maintenance services for the “Engineered Treatment System” Model 
ECF-23010 Ultra Violet Disinfection System, located at Twin Falls YMCA Pool, 
756 Locust North, Twin Falls, Idaho.  These services include corrective 
maintenance to the system on an “as-needed” basis or as requested by Twin Falls.  
Services will also include manufacturer recommended preventive maintenance as 
well as semi-annual electrical inspection and annual infrared analysis of all 
electrical components.  All maintenance tasks will be tracked and monitored with 
CH2M HILL OMI’s Computerized Maintenance Management System 
(“CMMS”).  Any parts, materials and supplies will be provided by Twin Falls. 
[Amendment #9] 

 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICE—Twin Falls 
 

Twin Falls shall: 
 

3.1 Provide for all Capital Expenditures. 
 

3.2 Maintain all existing Project warranties, guarantees, easements, and licenses that 
have been granted to Twin Falls. 

 
3.3 Pay all property, franchise, or other taxes associated with the Project. 
 
3.4 Provide OMI within a reasonable time after request any piece of Twin Falls heavy 

equipment that is available so that OMI may discharge its obligations under this 
Agreement in the most cost-effective manner. Said equipment will be operated by 
Twin Falls employees. 

 
3.5 Provide all licenses for vehicles used in connection with the Project. 

 
3.6 Provide OMI use of all vehicles and equipment presently in use at the Project, 

including the vehicles described in Appendix F. 
 

3.7 Maintain, repair, and clear the access road to the plant so the plant is accessible 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, 365 days per year. OMI shall not be responsible 
for violations of the terms and conditions of this Agreement if the plant is not 
accessible by conventional motor vehicle with studded snow tires. 

 
3.8 Provide potable water to the Project at no charge to OMI. 

 
3.9 Pay for all electrical costs utilized to operate the pump stations listed in  

Appendix B. 1 (c). 
 

3.10 Allow OMI to utilize its employees, normally assigned to the Project, in support 
of other OMI business activities, and when appropriate OMI will charge labor and 
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expenses to the benefiting project. Employee development activities such as 
internal project reviews, evaluations, meetings, and classroom training are 
considered Project chargeable expenses. 

 
3.11 Provide Acute Toxicity testing required by the NPDES permit in the event that 

the Twin Falls effluent fails to meet the Chronic Toxicity requirements. Twin 
Falls shall also provide for the Toxicity Identification Evaluation and subsequent 
Toxicity Reduction Evaluation upon failure of the Acute Toxicity testing. 

 
3.12 Perform Industrial Pretreatment Program services as described in Appendix D. 

 
4. COMPENSATION 
 

4.1 Twin Falls shall pay OMI as compensation for services performed under this 
Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Four Hundred Eight Thousand Six 
Hundred Eighty One Dollars ($2,408,681) for the first year of this agreement. 
Subsequent year’s Base Fee will be determined as hereinafter specified in  
Article 4.4. 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI as compensation for services performed under this 

Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Four Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand One 
Hundred Twenty-Three Dollars and no Cents ($2,448,123) for the Second year of 
this Agreement Subsequent years base fee shall be determined as specified in 
Article 4,4, [Amendment #1] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI as compensation for services performed under this 

Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Four Hundred Twelve Thousand Six 
Hundred One Dollars and no Cents ($2,412,601) for the Third year of this 
Agreement.  Subsequent years base fee shall be determined as specified in Article 
4.4 [Amendment #2] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI as compensation for services performed under this 

Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Four Hundred Twelve Thousand Six 
Hundred One Dollars and no Cents ($2,412,601) for the time period October 1, 
2004 through September 30, 2005 (the “Current Term”).  Subsequent year’s base 
fee shall be determined as specified in Article 4.4. [Amendment #3] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI as compensation for services performed under this 

Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Five Hundred Thirty One Thousand Six 
Hundred Seventy Six Dollars and no Cents ($2,531,676) for the time period 
October 1, 2005 through September 30, 2006 (the “Current Term”).  Subsequent 
year’s base fee shall be determined as specified in Article 4.4. [Amendment #4] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI as compensation for services performed under this 

Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Five Hundred Seventy Two Thousand  Six 
Hundred Fifty Seven Dollars and no Cents ($2,572,657.00) for the time period 
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October 1, 2006 through September 30, 2007 (the “Current Term”).  Subsequent 
year’s base fee shall be determined as specified in Article 4.4. [Amendment #5] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI as compensation for services performed under this 

Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Six Hundred Thirty One Thousand  Two 
Hundred Sixty Seven Dollars and no Cents ($2,631,267.00) for the time period 
October 1, 2007 through September 30, 2008 (the “Current Term”).  Subsequent 
year’s base fee shall be determined as specified in Article 4.4. [Amendment #6] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI as compensation for services performed 

under this Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Seven  Hundred Eighty Two  
Thousand  Nine Hundred Eighty Three Dollars and no Cents ($2,782,983.00) for 
the time period October 1, 2008 through September 30, 2009 (the “Current 
Term”).  Subsequent year’s base fee shall be determined as specified in Article 
4.4. [Amendment #7] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI as compensation for services performed 

under this Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Eight Hundred Forty Seven  
Thousand Five Hundred Seventy Nine Dollars and no Cents ($2,847,579.00) for 
the time period October 1, 2009 through September 30, 2010 (the “Current 
Term”).  Subsequent year’s base fee shall be determined as specified in Article 
4.4. [Amendment #8] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI as compensation for services performed 

under this Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Eight Hundred Eleven 
Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Three Dollars and no Cents ($2,811,823.00) for 
the time period October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011 (the “Current 
Term”).  Subsequent year’s base fee shall be determined as specified in Article 
4.4. [Amendment #9] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI as compensation for services performed 

under this Agreement a Base Fee of Two Million Eight Hundred Eleven 
Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Three Dollars ($2,811,823.00) for the time 
period of October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012 (the “Current Term”).  
Subsequent year’s Base Fee shall be determined as specified in Article 4.4. 
[Amendment #11] 

 
Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI as compensation for services performed 
under this Agreement a Base Fee of Three Million Two Hundred Twenty Three 
Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty Three Dollars ($3,223,733.00) for the time 
period of October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013 (the “Current Term”).  
Subsequent year’s Base Fee shall be determined as specified in Article 4.4. 
[Amendment #12] 

 
 

4.2 The estimated Direct Cost for providing services under this Agreement is One 
Million Nine Hundred Seventy Four Thousand Three Hundred Twenty Nine 
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Dollars ($1,974,329) for the first year of this Agreement. If the actual Total Direct 
Cost, except repairs, is less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for any year, then 
OMI will rebate to Twin Falls 75 percent (75%) of the difference between the 
actual and estimated Total Direct Cost. 

 
 The estimated Direct Cost for providing services under this Agreement is Two 

Million Six Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Six Dollars ($2,006,726) for the 
Second year of this Agreement If the actual Total Direct Cost, except repairs, is 
less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for any year, then OMI will rebate Twin 
Falls 75 percent (75%) of the difference between the actual and estimated Total 
Direct Cost. [Amendment #1] 

 
 The estimated Direct Cost for providing sel vices under this Agreement is One 

Million Nine Hundred Seventy Seven Thousand Six Hundred Nine Dollars 
($1,977,609) for the Third year of this Agreement. If the actual Total Direct Cost, 
except repairs, is less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for any yea!, then OMI 
will rebate Twin Falls 75 percent (75%) of the difference between the actual and 
estimated Total Direct Cost. [Amendment #2] 

 
 The estimated Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is One 

Million Nine Hundred Seventy Seven Thousand Six Hundred Nine Dollars 
($1,977,609).  If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is less than the 
estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then OMI will rebate Twin 
Falls 75 percent (75%) of the difference between the actual and estimated Total 
Direct Cost. [Amendment #3] 

 
 The estimated Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is Two 

Million Seventy Five Thousand Two Hundred Fifteen Dollars ($2,075,215).  If 
the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is less than the estimated Total 
Direct Cost for the Current Term, then OMI will rebate Twin Falls seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the difference between the actual and estimated Total Direct 
Cost. [Amendment #4] 

 
 The estimated Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is Two 

Million One Hundred Eight Thousand Eight Hundred Seven Dollars and no Cents 
($2,108,807.00).  If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is less than the 
estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then OMI will rebate Twin 
Falls seventy-five percent (75%) of the difference between the actual and 
estimated Total Direct Cost. [Amendment #5] 

 
 The estimated Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is Two 

Million One Hundred Sixty Six Thousand Four Hundred Forty Nine Dollars and 
no Cents ($2,166,449.00).  If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is 
less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then OMI will 
rebate Twin Falls seventy-five percent (75%) of the difference between the actual 
and estimated Total Direct Cost. [Amendment #6] 
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 The estimated Total Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is 
Two Million Two Hundred Eighty One  Thousand Two  Hundred Eleven  Dollars 
and no Cents ($2,281,211.00).  If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, 
is less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then OMI will 
rebate Twin Falls seventy-five percent (75%) of the difference between the actual 
and estimated Total Direct Cost. [Amendment #7] 

 
 The estimated Total Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is 

Two Million Three Hundred Thirty Three Thousand One Hundred Sixty Dollars 
and no Cents ($2,336,160.00).  If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, 
is less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then OMI will 
rebate Twin Falls One Hundred percent (100%) of the difference between the 
actual and estimated Total Direct Cost. [Amendment #8] 

 
 The estimated Total Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is 

Two Million Three Hundred Thirty Thousand One Hundred Eighty Three Dollars 
and no Cents ($2,330,183.00).  If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, 
is less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then OMI will 
rebate Twin Falls One Hundred percent (100%) of the difference between the 
actual and estimated Total Direct Cost. [Amendment #9] 

 
 The estimated Total Direct Cost for providing services during the Current Term is 

Two Million Three Hundred Four Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy Three 
Dollars ($2,304,773). If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is less 
than the estimated Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then CH2M HILL 
OMI will rebate Twin Falls One Hundred Percent (100%) of the difference 
between the actual and estimated Total Direct Costs. [Amendment #11] 

 
The estimated Total Direct Cost for providing services during the time period of 
October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013 is Two Million Six Hundred Forty 
Two Thousand Four Hundred Four Dollars ($2,642,404). If the actual Total 
Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is less than the estimated Total Direct Cost for the 
Current Term, then CH2M HILL OMI will rebate Twin Falls One Hundred 
Percent (100%) of the difference between the actual and estimated Total Direct 
Costs plus the management fee associated with those costs. [Amendment #12] 

 
 

4.3 OMI’s Management Fee shall be equal to twenty two percent (22%) of the 
estimated Direct Cost. 

 
4.4 Subsequent to the first year of this Agreement, the Base Fee and estimated Total 

Direct Cost will be proposed by July 1 of each year and negotiated by August 1 of 
each year. Should Twin Falls and OMI fail to agree, the Base Fee and the 
estimated Total Direct Cost will be determined by the application of the Base Fee 
Adjustment Formula shown in Appendix G. 
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4.5 Twin Falls will pay as additional compensation to OMI any increase in electricity 
or natural gas costs that are a result of electrical or natural gas rate increases that 
occur during any Agreement year and have not been reflected in the electricity 
cost component of the Base Fee Adjustment Formula. OMI will invoice any such 
Cost increase quarterly. 

 
If the actual Total Direct Cost, excluding repairs, is greater than the estimated 
Total Direct Cost for the Current Term, then Twin Falls will pay One Hundred 
Percent (100%) of the difference between the actual and estimated Total Direct 
Costs plus the management fee associated with those costs. This element of the 
payment structure will remain in place only for the time period of October 1, 2012 
through September 30, 2013. [Amendment #12] 

 
4.6 In the event that a change in the scope of services provided by OMI occurs, Twin 

Falls and OMI will negotiate a commensurate adjustment in Base Fee. 
 
5. PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION 
 

5.1 Twin Falls shall pay OMI the Base Fee in Article 4.1 as follows: Two Hundred 
Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Three Dollars and Forty One Cents 
($200,723.41) shall be due and payable on the 10th of the month that services are 
provided. 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI the Base Fee in Article 41 as follows: Two Hundred 

Four Thousand Ten Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents ($204,010.25) shall be due 
and payable on the 10th of the month the services are provided. [Amendment #1] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI the Base Fee in Article 4.1 as follows: Two Hundred 

One Thousand Fifty Dollms and Five Cents ($201,050.05) shall be due and 
payable on the 10th of the month the services are provided. [Amendment #2] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI the Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as follows:  Two 

Hundred One Thousand Fifty Dollars and Eight Cents ($201,050.08) shall be due 
and payable on the 10th of the month the services are provided. [Amendment #3] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI the Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as follows:  Two 

Hundred Ten Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Three Dollars and no Cents 
($210,973.00) shall be due and payable on the 10th of the month the services are 
provided. [Amendment #4] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI the Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as follows: Two 

Hundred Fourteen Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Eight Dollars and Eight Cents 
($214,388.08) shall be due and payable on the 10th of the month the services are 
provided. [Amendment #5] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay OMI the Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as follows: Two 

Hundred Nineteen Thousand Two Hundred Seventy Two Dollars and Twenty 
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Five Cents ($219,272.25) shall be due and payable on the 10th of the month the 
services are provided. [Amendment #6] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI the Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as 

follows: Two Hundred Thirty One  Thousand Nine Hundred Fifteen Dollars and 
Twenty Five Cents ($231,915.25) shall be due and payable on the 10th of the 
month the services are provided. [Amendment #7] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI the Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as 

follows: Two Hundred Thirty Seven Thousand Two Hundred Ninety Eight 
Dollars and Twenty Five Cents ($237,298.25) shall be due and payable on the 10th 
of the month the services are provided. [Amendment #8] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL OMI a monthly Base Fee set forth in Article 

4.1 as follows: Two Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand Three Hundred Eighteen 
Dollars and Sixty-Two Cents ($234,318.62) shall be due and payable on the 10th 
of the month the services are provided. [Amendment #9] 

 
 Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL a monthly Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as 

follows: Two Hundred Thirty Four Thousand Three Hundred Eighteen Dollars 
and Fifty Eight Cents ($234,318.58) which shall be due and payable on the 10th of 
the month the services are provided. [Amendment #11] 

 
Twin Falls shall pay CH2M HILL a monthly Base Fee set forth in Article 4.1 as 
follows: Two Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Six Hundred Forty Four Dollars and 
Forty Two Cents ($268,644.42) which shall be due and payable on the 10th of the 
month the services are provided. [Amendment #12] 

 
 

5.2 All other compensation to OMI is due upon receipt of OMI’s invoice and payable 
on the tenth (10th) day of the month following receipt of OMI’s invoice. 

 
5.3 Any monies arising from Articles 2.15 and 4.2 will be paid to Twin Falls within 

sixty (60) days after the end of each Agreement year. 
 
 Any monies arising from Articles 2.15 and 4.2 will be paid to Twin Falls within 

One Hundred Twenty (120) days after the end of each Agreement year. 
[Amendment #6] 

 
5.4 Twin Falls shall pay interest at an annual rate equal to the Wells Fargo Bank of 

Denver, N.A.’s prime rate plus one and one half percent (1-1/2%) (said amount of 
interest not to exceed any limitation provided by law), on payments not paid and 
received within fifteen (15) calendar days, such interest being calculated from the 
due date of the payment. 

 
6. INDEMNITY. LIABILITY AND INSURANCE 
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6.1 OMI hereby agrees to and shall hold Twin Falls harmless from any liability or 
damages for bodily injury, including death, which may arise from OMI’s 
negligent operations under this Agreement, whether such negligent operation be 
by OMI or by subcontractor of OMI.  Twin Falls agrees to and shall hold OMI 
harmless from any liability or damages for property damage or bodily injury, 
including death, which may arise from all causes of any kind other than OMI’s 
negligence. 

 
6.2 OMI shall be liable for those fines or civil penalties which may be imposed by a 

regulatory agency for violations of the effluent quality requirements in Article 2.2 
that are a result of OMI’s negligent operations. Twin Falls will assist OMI to 
contest any such fines in administrative proceedings and/or in court prior to any 
payment by OMI. OMI shall pay all costs of contesting any such fines. 

 
6.3 OMI’s liability to Twin Falls under this Agreement specifically excludes any and 

all indirect or consequential damages arising from the operation, maintenance, 
and management of Project only if a result of other than OMI’s negligence. 

 
6.4 Each party shall obtain and maintain insurance coverage of a type and in the 

amounts described in Appendix H. Each party shall name the other party as an 
additional insured on all insurance policies covering the Project and shall provide 
the other party with satisfactory proof of insurance. 

 
6.5 It is understood and agreed that, in seeking the services of OMI under this 

Agreement, Twin Falls is requesting OMI to undertake uninsurable obligations 
for Twin Falls benefit, involving the presence or potential presence of hazardous 
substances. Therefore, Twin Falls agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend 
OMI from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, liability, and costs 
including, but not limited to, costs of defense, arising out of or in any way 
connected with, the presence, discharge, release, or escape of contaminants of any 
kind, excepting only that portion of any such liability as may arise out of the 
negligence of OMI in the performance of services under this Agreement. 

 
The provisions of said Section 6.5 shall control over any conflicting provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
7. TERM AND TERMINATION, DEFAULT REMEDIES 
 

7.1 The term of this Agreement shall be for Ten (10) years, commencing  
October 1, 2001 and continuing through September 30, 2011. Thereafter, this 
Agreement shall be automatically renewed for successive terms of Ten (10) years 
each unless cancelled by either party, no less than one hundred twenty (120) days 
prior to expiration. 

 
 The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year, commencing October 1, 

2010 and continuing through September 30, 2011.  Thereafter, this Agreement 
shall be automatically renewed for successive terms of Ten (10) years each unless 
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cancelled by either party, no less than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to 
expiration. [Amendment #9] 

 
 The term of this Agreement shall be for thirteen (13) years, commencing October 

1, 2001 and continuing through September 30, 2014.  Thereafter, this Agreement 
shall be automatically renewed for successive terms of ten (10) years each unless 
cancelled by either party, no less than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to 
expiration. [Amendment #10] 

 
7.2 Either party may terminate this Agreement for a material breach of the Agreement 

by the other party after giving written Notice of Breach and allowing the other 
party to correct the Breach within thirty (30) days. In addition, Twin Falls or OMI 
may terminate this Agreement if regulatory agency fines or penalties imposed for 
violations of the effluent quality requirement in Article 2.2 exceed One Hundred 
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) in any twelve (12) month period. In any 
case, OMI’s liability for these fines shall not exceed a maximum aggregate of One 
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00). Neither party shall terminate this 
Agreement without giving the other party sixty (60) days written notice of Intent 
to Terminate after failure of the other party to correct the Breach within thirty (30) 
days of the Notice of Breach. Notwithstanding the above, OMI will only be 
required to give Twin Falls fifteen (15) days written Notice of Termination for 
non-payment of OMI’s invoice. 

 
7.3 Upon Notice of Termination by Twin Falls, OMI will assist Twin Falls in 

resuming operation of the Project by: 
 

7.3.1 Turning over all operations and maintenance records to Twin Falls. 
 

7.3.2 Providing Twin Falls option to purchase all onsite computer hardware at 
their residual value based on original purchase price, amortized over five 
(5) years at fifteen percent (15%) interest per year. Twin Falls shall have 
full utilization of software licensed by CH2M HILL for ninety (90) days 
after termination in order to negotiate purchase of existing or replacement 
software. 

 
7.3.3 Providing, if requested by Twin Falls, thirty (30) days of onsite orientation 

for Twin Falls personnel by OMI’s Project Manager. Twin Falls shall 
reimburse OMI for said orientation at Project Manager’s actual salary 
times two (2), plus expenses. 

 
OMI will provide Twin Falls at the date of termination the quantities of chemicals 
shown in Appendix I. Twin Falls will pay OMI for the cost of quantities in excess 
of the quantities shown in Appendix I. If additional costs are incurred by OMI at 
request of Twin Falls, Twin Falls will pay OMI such costs in accordance with 
Article 5.2. 
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7.4 OMI and Twin Falls may terminate this Agreement for no cause, giving the other 
party at least one hundred and twenty (120) days written notice. Such notice will 
specify the actual date and time of termination. The party choosing to terminate 
this Agreement will pay the other party one (1) month’s fee as a demobilization or 
remobilization cost in addition to any other compensation for services under this 
Agreement. 

 
7.5 Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Twin Falls will have the right 

to hire any employee working for OMI at the Twin Falls facility, provided the 
employee desires to terminate his employment with OMI. OMI will cooperate 
with Twin Falls to enable Twin Falls to resume operations in an organized 
manner. 

 
8. LABOR DISPUTES: FORCE MAJEURE 
 

8.1 In the event activities by Twin Falls employee groups or unions cause a disruption 
in OMI’s ability to perform at the Project, Twin Falls, with OMI’s assistance or 
OMI, at its own option, may seek appropriate injunctive court orders. During any 
such disruption, OMI shall operate the facilities on a best-efforts basis until any 
such disruptions cease. 

 
8.2 Neither party shall be liable for its failure to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement if performance is made impractical, abnormally difficult, or 
abnormally costly, due to any unforeseen occurrence beyond its reasonable 
control. The party invoking this Force Majeure clause shall notify the other party 
immediately by verbal communication and in writing by certified mail of the 
nature and extent of the contingency within ten (10) working days after its 
occurrence. 

 
Neither party shall be liable for damages, delays, or failure to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement if performance is made impractical, abnormally 
difficult, or abnormally costly, as a result of any unforeseen occurrence, including 
but not limited to fire, flood, strike, acts of God, or other occurrences, beyond its 
reasonable control. The party invoking this Force Majeure clause shall notify the 
other party immediately by verbal communication and in writing of the nature and 
extent of the contingency within ten (10) working days after its occurrence, and 
shall take reasonable measures to mitigate any impact of Force Majeure. 
[Amendment #12] 

 
 
8.3 In the case of Force Majeure events (including Acts of God), Owners agrees to 

pay any costs and expenses (including all overtime charges and additional 
equipment charges) in order to maintain the Wastewater Treatment Plants so that 
the effluent discharged from the plants meets current permit specifications. 
[Amendment #12] 
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Both parties indicate their approval of this Agreement by their signatures below. 
 
OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT   CITY OF TWIN FALLS 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
 
Authorized signature:     Authorized signature: 
 
 
              
Bernard A. Miller, Jr.     Elaine Steele 
Natalie L. Eldredge     Gregory Lanting [Current] 
Chief Operating Officer    Mayor 
Vice President 
 
Date:        Date:        
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Appendix  
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 
A.1 The “Project” means all equipment, vehicles, grounds, and facilities described in 

Appendices B and F and where appropriate, the management, operations, and 
maintenance of such. 

 
A.2 “Capital Expenditures” means any expenditures for (1) the purchase of new equipment or 

facility items that cost more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00); or (2) major repairs 
which significantly extends equipment or facility service fife and cost more than Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) or (3) expenditures that are planned, non-routine, and bud-
geted by Twin Falls. 

 
A.3 “Cost” means all Direct Cost and Indirect Cost determined on an accrual basis in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
A.4 “Direct Cost” means the actual cost incurred for the direct benefit of the Project 

including, but not limited to, expenditures for direct labor, employee benefits, chemicals, 
laboratory supplies, repairs, repair parts, maintenance parts, safety supplies, gasoline, oil, 
equipment rental, travel, office supplies, other supplies, uniforms, telephone, postage, 
utilities, tools, memberships, and training supplies. 

 
A.5 “Indirect Cost” means expenditures incurred by OMI for the indirect benefit of the 

Project. 
 
A.6 “Maintenance” means the cost of those routine and/or repetitive activities required or 

recommended by the equipment or facility manufacturer or OMI to maximize the service 
fife of the equipment, sewer, vehicles, and facility. 

 
A.7 “Repairs” means the cost of those non-routine/non-repetitive activities required for opera-

tional continuity, safety, and performance generally due to failure or to avert a failure of 
the equipment, sewer, vehicle, or facility or some component thereof 

 
A.8 “Biologically Toxic Substances” means any substance or combination of substances con-

tained in the plant influent in sufficiently high concentrations so as to interfere with the 
biological processes necessary for the removal of the organic and chemical constituents 
of the wastewater required to meet the discharge requirements of the Twin Falls NPDES 
permit. Biologically toxic substances include but are not limited to heavy metals, 
phenols, cyanides, pesticides, and herbicides. 

 
A.9 “Adequate Nutrients” means plant influent nitrogen, phosphorus, and iron contents 

proportional to BOD5 in the ratio of five (5) parts nitrogen, one (1) part phosphorus, and 
one half (0.5) part iron for each one hundred (100) parts BOD5. 
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A.10 “Electrical Cost” means the average monthly cost of Electrical energy and demand 
utilizing Idaho Power Company’s Rate Schedules as shown below. 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 765,000 kWh  153,700 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1300 kW  210 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date May 1, 2001  May 1, 2001 
 

Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 801,823 kWh  78,872 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1430 kW  235 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date October 1, 2001  May 16, 2002 
[Amendment #1] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 737,402 kWh  124,544 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1353 kW  213 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date May 16, 2003 May 16, 2003 
[Amendment #2] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 741,173 kWh 124,017 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1345 kW  197 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2004 June 1, 2004 
[Amendment #3] 
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Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 741,173 kWh 124,017 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1345 kW  197 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2005 June 1, 2005 
[Amendment #4] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 720,430 kWh 130,250 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1383 kW  210 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2005 June 1, 2005 
[Amendment #5] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 749,399 kWh 131,200 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1423 kW 213 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2007 June 1, 2007 
[Amendment #6] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 829,847 kWh 105,313 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1510 kW 185 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2008 June 1, 2008 
[Amendment #7] 
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Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 775,933 kWh 116,250 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1435 kW 184 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2009 June 1, 2009 
[Amendment #8] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 740,100 kWh 112,127 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1384 kW 180 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2010 June 1, 2010 
[Amendment #9] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 737,207 kWh 93,417 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1364 kW 175 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2011 June 1, 2011 
[Amendment #11] 

 
Description Municipal Facility UASB Facility 

Electrical Energy 797,599 kWh 103,865 kWh 

Electrical Demand 1433 kW 190 kW 

Rate Schedule 19p  09s 

Effective Date June 1, 2012 June 1, 2012 
[Amendment #12]
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Appendix B 
 

LOCATION OF PROJECT 
 
 
B.1 OMI agrees to provide the services necessary for the management, operation, and 

maintenance of the following: 
 

a. All equipment, vehicles, grounds, and facilities now existing within the present 
property boundaries of or being used to operate Twin Falls’ Wastewater 
Treatment Plant located at: 

 
350 Canyon Springs Road West 
Twin Falls, Idaho 
River Mile 608.5, Snake River 

 
b. All equipment, grounds, and facilities now existing within the present property 

boundaries of the UASB Wastewater Treatment and Odor Control Facility located 
at: 

 
631 Oak Street 
Twin Falls, Idaho 

 
c. All equipment, grounds, and facilities now existing within the present property 

boundaries of pump and monitoring stations described as follows: 
 

Rock Creek Pump Station (2) 
Independent Meat Pump Station 
College Road (North Star) Pump Station 
Canyon Rim Pump Station 
Canyon View Pump Station [Amendment #2] 
Kimberly Monitoring Station 
Morning Sun Lift Station [Amendment #2] 
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Appendix C 
 

NPDES PERMIT AND 
PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS 

 
 
C.1 OMI will operate the Project so that effluent will meet the requirement of NPDES permit 

no. ID-002127-0 (copy attached). OMI shall be responsible for meeting the effluent 
quality requirements of the Twin Falls NPDES permit unless one or more of the 
following occurs; (1) the Project influent does not contain Adequate Nutrients to support 
operation of Project biological processes and/or contains Biologically Toxic Substances 
which cannot be removed by the existing process and facilities; (2) dischargers into Twin 
Falls sewer system violate any or all regulations as stated in the Water and Sewer 
Ordinance 2575 and, (3) the flow, influent BOD5, and/or influent suspended solids 
exceeds the Project design parameters which are based on a Peak Month Loading Rate 
not to exceed 8.56 million gallons of flow per day, 37,220 pounds of BOD5 per day, and 
56,060 pounds of suspended solids per day. EXCEPTION: If the influent BOD5 is less 
than 37,220 pounds per day then the sum of the influent BOD5 and influent TSS pounds 
cannot exceed 93,280 pounds per day. C.1.(l) will not apply if Project records show that a 
violation was caused by operator error, lack of preventive maintenance and inadequate 
NPDES monitoring, and/or negligent operation. OMI will notify Twin Falls in a timely 
manner, if in OMI’s judgment the treatment facilities are inadequate to treat projected 
waste loads. OMI will provide existing data to support OMI’s opinion. OMI will be 
responsible for any fines resulting from effluent quality violations if OMI fails to notify 
Twin Falls in a timely manner of OMI’s opinion that the facility cannot treat projected 
waste loads. 

 
C.2 OMI will be required to operate the UASB facility in accordance with manufacturers 

specifications unless one or more of the following occurs; (1) the UASB influent does not 
contain the adequate minimum temperature of 85 degrees, pH in the range of 6.8 to 7.8, 
or contains Biologically Toxic Substances which cannot be assimilated by the existing 
processes and facilities; (2) any discharger into the UASB facility violates the industrial 
waste discharge permit issued to them by the City of Twin Falls; (3) the flow, influent 
BOD5, and/or suspended solids exceeds the UASB facility design parameters which are 
based on a Peak Week Loading Rate of 2.2 million gallons of flow per day, 32,500 
pounds of BOD5 per day, and 11,600 pounds of suspended solids per day. 
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C.3 In the event any one of the Project influent characteristics, as identified in C.1 and C.2 
exceeds the design characteristics stated above, OMI shall return the wastewater facility’s 
effluent to the characteristics required by the NPDES permit and/or the UASB facility’s 
process to manufacturers specifications in accordance with the following schedule after 
Project influent characteristics return to within design parameters. 

 
Characteristics Exceeding 

Design Parameters By 
Recovery Period 
    Maximum     

 
10% or Less 

 
5 days 

Above 10% Less than 20% 10 days 
20% and Above 30 days 

 
Not withstanding the above schedule if the failure to meet effluent quality limitations is 
caused by the presence of Biologically Toxic Substances or the lack of Adequate 
Nutrients in the influent, then OMI will have a thirty (30) day recovery period after the 
influent is free from said substances or contains Adequate Nutrients. 

 
C.4 OMI shall not be responsible for fines or legal action as a result of discharge violations 

within the period that influent exceeds design parameters, does not contain Adequate Nu-
trients, contains Biologically Toxic Substances, and the subsequent recovery period. 

 
C.5 The estimated costs for service under this Agreement are based upon the following 

annual average characteristics: 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.83 1.65 Million gallons per 
day 

BOD5 23,936 18,027 Pounds per day 
TSS 24,718 4,637 Pounds per day 

 
Parameter Municipal 

Facility 
UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.70 1.35 MGD 
BOD5 21,508 13,491 Pounds per day 
TSS 17,358 2,670 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #1] 
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Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.52 1.40 MGD 
BOD5 19,535 17,183 Pounds per day 
TSS 14,691 5,106 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #2] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 7.43 1.61 MGD 
BOD5 16,098 12,372 Pounds per day 
TSS 13,370 3,386 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #3] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 7.43 1.61 MGD 
BOD5 16,098 12,372 Pounds per day 
TSS 13,370 3,386 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #4] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.95 1.85 MGD 
BOD5 18,728 21,561 Pounds per day 
TSS 14,610 3,132 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #5] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.72 1.71 MGD 
BOD5 16,730 24,437 Pounds per day 
TSS 14,085 4,465 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #6] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.73 1.74 MGD 
BOD5 16,392 27,597 Pounds per day 
TSS 12,900 4,382 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #7] 
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Parameter Municipal 

Facility 
UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.62 1.70 MGD 
BOD5 16,463 21,305 Pounds per day 
TSS 12,958 3,281 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #8] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.85 1.56 MGD 
BOD5 17,681 13,080 Pounds per day 
TSS 14,196 2,875 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #9] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 6.68 1.06 MGD 
BOD5 17,650 8,950 Pounds per day 
TSS 13,482 1,804 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #11] 
 

Parameter Municipal 
Facility 

UASB Measurement 

Flow 7.18 1.33 MGD 
BOD5 21,192 13,102 Pounds per day 
TSS 14,248 2,466 Pounds per day 

[Amendment #12] 
 
 

An increase of 10 percent (10%) or more in any of these characteristics, based upon a  
90 day average, will be evaluated to determine cost impact and, if necessary, an 
adjustment will be made by letter of agreement. 
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C.6 The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period October 2000 through September 2001 are identified below. 
Any addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings 
as agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 

 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 
 

AP Gem Linen 0.0614 313 182 
Independent Meat 0.1761 74 158 
City of Kimberly 0.2997 214 288 
Longview Fibre 0.0241 1045 1492 
Silver Creek Farms 0.0058 84 138 
Lamb Weston 2.195 2,121 724 
Glanbia Inc. 0.3252 806 306 
Keegan Inc. 0.0126 75 677 

 
The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BODs, and SS 
loadings during the period October 2001 through September 2002 are identified below. 
Any addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings 
as agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 
 

AP Gem Linen 0.0724 388 206 
Independent Meat 0.1515 127 248 
City of Kimberly 0.3316 230 461 
Longview Fibre 0.0219 1088 1602 
Silver Creek Farms 0.0017 344 346 
Lamb Weston 2.1801 1151 332 
Glanbia Inc. 0.3295 980 367 
Keegan Inc. 0.0085 110 555 

[Amendment #1] 
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The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BODs, and SS 
loadings during the period October 2002 through September 2003 are identified below, 
Any addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings 
as agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services, 

 
Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 

 
AP Gem Linen 0.0688 376 188 
Independent Meat 0.1609 132 217 
City of Kimberly 0.2780 273 380 
Longview Fibre 0.0236 968 1484 
Silver Creek Farms 0.0102 176 262 
Lamb Weston 2.0257 1137 359 
Glanbia Inc. 0.3328 1174 393 
Keegan Inc. 0.0224 166 425 

[Amendment #2] 
 

The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period September 2003 through August 2004 are identified below. 
Any addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings 
as agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 
 

AP Gem Linen 0.072 364 206 
Independent Meat 0.148 317 308 
City of Kimberly 0.281 229 280 
Longview Fibre 0.021 1144 1665 
Silver Creek Farms 0.011 176 415 
ConAgra 2.001 1071 338 
Glanbia Inc. 0.341 940 319 
Keegan Inc. 0.018 150 1330 

[Amendment #3] 
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The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period September 2004 through August 2005 are identified below. 
Any addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings 
as agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 
 

AP Gem Linen 0.072 364 206 
Independent Meat 0.148 317 308 
City of Kimberly 0.281 229 280 
Longview Fibre 0.021 1144 1665 
Silver Creek Farms 0.011 176 415 
ConAgra 2.001 1071 338 
Glanbia Inc. 0.341 940 319 
Keegan Inc. 0.018 150 1330 

[Amendment #4] 
 
The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period August 2005 through July 2006 are identified below. Any 
addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as 
agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 
 

AP Gem Linen 0.078 435 259 
Independent Meat 0.129 297 204 
City of Kimberly 0.278 213 247 
Longview Fibre 0.011 810 127 
ConAgra 2.288 1103 241 
Glanbia Inc. 0.396 850 164 
Keegan Inc. 0.012 234 628 

[Amendment #5] 
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The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period August 2006 through July 2007 are identified below. Any 
addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as 
agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 
 

AP Gem Linen 0.08 429 226 
Independent Meat 0.162 231 113 
City of Kimberly 0.294 204 185 
Longview Fibre 0.012 742 177 
ConAgra 1.96 1364 331 
Glanbia Inc. 0.422 744 173 
Keegan Inc. 0.012 113 233 

[Amendment #6] 
 
The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period August 2007 through July 2008 are identified below. Any 
addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as 
agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a 10 percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L TSS, mg/L 
 

AP Gem Linen 0.097 418 216 
Independent Meat 0.187 45 52 
City of Kimberly 0.309 201 183 
Longview Fibre 0.012 564 193 
ConAgra 2.02 1274 287 
Glanbia Inc. 0.423 667  171  
Keegan Inc. 0.016 177   272  

[Amendment #7] 
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The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period August 2008 through July 2009 are identified below. Any 
addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as 
agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a ten percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

TSS, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

AP Gem Linen 0.064 381 {203} 212 {113} 
Independent Meat 0.140 35 {41} 58 {68} 
City of Kimberly 0.300 215 {538} 191 {478} 
Longview Fibre 0.012 660 {60} 117 {12} 
ConAgra D1 0.36 714 {2415} 413 {1194} 
ConAgra D2 1.70 1501 {21,305} 242 {3281} 
Glanbia Inc. 0.473 819 {3231} 180 {710} 
Cummins Family Produce 0.006 57 {2.9} 180 {9.0} 

[Amendment #8] 
 

The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period August 2009 through July 2010 are identified below. Any 
addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as 
agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a ten percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

TSS, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

AP Gem Linen 0.11 135{124} 95.5{89} 
Independent Meat 0.116 58.9{69} 86.3{98} 
City of Kimberly 0.291 228{560} 214{529} 
Longview Fibre 0.012 232{27} 65.1{7} 
ConAgra D1 0.51 741{2747} 310{1076} 
ConAgra D2 1.56 1002{13080} 222{2875} 
Glanbia Inc. 0.535 623{3050} 181{843} 
Cummins Family Produce 0.017 120{18.7} 1524{242} 

[Amendment #9] 
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The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period August 2010 through July 2011 are identified below. Any 
addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as 
agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a ten percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

TSS, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

AP Gem Linen 0.085 147{134} 90{83} 
Independent Meat 0.107 59{50} 54{46} 
City of Kimberly 0.266 244{538} 217{478} 
Longview Fibre 0.011 360{34} 99{10} 
ConAgra D1 0.4 453{1,736} 328{990} 
ConAgra D2 1.06 703{8,950} 143{1,804} 
Glanbia Inc. 0.539 730{3,274} 202{907} 
Cummins Family Produce 0.005 117{7} 204{11} 

[Amendment #11] 
 
 
The industrial dischargers and their respective actual average flows, BOD5, and SS 
loadings during the period August 2011 through July 2012 are identified below. Any 
addition or deletion of an industrial discharger, changes in their permitted loadings as 
agreed upon by Twin Falls, and/or a ten percent (10%) change in the loadings from any 
industrial discharger shall constitute a change in the scope of services. 
 

Industry Flow, mgd BOD5, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

TSS, mg/L 
{#’s/Day} 

AP Gem Linen 0.097 167{160} 98{94} 
Independent Meat 0.096 45{36} 40{32} 
City of Kimberly 0.253 295{626} 292{624} 
Longview Fibre 0.014 530{60} 126{14} 
ConAgra D1 0.677 642{4,080} 307{1,699} 
ConAgra D2 1.33 1033{13,102} 194{2,466} 
Glanbia Inc. 0.546 693{3,170} 186{848} 
Cummins Family Produce 
Chobani 
 

0.006 
TBD 

55{10} 
TBD 

137{20} 
TBD 

 
[Amendment #12] 
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Appendix D 
 

INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM 
 
 
D.1 Industrial Pretreatment Program Scope of Services—OMI Shall: 
 

D.1.1 Evaluate the Program annually and advise Twin Falls of changes in Federal and 
State pretreatment standards that may effect the Program. 

 
D.1.2 Conduct a survey of the industrial user base once every 3 years, and annually 

update the list of Categorical and Significant Industrial Users (CIU or SIU) 
according to the definition contained in 40 CFR 403, or the definition contained in 
the approved Program.  A technical evaluation of the need to revise local limits 
shall be performed at least once during the term of the new NPDES permit when 
issued.  Local limits revision, if necessary, may be provided as an out of scope 
service. 

 
D.1.3 Evaluate new industrial dischargers, recommend conditions and/or limitations for 

the purpose of issuing an industrial waste discharge permit, and assist in the 
preparation of the approved permit for issuance by Twin Falls.  Such permit will 
be issued within 180 days after the industry has been determined to be a CIU or 
SIU. 

 
D.1.4 Perform inspection, sampling, and laboratory testing services at the frequency 

established in 40 CFR 403, or the approved Program, whichever, is more 
stringent, for each permitted CIU or SIU to determine compliance with 
pretreatment standards and the approved Program.  Ninety (90) days prior to their 
expiration date, evaluate and recommend conditions and/or limitations for the 
purpose of renewing permits for CIUs or SIUs, and assist in the preparation of the 
approved permit for issuance by Twin Falls. 

 
D.1.5 Maintain a data management system designed to track the status of the industrial 

user inventory, discharge characteristics, and compliance in accordance with 40 
CFR 403.12(o).  Retain all records relating to Program activities for a minimum 
of three years.  

 
D.1.6 Review reports submitted by industrial user, and provide information necessary 

for Twin Falls to issue notices of violation and other enforcement actions 
according to the approved enforcement response plan for any industry not in 
compliance with 40 CFR 403 or the approved Program.  Enforcement actions by 
OMI are specifically excluded in this scope of services. 

 
D.1.7 Prepare for Twin Falls signature and submission to the appropriate regulatory 

agency, an annual report of Program activities. 
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D.2 Industrial Pretreatment Program Scope of Services – Twin Falls shall: 
 

D.2.1 Issue and receive a completed wastewater discharge survey form prior to the 
issuance of any commercial or industrial building permit. 

 
D.2.2 Issue and sign all CIU and SIU permits, notices of violations, and administer all 

appropriate enforcement actions. 
 
D.2.3 Inform OMI of changes to existing business when Twin Falls becomes aware of 

such changes. 
 
D.2.4 Submit all required reports to the appropriate regulatory agencies. 

 
D.3 Categorical and Significant Industries discharging into the collection system and 

monitored under Pretreatment Ordinance No. 2575. 
 
 

SIU/Jurisdiction  Facility Address Flow pH BOD TSS FOG 
 

Silver Creek Farms 450 South Locust Cont. 3/wk 3/wk 3/wk 2/mth 
Glanbia, Inc.  236 Washington St. S. Cont. Cont. Daily Daily 2/mth 
Lamb Weston  856 Russet  Cont. Cont. Daily Daily 2/mth 
Independent Meat Co. 2972 Orchard Dr. E. Cont. 3/wk 3/wk 3/wk NA 
Gem Linen  403 Main Ave. W. Cont. Daily Daily Daily 2/mth 
Longview Fibre Co. 348 South Park Ave. Cont. Daily Daily Daily 2/mth  
Keegans, Inc.  2570 Eldridge Ave. Cont. 3/wk 3/wk 3/wk NA 
City of Kimberly                  --------------1 wk/mth ---------------- 

 
 
Notes: 
 
Silver Creek Farms discharges Monday, Tuesday & Thursday of each week 
Keegans, Inc. disharges from November 1st through March 31st of the following year 
 
NA = not applicable, not required / Specified in permit 
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Appendix E 
 

DIRECT COST 
 
 

Item Month PTD 
 

Direct Labor $    $    
Standby Pay $    $    
Overtime $    $    
Incentive Bonuses $    $    
Benefits $    $    
Chemicals $    $    
Electric $    $    
Postage $    $    
Computer Expense $    $    
Natural Gas $    $    
Auto Lease $    $    
Uniforms $    $    
Repair Costs $    $    
Fuel $    $    
Equipment Rental $    $    
Outside Services $    $    
Books and Publications $    $    
Telephone $    $    
Vehicle Maintenance $    $    
Travel $    $    
Auto Mileage $    $    
Training $    $    
Office Supplies $    $    
Maintenance Supplies $    $    
Lab Supplies $    $    
Tools $    $    
Relocation $    $    
Miscellaneous $    $    
Total Direct Cost $    $    
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Appendix F 
 

VEHICLE DESCRIPTION 
 

 
Item Description I.D. Number 

1982 GMC Sludge Truck No. 1 
3-axle 4x6 chassis 
Rated GVW 66,000 lbs 

IGDV9E4JCV587783 

1982 GMC Sludge Truck No. 2 
3-axle 4x6 chassis 
Rated GVW 66,000 lbs 

IGDV9E4JCV587784 

1966 Chevy Flat Bed Dump Truck 
2-axle 50 series 
GVW 16,000 lbs 

C5336Z130386 

1969 Dodge Boom Truck 
2-axle 700 series 
GVW 27,500 lbs 

7786006733 

1976 Datsun ½ ton Pickup HL620826101 
1964 Cushman Truckster 

3-wheel utility vehicle 
163088 

1965 Cushman Truckster 
3-wheel utility vehicle 

164350 

1995 International Sludge Truck No. 3 
3-axle 4x6 chassis 
Rated GVW 68,000 lbs 

1HTGGAUT7SH65074 

Massy Ferguson Tractor with ½ yard bucket 9A78506 
Fiat Allis Loader 611308 
1998 Chevrolet ¾ Ton Utility Truck 4X4 1GBGK24RWZ271403 
1999 International  Sludge Truck No. 4 

3-axle 4x6 chassis 
Rated GVW 68,000 lbs  

1HTGLAHT9XH210881 

1997 International 11 CY Dump Truck 1HSHGACR7LH274453 
1993 Ford 5 CY Dump Truck 1FTYS75L7PUA02413 
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Appendix F 
VEHICLE DESCRIPTION 

    

CC# Item Description I.D. Number 

6215 Massy Ferguson 
MF40 gas wheel tractor  

9A78056 
w/manual loader w/blade 

8002 1982 GMC 
Sludge Truck #1    

1GDV9E4JCV587783 3-axle 4/6 chassis 
Rated GVW 66,000 lbs 

8003 1982 GMC 
Sludge Truck #2    

1GDV9E4JCV587784 3-axle 4/6 chassis 
Rated GVW 66,000 lbs 

9181 1995 International 
Sludge Truck #3    

1HTGGAUT7SH650374 2574 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9764 1999 International 
Sludge Truck #4    

1HTGLAHT9XH210881 2674 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9474 1999 International 
11 CY Dump Truck 

1HSHGACR7LH574453 8200 6x4 
City unit #8606 

8610 1992 Ford 
5 CY Dump Truck 

1FTYS95L9PVA02413 L-9000 
  

8607 1998 Chevrolet 
3/4 Ton Utility Truck 

1GBGK24RWZ271403 4x4 2500 
  

8611 1988 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN5OA8J5178161 Silver 
  

8612 1987 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN50R4H0224923 Red 
  

8608 Fiat Allis 
Loader 

611308 FR 10B 
  

8613 1997 Hyster 
Hyster 

G005D10417U H80xl 
  

8600 1969 Dodge 
Boom Truck 

7786006733 D700 
  

Updated:  9/20/2004 
[Amendment #3] 
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Appendix F 
VEHICLE DESCRIPTION 

    

CC# Item Description I.D. Number 

6215 Massy Ferguson 
MF40 gas wheel tractor  

9A78056 
w/manual loader w/blade 

8002 1982 GMC 
Sludge Truck #1    

1GDV9E4JCV587783 3-axle 4/6 chassis 
Rated GVW 66,000 lbs 

8003 1982 GMC 
Sludge Truck #2    

1GDV9E4JCV587784 3-axle 4/6 chassis 
Rated GVW 66,000 lbs 

9181 1995 International 
Sludge Truck #3    

1HTGGAUT7SH650374 2574 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9764 1999 International 
Sludge Truck #4    

1HTGLAHT9XH210881 2674 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9474 1990 International 
11 CY Dump Truck 

1HSHGACR7LH574453 8200 6x4 
City unit #8606 

8610 1992 Ford 
5 CY Dump Truck 

1FTYS95L9PVA02413 L-9000 
  

8607 1998 Chevrolet 
3/4 Ton Utility Truck 

1GBGK24RWZ271403 4x4 2500 
  

8611 1988 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN5OA8J5178161 Silver 
  

8612 1987 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN50R4H0224923 Red 
  

8608 Fiat Allis 
Loader 

611308 FR 10B 
  

8613 1997 Hyster 
Hyster 

G005D10417U H80xl 
  

8600 1969 Dodge 
Boom Truck 

7786006733 D700 
  

Updated:  8/17/2006 
[Amendment #5] 
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Appendix F 
VEHICLE DESCRIPTION 

    

CC# Item Description I.D. Number 

6215 Massy Ferguson 
MF40 gas wheel tractor  

9A78056 
w/manual loader w/blade 

8615 2007 International 
Sludge Truck #22    

1HTWYAHT97J552742 7600 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

8614 2007 Sterling 
Sludge Truck #20    

2FZHAZDE97AY19049 LT9500  
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9181 1995 International 
Sludge Truck #3    

1HTGGAUT7SH650374 2574 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9764 1999 International 
Sludge Truck #4    

1HTGLAHT9XH210881 2674 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9474 1990 International 
 

11 CY Dump Truck 
1HSHGACR7LH274453 8200 6x4 

City unit #8606 

8610 1992 Ford 
5 CY Dump Truck 

1FTYS95L9PVA02413 L-9000 
  

8607 1998 Chevrolet 
3/4 Ton Utility Truck 

1GBGK24RWZ271403 4x4 2500 
  

8611 1988 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN5OA8J5178161 Silver 
  

8612 1987 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN50R4H0224923 Red 
  

8608 Fiat Allis 
Loader 

611308 FR 10B 
  

8613 1997 Hyster 
Hyster 

G005D10417U H80xl 
  

8600 1969 Dodge 
Boom Truck 

7786006733 D700 
  

Updated:  8/30/2007 
[Amendment #6] 
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Appendix F 
VEHICLE DESCRIPTION 

    

CC# Item Description I.D. Number 

6215 Massy Ferguson 
MF40 gas wheel tractor  

9A78056 
w/manual loader w/blade 

8615 2007 International 
Sludge Truck #22    

1HTWYAHT97J552742 7600 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

8614 2007 Sterling 
Sludge Truck #20    

2FZHAZDE97AY19049 LT9500  
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9181 1995 International 
Sludge Truck #3    

1HTGGAUT7SH650374 2574 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9764 1999 International 
Sludge Truck #4    

1HTGLAHT9XH210881 2674 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9474 1990 International 
 

11 CY Dump Truck 
1HSHGACR7LH274453 8200 6x4 

City unit #8606 

8610 1992 Ford 
5 CY Dump Truck 

1FTYS95L9PVA02413 L-9000 
  

8607 1998 Chevrolet 
3/4 Ton Utility Truck 

1GBGK24RWZ271403 4x4 2500 
  

8611 1988 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN5OA8J5178161 Silver 
  

8612 1987 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN50R4H0224923 Red 
  

8608 Fiat Allis 
Loader 

611308 FR 10B 
  

8613 1997 Hyster 
Hyster 

G005D10417U H80xl 
  

8600 1969 Dodge 
Boom Truck (Unusable) 

7786006733 D700 
  

 2007 John Deere Utility Vehicle 4T22002880224 
 2003 International Boom Truck 1HTMLAFM63H594773 
Updated:  9/3/2008 

[Amendment #7] 
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Appendix F 
VEHICLE DESCRIPTION 

    

CC# Item Description I.D. Number 

6215 Massy Ferguson 
MF40 gas wheel tractor  

9A78056 
w/manual loader w/blade 

8615 2007 International 
Sludge Truck #22    

1HTWYAHT97J552742 7600 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

8614 2007 Sterling 
Sludge Truck #20    

2FZHAZDE97AY19049 LT9500  
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9181 1995 International 
Sludge Truck #3    

1HTGGAUT7SH650374 2574 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9764 1999 International 
Sludge Truck #4    

1HTGLAHT9XH210881 2674 6x4 
Rated GVW 64,000 lbs 

9474 1990 International 
 

11 CY Dump Truck 
1HSHGACR7LH274453 8200 6x4 

City unit #8606 

8610 1992 Ford 
5 CY Dump Truck 

1FTYS95L9PVA02413 L-9000 
  

8607 1998 Chevrolet 
3/4 Ton Utility Truck 

1GBGK24RWZ271403 4x4 2500 
  

8611 1988 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN5OA8J5178161 Silver 
  

8612 1987 Toyota 
1/2 Ton Pick up 

JT4RN50R4H0224923 Red 
  

8608 Fiat Allis 
Loader 

611308 FR 10B 
  

8613 1997 Hyster 
Hyster 

G005D10417U H80xl 
  

8600 1969 Dodge 
Boom Truck (Unusable) 

7786006733 D700 
  

 2007 John Deere Utility Vehicle 4T22002880224 
 2003 International Boom Truck 1HTMLAFM63H594773 
Updated:  10/1/2009 

[Amendment #8]
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Appendix G 
 

BASE FEE ADJUSTMENT FORMULA 
 
 









+−
oo

o E
E

M
MBFBF 20.80.  

 
where 
 

BFo = Base fee specified in Article 4.1 
 

BF = Adjusted base fee 
 

Mo = Municipal Cost Index for the month of July that is fifteen (15) months 
prior to the beginning of the period for which an adjusted Base Fee is 
being calculated. 

 
M = Municipal Cost Index for July prior to the beginning of the period for 

which an adjusted Base Fee is being calculated. 
 

Eo = Electrical rates in effect on the first day of July that is fifteen (15) 
months prior to the beginning of the period for which an adjusted Base 
Fee is being calculated. 

 
E = Electrical rates for the month of July preceding the beginning of the 

period for which an adjusted Base Fee is being calculated. 
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Appendix H 
 

INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 
 
OMI shall maintain: 
 

1. Statutory workmen’s compensation for all of OMI’s employees at the Project as 
required by the State of Idaho. 

 
2. Comprehensive general liability insurance in an amount not less than One Million 

Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limits for bodily injury and/or property 
damage. 

 
3. Automobile liability insurance for all vehicles owned by Twin Falls and operated 

by OMI under this Agreement. 
 
Twin Falls shall maintain: 
 

1. Property damage insurance for all property owned by Twin Falls and operated by 
OMI under this Agreement. Any property including vehicles not properly or fully 
insured shall be the financial responsibility of Twin Falls if not due to OMI’s 
negligence. 

 
2. Automobile liability insurance for all Owner owned vehicles including any rented 

or leased vehicles. [Amendment #2] 
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Appendix I 
 

INVENTORY OF CHEMICALS 
 
 

Sodium Hypochlorite 650 lbs. 
Liquid Caustic (50%) 1,800 gals. 
Ferrous Chloride (38%) 3,100 gals. 
Cobalt 75 lbs. 
Nickel Chloride 30 gals. 
Copper 50 lbs. 
Molybdenum 10 lbs. 
Polymer 4,500 lbs. 
  

 



Rebate/Invoice Calculation
3/14/2013

Project: TWIN FALLS
Contract Year 24

Total Contract Yr (Base Fee) 2,811,823      Amendment 11 to the 2001 agreement
Direct Cost Budget 2,304,773      Amendment 11 to the 2001 agreement
Repairs Budget 70,000           Amendment 11 to the 2001 agreement 2.12

Percentage Percentage (Rebate)/
Limits Rebatable: Invoiceable: Expenses Invoice

Direct Cost Budget less Repairs 2,234,773           100% 0% 2,142,106           (92,667)
Repairs Budget 70,000                100% 100% 96,754                26,754

2,304,773           2,238,860           

TOTAL Outstanding, due to TWIN FALLS (65,912.82)              



 1 

 
 

 
Request: 
A presentation of the City of Twin Falls’ 2012 audited financial statements.  The presentation will be made 
by Scott Hunsaker of Mahlke Hunsaker & Company, PLLC. 
 Time Estimate: 
Scott will give a brief presentation, followed by questions from the Council.  I would estimate this item 
taking approximately 10 minutes. 
Background: 
The finance team, lead by Brent Hyatt, prepared an audit plan for 2012.  We met with Susan Klein and 
Scott Hunsaker in early September of 2012 to make sure the plan was reasonable and worked for all 
involved.  Scott and Susan began field work on the City’s 2012 audit in late December.  Their work was 
completed by the end of January 2013, and statements were issued February 5, 2013.   
Budget Impact: 
There is no budget impact. 
Regulatory Impact: 
Idaho Code 67-450B states “The governing body of a local governmental entity whose annual expenditures 
(from all sources) exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) shall cause a full and complete 
audit of its financial statements to be made each fiscal year.” 
Conclusion: 
There is no action required by the City Council. 
Attachments: 
Electronic copy of the 2012 audited financial statements.  
 A copy of the statements is also available on the City’s website at www.tfid.org . 
 
 
 
 

Date:  Monday, March 18, 2013 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  Lorie Race, CFO 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

February 5, 2013 
 

City Council 
City of Twin Falls, Idaho 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho, as of September 30, 2012, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable thereof for the year then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
February 5, 2013, on our consideration of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 
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Independent Auditors’’ Report 
Page 2 
 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 
through 12 and 54 through 62 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s financial statements as a whole. The 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial 
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from 
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole.  
 
Sincerely, 

 

MAHLKE HUNSAKER & CO., pllc 
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho   
____________________________________________________ 

 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2012 

 
 
The following discussion and analysis of the City of Twin Falls’ (City) financial activities for the 
year ended September 30, 2012 is provided by management of the City.  Please read this analysis 
in conjunction with the City’s financial statements that begin on page 13. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of the following elements: 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
Government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about 
the City’s overall financial condition.  Changes in the City’s financial position may be measured 
over time by increases and decreases reported in the Statement of Net Assets.  Information on 
how the City’s net assets changed during the fiscal year is presented in the Statement of 
Activities.  Financial information for the City’s component unit, the Urban Renewal Agency of 
the City of Twin Falls is also presented. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
Fund financial statements for governmental and proprietary funds focus on individual parts of 
the City, reporting the City’s separate operations in more detail than the government-wide 
financial statements. 
 
Fiduciary Fund Statements 
The City may act as a fiduciary for the financial activity of others.  The Fiduciary Fund 
Statements are a reporting of that stewardship of monies held by the City in care for others at the 
end of the fiscal year. The City has had Fiduciary Statements in the past, but there are none this 
year. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full 
understanding of the government-wide and fund financial statements.  Note 1 to the financial 
statements provides more information on the elements of the financial statements. 
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The table below summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements. 
 
Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements 

 Government-wide 
Financial Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

Scope Entire City government and 
the City’s component unit 

Activities of the City that 
are not proprietary  

Activities of the City that 
are operated similar to 
private business 

Required 
financial 
statements 

- Statement of net assets 
- Statement of activities 
 

- Balance sheet 
- Statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes 
in fund balances 

- Statement of net assets 
- Statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in 
net assets 
- Statement of cash flows 

Accounting 
basis and  
measurement 
focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Modified accrual accounting 
and current financial 
resources focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Type of 
asset / liability 
information 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-
term 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
assets included 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-
term 

Type of 
inflow / outflow 
information 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received or 
paid 

- Revenues for which cash 
is received during or soon 
after the end of the year 
- Expenditures when goods 
or services have been 
received and payment is due 
during the year or soon 
thereafter 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received or 
paid 
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Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole 
 
Analysis of Condensed Statement of Net Assets 
 
The table below presents the City’s Condensed Statement of Net Assets as of September 30, 
2012 and 2011, derived from the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.  The assets of the 
City exceeded its liabilities (net assets) at the close of the year by $175,555,332 for 
governmental activities and by $57,381,036 for business-type activities, for a combined total of 
$232,936,368 for the primary government. Governmental activities decreased by $6,658,498 
from 2011 to 2012, while the net assets for business type activities increased $11,576,984 during 
the same period. 
 
The three components of net assets include amounts invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 
restricted; and unrestricted.  The largest component of net assets, totaling $198,104,659 at year 
end, is the investment in capital assets, net of related debt, which includes all of the sewer and 
water lines and roads of the City.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to the 
citizens and businesses in the City; consequently, these net assets are not available for future 
spending.  Restricted assets totaling $17,135,005 represent resources that are subject to external 
restrictions and other provisions on how they can be used.  The remaining balance of 
$17,696,704 is unrestricted and available to meet the ongoing obligations of the City to its 
citizens and creditors. 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Current and other assets 24,411,262    29,209,696    16,765,072   13,027,641   41,176,334     42,237,337     
Capital assets 153,880,017  155,596,113  78,468,832   71,644,927   232,348,849   227,241,040   
   Total assets 178,291,279  184,805,809  95,233,904   84,672,568   273,525,183   269,478,377   
Current liabilities 682,553         842,251         5,537,204     3,754,175     6,219,757       4,596,426       
Noncurrent liabilities 2,053,394      2,329,672      32,315,664   34,534,393   34,369,058     36,864,065     
   Total liabilities 2,735,947      3,171,923      37,852,868   38,288,568   40,588,815     41,460,491     
Net assets:
   Invested in capital assets
     net of related debt 153,880,017  155,596,113  44,224,642   34,747,495   198,104,659   190,343,608   
   Restricted 15,353,423    13,881,916    1,781,582     688,746        17,135,005     14,570,662     
   Unrestricted 6,321,892      12,155,857    11,374,812   10,947,759   17,696,704     23,103,616     
Total net assets 175,555,332  181,633,886  57,381,036   46,384,000   232,936,368   228,017,886   

Total Primary
Government

Condensed Statement of Net Assets
As of September 30

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities
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Analysis of Condensed Statement of Activities 
 
The following table presents the City’s condensed statement of activities for the fiscal year 2010-
11 and fiscal year 2011-12, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities.  Over 
time, increase and decreases in net assets measure whether the City’s financial position is 
improving or deteriorating.  The City’s total net assets increased during the fiscal year 2011-12 
by $4,918,486.  Of that total, governmental activities decreased by $6,078,554 and the net assets 
of business-type activities increased by $10,997,036.  These changes differ from those detailed 
on the previous page due to the reclassification of the Pool Fund as a governmental type fund in 
the current year. 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Program revenues

Charges for services 5,629,074        4,964,450         18,906,147     16,832,890      24,535,221      21,797,340       
Grants and contributions

Operating 5,898,413        5,764,661         -                 175,131           5,898,413        5,939,792         
Capital 668,580           1,478,780         81,463            58,969             750,043           1,537,749         

Total program revenue 12,196,067      12,207,891       18,987,610     17,066,990      31,183,677      29,274,881       
General revenues and payments

Property taxes 16,075,739      15,764,690       -                 -                  16,075,739      15,764,690       
Other taxes 196,323           189,832            -                 -                  196,323           189,832            
Investment earnings 259,959           151,341            111,004          106,459           370,963           257,800            
Other revenues 554,904           1,338,416         122,845          75,572             677,749           1,413,988         

Total general revenues 
  and payments 17,086,925      17,444,279       233,849          182,031           17,320,774      17,626,310       

Total general revenues
and payments 29,282,992      29,652,170       19,221,459     17,249,021      48,504,451      46,901,191       

Program expenses
General government 10,564,109      10,102,271       -                 -                  10,564,109      10,102,271       
Public safety 11,326,990      11,145,495       -                 -                  11,326,990      11,145,495       
Public works 4,073,657        3,961,991         -                 -                  4,073,657        3,961,991         
Culture and recreation 3,321,978        3,164,678         -                 -                  3,321,978        3,164,678         
Airport 1,380,459        1,149,725         -                 -                  1,380,459        1,149,725         
Water -                   -                   5,398,289       4,805,882        5,398,289        4,805,882         
Sewer -                   -                   4,560,436       4,928,568        4,560,436        4,928,568         
Sanitation -                   -                   2,479,909       2,480,848        2,479,909        2,480,848         
Recreation enterprises -                   -                   368,731          745,518           368,731           745,518            
Other -                   -                   111,407          91,407             111,407           91,407              

Total program expenses 30,667,193      29,524,160       12,918,772     13,052,223      43,585,965      42,576,383       
Excess (deficiency) before

gain (loss) and transfers (1,384,201)       128,010            6,302,687       4,196,798        4,918,486        4,324,808         
Transfers (5,274,297)       1,237,773         5,274,297       (1,237,773)      -                   -                   
Change in net assets (6,658,498)       1,365,783         11,576,984     2,959,025        4,918,486        4,324,808         
Beginning net assets 182,213,830    180,358,409     45,804,052     43,424,975      228,017,882    223,783,384     
Transfer to URA (90,306)            -                   (90,306)            
Ending net assets 175,555,332    181,633,886     57,381,036     46,384,000      232,936,368    228,017,886     

Total Primary
Government

Condensed Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities
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Governmental Revenues 
 
The City is heavily reliant on property taxes and shared state revenues to support governmental 
operations.  Total revenues for 2012, in the governmental funds, are comprised of property taxes 
(55%), shared state revenues are (21%), charges for services (12%), and federal grants (2%), 
with all other sources of revenue account for the remaining (10%) governmental revenues. 
 
Program Expenses and Revenue for Governmental Activities 
 
The following table presents the net costs for governmental activities.  Net program costs 
increased as compared to the prior year.  Overall program revenues contributed 39.8% to 
programs expenses, with the balance coming from general revenues, i.e. property taxes and state 
shared revenues. 
 
Program revenues for 2012 are less than in 2011 by $11,824 and Program expenses for 2012 are 
more than in 2011 by $1,143,033. 
 
The City again renewed an operating agreement for management of the City’s pool.  The City 
does not receive any revenue from the pool and has provided support for the pool with an 
allocation of governmental revenues.  Budget expenditures are kept at a level where it can keep 
the pool operational and provide it as a recreational resource for community members. During 
the year the activities of the pool were reclassified as governmental activities to better reflect the 
sources of the activities’ support. This year the pool activities are included in the culture and 
recreation function below. 
 

Less
Program Program
Expenses Revenues

2012 2012 2012 2011 2012 2011

General government 10,564,109   4,909,658     5,654,451     5,364,412      46.5% 46.9%
Fire 3,694,364     381,101        3,313,263     3,278,045      10.3% 10.4%
Police 7,632,626     785,820        6,846,806     6,722,036      10.3% 10.2%
Engineering & planning 1,384,368     744,452        639,916        803,435         53.8% 41.8%
Library 1,548,327     116,934        1,431,393     1,494,172      7.6% 8.4%
Culture & recreation 1,773,651     334,456        1,439,195     1,344,769      18.9% 12.3%
Highways & streets 2,689,289     3,240,601     (551,312)       (658,206)        120.5% 125.5%
Airport 1,380,459     1,683,045     (302,586)       (1,032,394)     121.9% 189.8%

Totals 30,667,193   12,196,067   18,471,126   17,316,269    39.8% 41.3%

Functions/Programs

as a Percentage of
Program Expenses

Net cost of Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Net Program
Costs

Program Revenues
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Program Expenses and Revenue for Business-type Activities 
 
The following table presents net income and costs for business-type activities.  Program revenues 
generated from business-type activities were generally sufficient to cover most program 
expenses.  An exception is the City’s golf activities.  In the previous year the City entered into a 
new contract leasing the golf course.  The contract reduced the City’s exposure to losses and still 
allows the City to retain enough input to assure that this asset of the City retains its value and 
continues to provide recreation services to the community. Even though the program revenues 
from this activity did not cover program expenditures in the current year, the loss is a significant 
improvement over historical averages and the golf course financial activities are trending up.  
The lease allows the City to participate in profits of its lessee/partner at a certain level.  The City 
is cautiously optimistic this level of profitability will be achieved at some point in the future.  
 
In an earlier year the City opted to offer curbside recycling as part of its sanitation services.  The 
City elected to subsidize the additional costs of that service initially.  The City has reevaluated 
that position and adjusted rates to make sanitation services self-funding. This next year will be 
the first full year that the Sanitation function has had the benefit of those increased rates. 
 
Revenues in the water fund are impacted by weather’s effect on irrigation usage, growth in the 
city, and rates.  During the current year the City finalized a new system for blending a new 
source of City water from the Pristine Springs area with other City water sources having a higher 
arsenic content. This process now assures the City’s compliance with new mandated federal 
arsenic level requirements. Bonds secured to finance the project will be repaid with an $11.15 
monthly charge to all the City water users. 
 
In the Sewer Fund the City implemented an increase in sewer rates for residential and industrial 
users.  The increase was based on historical information.  As it relates to the industrial users, that 
historical usage changed significantly.  2011-2012 saw the second greatest use by industrial users 
of wastewater services.  That increased usage along with the increased rate resulted in better than 
projected revenues in the Wasterwater Fund. 
 

Less
Program Program
Revenues Expenses

2012 2012 2012 2011 2012 2011

Water 9,194,488     5,398,289     3,796,199     3,458,825      58.7% 58.1%
Sewer 6,985,841     4,560,436     2,425,405     852,494         65.3% 85.3%
Sanitation 2,496,240     2,498,537     (2,297)           (285,719)        100.1% 113.0%
Golf 18,030          111,044        (93,014)         (84,783)          615.9% 133.0%
Pool (11,948)          106.8%
Dierkes Lk/Shoshone Fls 219,420        214,236        5,184            86,306           97.6% 71.5%
Parking 46,323          68,129          (21,806)         8,771             147.1% 86.9%
Common Area Maintenance 27,268          24,650          2,618            (9,179)            90.4% 138.3%

Totals 18,987,610   12,875,321   6,112,289     4,014,767      67.8% 77.5%

Functions/Programs

as a Percentage of
Program Revenues

Net Income (Costs) of Business-type Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Net Program
Income (Costs)

Program Expenses
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Fund Analysis 
 
Governmental Funds 
The City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $21,959,056 at 
September 30, 2012, with $11,603,770 reported as unassigned; compared to a combined ending 
fund balance of $26,324,549 at September 30, 2011.  The most dramatic change was in the 
General Fund itself.  The General Fund experienced a decrease in its fund balance of $4,845,638.  
That decrease is almost identical to the transfers out of the general fund for the year of 
$4,876,082.  The City Council made a conscience decision this year to use a portion of the 
general funds reserve balance to finance and support various construction projects in the Street 
and Wastewater Funds.  In the subsequent year the Wastewater fund has transferred back 
$2,900,000 to the General Fund after long-term financing was secured through the bonding 
process. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
The City’s proprietary funds reported combined ending net assets of $57,381,038 at September 
30, 2012, with $44,224,642 invested in capital assets (net of debt) and $11,374,814 reported as 
unrestricted.  On September 30, 2011 the fund net assets were $46,384,000, of which 
$34,747,495 was invested in capital assets (net) and $10,947,759 was reported as unrestricted. 
 
The most significant change during the year ended September 30, 2012 was in the Wastewater 
Fund, where the net assets increased by $8,362,614. The increase related largely to the 
construction of a new lift station at Rock Creek, construction of a northwest sewer line and 
improvements to the City’s wastewater treatment plant. 
 
Capital Asset Activity 
 
At September 30, 2012 the City reported, on a government wide basis, net capital assets of 
$232,348,849, a decrease of $1,716,106 for governmental activities and an increase of 
$6,823,905 for business-type activities from the previous year. Most of the major increases in 
capital assets for the government activities fell into two groups.  Assets between $20,000 and 
$100,000 which related to scheduled asset replacements due to equipment wear and 
obsolescence or significant improvements infrastructure.  In addition to the wastewater projects 
mentioned above.  The City committed resources to improvements at the airport, park 
improvements, road development on Eastland Drive, final construction costs associated with the 
arsenic project, purchase of a new public works building, and engineering costs associated with 
future projects. 
 
During the current year the City also assisted with the preparation needed to locate a new dairy 
processing facility to the City.  Chobani Idaho, Inc. (Chobani) is a private employer which 
processes milk into Greek yogurt.  Most of the financial assistance provided publically was 
provided by the Urban Renewal Agency of Twin Falls (Agency), a component unit of the City. 
That assistance will be repaid with increased taxes to be paid by Chobani. The City did enter into 
a development agreement along with the Agency and Chobani.  The City’s primary contribution 
to the agreement was a commitment of $4,000,000 toward the construction of a new northwest 
sewer trunk line.  That sewer expansion was one that the City had been planning for a number of 
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years. The City had been experiencing sewer captivity issues in the area and had developed 
work-around solutions. Chobani is a welcomed business to the area with projected employment 
levels nearing 600 and the potential for increased expansion. 
 
In its mission to provide citizens of the City the services and protections they require, the City 
maintains a substantial investment in streets, water systems, waste treatment and disposal 
structures, a pool of vehicles, and general and heavy equipment.  All of those capital assets have 
a definitive useful life and are subject to depreciation, or a decrease in value, over time.  During 
the current year that depreciation was estimated to be around $8,500,000 for the government 
funds and $1,600,000 for the business type activities.  The City needs to maintain a balance in its 
budgeting efforts to assure that this investment in capital assets is maintained at a level which 
will allow the City to fulfill its mission and still assure that those needs are met in an affordable 
way. 
 
Long-Term Debt Activity 
 
The City has no outstanding general obligation bonds. 
 
In fiscal year 2011-2012 the city incurred no new long-term debt and has no debt in the 
governmental funds, except for a liability for compensated absences.  Compensated absences 
have been included as a future obligation of the City in the amount of $1,298,029.  That 
obligation represents unused vacation pay that employees have earned and not used as well as 
hours worked that an employee has elected to defer payment for until a future period. 
 
The city made principal payments of $2,653,242 on existing debt in the enterprise funds leaving 
a balance due at September 30, 2012 of $34,244,190; this excludes $117,472 for future 
compensation issues outlined above.  Of this unpaid balance, $5,419,791 is for debt incurred on 
improvements to the sewer plant in 1995 and 1998; $3,825,529 is for debt incurred on 
improvements to the water system in 1998; and the balance of $24,998,870 is loans for the recent 
purchase of Pristine Springs and construction costs to develop it into a useable water supply for 
the City. The City elected to take advantage of low interest rates that were available and shortly 
after year end refinanced some of this existing debt as outlined in Note 15 of the financial 
statements. 
 
Economic Factors 
 
Twin Falls continues to grow but at a very modest pace.  Like the rest of the nation, residential 
construction is not as robust as it has been in the past, but it does show signs of strengthening.  
Single family building permits issued by the City for the past five years are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending  Permits Issued 
2008  233 
2009  158 
2010  159 
2011  96 
2012  151 
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As measured by the number of permits issued, commercial construction also remained relatively 
flat increasing from 18 permits issued for the last fiscal year to 21 this year. 
 
Following the national trend of some moderation in high unemployment rates, unemployment 
levels decreased within the City.  A year ago the City’s unemployment level was reported at 
8.4%.  At the end of the current year, unemployment had dropped to 6.6%.  That 6.6% was 
somewhat lower than the State and National rates.  It occurred at a time when the Idaho State 
unemployment was 7.1% and the National unemployment was 7.8%. 
 
The reduced rate of building growth has impacted the city utilities as well, with water service 
accounts only increasing from 15,757 to 15,896 between September 30, 2011 and 2012. 
 
Appraised values within the City decreased from $2,321,326,751 to $2,314,981,873. This is the 
second year the City has experienced a slight decrease in property values which is very unusual, 
but reflective of the local real estate market in general. 
 
Following is a table showing a comparison of the levy rates for 2011 and 2010. 
 

2011 Levy 2010 Levy
Rates (funded Rates (funded Percent

Taxing District 2011-12 budget) 2010-11 budget) Change
City of Twin Falls 0.006922194           0.006800067           1.8%
Twin Falls County 0.004190567           0.004045866           3.6%
Twin Falls County Ambulance District 0.000187362           0.000180899           3.6%
Twin Falls County Abatement District 0.000115022           0.000107959           6.5%
Twin Falls School District 411 0.003706993           0.002726628           36.0%
Twin Falls Highway District 0.001077720           0.001038132           3.8%
College of Southern Idaho 0.000904474           0.000872809           3.6%
   Combined 0.017104332         0.015772360         8.4%

 
 
Future Issues 
 
Significant maintenance is needed for the waste water treatment system and its collection system.  
For a number of years the City has been advised by its engineers that the system was reaching 
capacity limitations on waste water collected in the community and its transfer to the processing 
plant. City Engineers are currently evaluating the community’s future needs and the best way to 
meet any increased demand on the water and wastewater system. 
 
The City has been fortunate enough to have built up financial reserves over the years.  In the 
current year some of those reserves were used to acquire needed capital assets as opposed to 
putting the City further into debt to meet financing needs.  Looking forward, additional reserves 
may be targeted for the same use. However, to the extent that those reserves are used for capital 
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acquisitions, they will not be available for operations.  It may be possible that future budgeting 
constraints could reach a level where levels of service may be impacted. 
 
Over the years the City’s water supply vacillates between drought conditions, which frequently 
jeopardize existing water supplies and wet water years that impact water revenue. The city has 
developed a new water source with the purchase and development of the Pristine Springs area.  
However, a commitment has been made to not use that water source for meeting expanding 
needs. The City will need to monitor water supply and demand issues going forward. 
 
The City is engaged in the process of finding solutions and the appropriate balance to these 
issues and is constantly reevaluating the rate structure that is used to charge for these services. 
 
The last several years of economic downturn that is affecting most of the nation is influencing 
Idaho as well.  The State continues to discuss reduced funding in revenue areas that impact the 
City.  In the past the State has discussed reducing revenue sources it shares with the City as one 
possibility of meeting the State’s budget needs in the future.  This year the State is also 
discussing the possibility of eliminating or reducing personal property taxes paid to 
municipalities.  The City has taken a proactive approach to be able to manage any revenue 
reductions as a result of changes in levels of State funding.  Senior staff meets on a regular basis 
to monitor funding levels and make adjustments as necessary.  Items that are capital in nature 
have been rated into three categories and purchase approval is only given when needs are critical 
and funding is available.  All training and travel is subject to enhanced scrutiny and requires 
prior senior staff approval even if budgeted previously. 
 
During the year the City engage in a process of strategic planning whereby it analyzed the needs 
of the community and the role the City may have in meeting those needs.  A plan was established 
and goals were identified along with specific timelines.  Those goals will be integrated with the 
budgeting process and regularly reviewed and reevaluated to determine the best way to move 
forward. 
 
Urban Renewal Agency 
 
The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho was organized under Idaho law in 
1965 to redevelop deteriorating areas and to promote economic development. During the year a 
resolution was adopted by the Agency’s Board of Directors which established a new area the 
Agency could participate in. The area encompasses the site for the new Chobani facility and 
allows the Agency to partner in their expansion. 
 
Under governmental accounting standards the Agency is considered a component unit of the City 
so a summary of its financial information is discretely presented in the City’s financial 
statements. The Agency’s financial statements are available upon request. 
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2012

Component 
Business Unit-

Governmental Type Urban
Activities Activities Total Renewal

Assets
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,096,425$       3,001,489$     7,097,914$      6,942,471$   
  Restricted Cash 939,382            1,781,582       2,720,964        699,913        
  Investments 16,387,879       5,830,261       22,218,140      -                    
  Receivables:
    Taxes 464,613            -                      464,613           87,917          
    Fees and Services 28,194              2,227,274       2,255,468        -                    
    Intergovernmental 1,845,290         5,635              1,850,925        9,371            
    Interest 15,838              5,686              21,524             20                 
    Accounts 396,824            3,746,372       4,143,196        -                    
  Internal Balances 236,817            (236,817)         -                       -                    
  Inventory -                        403,590          403,590           -                    
  Deferred Charges -                        -                      -                       17,000          
  Land 6,694,877         11,252,387     17,947,264      2,688,889     
  Land, Buildings and Structures 17,290,672       18,753,067     36,043,739      5,065,264     
  Infrastructure 255,772,292     879,700 256,651,992    -                    
  Improvements 17,086,256       39,203,660     56,289,916      -                    
  Machinery and Equipment 15,289,231       6,956,283       22,245,514      475,000        
  Accumulated Depreciation (164,616,967)    (28,556,653)    (193,173,620)   (406,667)       
  Construction in Progress 6,363,656         29,980,388     36,344,044      11,553,589   

Total Assets 178,291,279$   95,233,904$   273,525,183$  27,132,767$ 

Liabilities
  Accounts Payable 442,294$          3,152,728$     3,595,022$      3,711,689$   
  Accrued Expenses 213,924            -                      213,924           -                    
Accrued Interest 155 015 155 015 224 053

Primary Government

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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  Accrued Interest -                      155,015        155,015          224,053      
  Deferred Revenue 624,917            -                      624,917           -                    
  Customer Deposits 156,783            183,463          340,246           -                    
  Advances on Construction -                        -                      -                       13,680,308   
  Leases, Equipment and Property Notes -                        8,906,309       8,906,309        248,843        
  Revenue Bond Payable -                        25,337,881     25,337,881      5,295,000     
  Compensated Absences 1,298,029         117,472          1,415,501        -                    
Total Liabilities 2,735,947         37,852,868     40,588,815      23,159,893   

Net Assets
  Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 153,880,017     44,224,642     198,104,659    (72,129)         
  Restricted for:
    Capital Projects 7,699,273         -                      7,699,273        -                    
    Debt Service 38,567              1,781,582       1,820,149        699,913        
    Other Purposes 7,615,583         -                      7,615,583        -                    
  Unrestricted 6,321,892         11,374,812     17,696,704      3,345,090     
Total Net Assets 175,555,332     57,381,036     232,936,368    3,972,874     

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 178,291,279$   95,233,904$   273,525,183$  27,132,767$ 

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Component
Operating Capital Business- Unit - 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type Urban 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Renewal
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General Government 10,564,109$        1,405,926$    3,057,753$     445,979 (5,654,451)$      -$                   (5,654,451)$        
Fire 3,694,364            381,101         -                     -                        (3,313,263)        -                     (3,313,263)          
Police 7,632,626            785,820         -                     -                        (6,846,806)        -                     (6,846,806)          
Engineering/Planning 1,384,368            744,452         -                     -                        (639,916)           -                     (639,916)             
Library 1,548,327            81,634           35,300 -                        (1,431,393)        -                     (1,431,393)          
Culture and Recreation 1,612,078            207,001         48                   -                        (1,405,029)        -                     (1,405,029)          
Highway and Street 2,689,289            1,003,146      2,237,455       -                        551,312            -                     551,312               
Pool 161,573               -                     127,407          -                        (34,166)             (34,166)               
Airport 1,380,459            1,019,994      440,450          222,601            302,586            -                     302,586               

Total Governmental Activities 30,667,193          5,629,074      5,898,413       668,580            (18,471,126)      -                     (18,471,126)        
Business-Type Activities:

Water 5,398,289            9,194,488      -                     -                        -                        3,796,199      3,796,199            
Sewer 4,560,436            6,904,378      -                     81,463 -                        2,425,405      2,425,405            
Sanitation 2,498,537            2,496,240      -                     -                        -                        (2,297)            (2,297)                 
Golf 111,044               18,030           -                     -                        -                        (93,014)          (93,014)               
Dierkes Lake/Shoshone Falls 214,236               219,420         -                     -                        -                        5,184             5,184                   
Parking 68,129                 46,323           -                     -                        -                        (21,806)          (21,806)               

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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g ( ) ( )
Common Area Maintenance 24,650                 27,268           -                     -                        -                        2,618             2,618                   

Total Business-Type Activities 12,875,321          18,906,147    -                     81,463              -                        6,112,289      6,112,289            
Total Primary Government 43,542,514$        24,535,221$  5,898,413$     750,043$          (18,471,126)$    6,112,289$    (12,358,837)$      

Component Unit:
Urban Renewal Agency (3,679,833)$  

General Revenues:
    Taxes:
    Property taxes, Levied for General Purposes 16,075,739$     -$                   16,075,739$        2,129,852$   
    Property taxes, Levied for Debt Service -                        -                     -                          -                    
    Franchise and Public Service Taxes 196,323            -                     196,323               -                    

    Interest and Investment Earnings 259,959            111,004         370,963               1,736            
    Miscellaneous Revenues 554,904 79,394           634,298               1,054            
Transfers (5,274,297)        5,274,297      -                          -                    

11,812,628       5,464,695      17,277,323          2,132,642     
Changes in Net Assets (6,658,498)        11,576,984    4,918,486            (1,547,191)    

Net Assets - October 1, 2011 182,213,830     45,804,052    228,017,882        5,520,065     

Net Assets - September 30, 2012 175,555,332$   57,381,036$  232,936,368$      3,972,874$   

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Fund Balance Sheets
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2012

Capital Airport Other Total
General Street Airport Improvement Construction Governmental Governmental

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,882,774$   -$                  273,584$    638,822$       181,326$      718,972$         3,695,478$       
Restricted Cash 164,756        -                    -                  32,005           363,699        378,922           939,382            
Investments 7,609,391     2,806,036     1,114,103   2,993,196      -                    1,711,486        16,234,212       
Receivables (net of allowance)

Taxes 340,651        50,434          9,224          15,027           -                    44,369             459,705            
Fees and Services -                    28,194          -                  -                     -                    -                       28,194              
Intergovernmental 943,711        382,975        42,961        415,251         -                    58,412             1,843,310         
Interest 7,347            2,712            1,077          2,899             -                    1,654               15,689              
Accounts 136,497        2,002            37,114        -                     14,833          206,378           396,824            

Due from Other Funds 2,001,623$   -                    64,458        150,509         42,721          99,779             2,359,090         
Total Assets 13,086,750$ 3,272,353$  1,542,521$ 4,247,709$    602,579$     3,219,972$     25,971,884$    

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 135,370$      25,734$        16,811$      232,029$       -$                  30,573$           440,517$          
Accrued Expenses 203,106        -                    -                  -                     -                    10,818             213,924            
Deferred Revenue 266,730        39,490          632,139      11,766           -                    34,741             984,866            
Customer Deposits Payable 156,683        -                    -                  -                     -                    100                  156,783            
Due to Other Funds -                    1,024,472     -                  53,854           295,973        842,439           2,216,738         
Total Liabilities 761,889        1,089,696     648,950      297,649         295,973        918,671           4,012,828         

Fund Balances
Nonspendable Fund Balance -                    -                    -                  -                     -                    -                       -                        
Restricted Fund Balance 5,913            -                    -                  -                     363,669        -                       369,582            
Committed Fund Balance 158,843        -                    -                  2,782,005      -                    2,800,573        5,741,421         
Assigned Fund Balance -                    2,182,657     893,571      1,168,055      -                    -                       4,244,283         
Unassigned Fund Balance 12,160,105   -                    -                  (57,063)         (499,272)          11,603,770       
Total Fund Balance 12,324,861   2,182,657     893,571      3,950,060      306,606        2,301,301        21,959,056       

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 13,086,750$ 3,272,353$  1,542,521$ 4,247,709$    602,579$     3,219,972$     25,971,884$    

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Capital Airport Other Total
General Street Airport Improvement Construction Governmental Governmental

Revenues
Property Taxes, Including Interest 11,742,238$ 1,825,203$  321,916$     570,152$       -$                     1,546,734$       16,006,243$     
Other Taxes 600,727        -                  -                   -                     -                       196,323            797,050            
Special Assessments, Including Interest -                    -                  -                   -                     -                       91,567             91,567             
Fines and Forfeitures 4,536            -                  -                   -                     -                       41,328             45,864             
Licenses and Permits 765,285        -                  -                   -                     -                       -                       765,285            
Fees and Services 1,099,629     245,183      719,411       -                     101,492           645,180            2,810,895         
Intergovernmental 1,970,627     2,237,455    343,464       1,434,886      -                       127,409            6,113,841         
Federal Grants 91,295          -                  -                   -                     319,587           41,126             452,008            
Miscellaneous 696,918        1,038,786    217,266       57,309           158                  41,428             2,051,865         
    Total Revenue 16,971,255   5,346,627    1,602,057    2,062,347      421,237           2,731,095         29,134,618       

Expenditures
Current

General Government 2,757,684     -                  -                   396,106         -                       -                       3,153,790         
Public Safety 11,410,936   -                  -                   490,979         -                       67,261             11,969,176       
Engineering 1,266,254     -                  -                   -                     -                       -                       1,266,254         
Community Development 118,115        -                  -                   -                     -                       113,207            231,322            
Culture and Recreation 1,387,822     -                  -                   414,751         -                       1,655,687         3,458,260         
Highway and Streets -                    1,271,394    -                   -                     -                       250,225            1,521,619         
Airport -                    -                  991,876       -                     279,035           -                       1,270,911         

Capital Outlay -                    4,496,363    -                   452,988         -                       -                       4,949,351         
    Total Expenditures 16,940,811   5,767,757    991,876       1,754,824      279,035           2,086,386         27,820,689       

Excess of Revenues Over
  (Under) Expenditures 30,444          (421,130)     610,181       307,523         142,202           644,709            1,313,929         

Interfund Transfers, Donotations and Other
Donation of Assets -                    -                  -                   741                -                       -                       741                  
Transfers In 1,609,817     82,681        -                   -                     52,650             66,500             1,811,648         
Transfers Out (6,485,899)    (249,534)     (367,692)      (133,247)        -                       (835,386)          (8,071,758)       
    Net Transfers and Donations (4,876,082)    (166,853)     (367,692)      (132,506)        52,650             (768,886)          (6,259,369)       

Net Change in Fund Balance (4,845,638)    (587,983)     242,489       175,017         194,852           (124,177)          (4,945,440)       

Fund Balance October 1, 2011 17,170,499   2,770,640    651,082       3,775,043      111,754           2,425,478         26,904,496       

Fund Balance September 30, 2012 12,324,861$ 2,182,657$  893,571$     3,950,060$    306,606$         2,301,301$       21,959,056$     

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Statements to Government Wide Statements

Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balances to Government Wide Net Assets at September 30, 2012

Governmental Fund Balances at September 30, 2012 21,959,056$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
    therefore are not reported in the funds. 153,548,184

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
    and therefore are deferred in the funds. 363,788              

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
    activities, such as insurance, and vehicle repairs and maintenance to
    individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
    included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 962,982

Long-term liabilities, including capitalized leases, equipment notes and related
    accrued interest, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
    are not reported in the funds. (1,278,678)          

Net Assets for Governmental Activities-per reconciliation 175,555,332$    

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
  to the Statement of Activities for the year ended September 30, 2012

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Government Funds (4,945,440)$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

G f

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
    activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over
    the life of the assets.  This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
    depreciation in the current period (1,711,448)          

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
    of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
    in government funds. 2,979                  

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
    activities, such as insurance and shop repairs and maintenance, to individual
    funds.  The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported
    with governmental activities. (6,834)                 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
    resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 2,245                  

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (6,658,498)$       

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Fund Balance Sheets

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2012

Governmental
Other Activities - 

Business- Internal
Waterworks Wastewater Sanitation Type Total Service Funds

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,418,551$     1,364,173$   96,899$          121,866$          3,001,489$   400,947$            
Investments 5,071,995       71,843          430,254          256,169            5,830,261     153,667              
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollect.)

Taxes -                      -                    -                      -                       -                    4,908                  
Fees and Services 1,209,419       783,269        231,631          2,955                2,227,274     -                          
Intergovernmental -                      5,635            -                      -                       5,635            1,980                  
Interest 4,903              69                 416                 298                   5,686            149                     
Accounts -                      3,726,742     19,274            356                   3,746,372     -                          

Inventories 403,590          -                    -                      -                       403,590        -                          
Total Current Assets 8,108,458       5,951,731     778,474          381,644            15,220,307   561,651              

Restricted Assets 846,810          934,772        -                      -                       1,781,582     
Due from Other Funds 334,217          342,199        22,830            28,713              727,959        94,464                
Fixed Assets (Net of Accum. Depreciation) 45,875,238     30,975,596   52,106            1,565,892         78,468,832   331,833              

Total Assets 55,164,723$   38,204,298$ 853,410$        1,976,249$       96,198,680$ 987,948$            

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 200,150$        2,741,086$   196,738$        14,754$            3,152,728$   1,777$                
Accrued Expenses 87,642            67,373          -                      -                       155,015        -                          
Due to Other Funds 291,121          -                    -                      673,656            964,777        -                          
Deferred Revenue -                      -                    -                      -                       -                    3,843                  
Notes Payable - Current 318,041          422,399        -                      -                       740,440        -                          
Compensated Absences 72,706            35,082          3,209              6,475                117,472        19,346                

Total Current Liabilities 969,660          3,265,940     199,947          694,885            5,130,432     24,966                

Current Liab. Payable from Restricted Assets:
Revenue Bonds Payable - Current 1,620,000       339,011        -                      -                       1,959,011     -                          
Customer Deposits Payable 179,300          2,600            -                      1,560                183,460        -                          

Total Curr. Liab. From Restricted Assets 1,799,300       341,611        -                      1,560                2,142,471     

NonCurrent Liabilities:
Notes Payable - Equipment 3,507,487       4,658,382     -                      -                       8,165,869     -                          
Revenue Bonds Payable (Net of Discounts) 23,378,870     -                    -                      -                       23,378,870   -                          

Total Non-current Liabilities 26,886,357     4,658,382     -                      -                       31,544,739   
Total Liabilities 29,655,317     8,265,933     199,947          696,445            38,817,642   24,966                

Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets, net of related debt 17,050,840     25,555,804   52,106            1,565,892         44,224,642   331,833              
Restricted 846,810          934,772        -                       1,781,582     
Unrestricted 7,611,756       3,447,789     601,357          (286,088)          11,374,814   631,149              

Total Equity 25,509,406     29,938,365   653,463          1,279,804         57,381,038   962,982              

Total Liabilities and Equity 55,164,723$   38,204,298$ 853,410$        1,976,249$       96,198,680$ 987,948$            

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Governmental
Other Activities - 

Business- Internal
Waterworks Wastewater Sanitation Type Total Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 8,984,545$     6,637,147$    2,460,651$  307,344$    18,389,687$  267,433$            
Special Assessments, Including Interest -                     -                    -                  -                  -                    169,693              
Taps, Connection and Other Fees 38,904            335                -                  -                  39,239          -                         
Miscellaneous 123,823          166,756         35,590        15,835        342,004        10,844                

Total Operating Revenues 9,147,272       6,804,238      2,496,241    323,179      18,770,930    447,970              

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Services 402,599          2,845,488      1,744,639    89,678        5,082,404     1,690                  
Personnel Expenses 1,437,174       525,145         119,519      171,952      2,253,790     216,074              
Depreciation and Amortization 526,111          983,499         7,519          89,553        1,606,682     13,416                
Utilities 799,574          29                  -                  7,889          807,492        5,288                  
Landfill Expenses -                     -                    595,166      -                  595,166        -                         
Supplies 391,098          23,554           731             10,098        425,481        19,687                
Insurance  -                     -                    -                  -                  -                    352,815              
Repairs and Maintenance 117,571          16,440           4,858          20,800        159,669        3,957                  
Vehicle Expenses 134,783          49,978           5,411          4,423          194,595        660                     
Small Equipment 139,989          (168,322)        -                  1,206          (27,127)         11,346                
Studies and Projects 193,578          -                    1,515          -                  195,093        -                         
Rental Expense 117,567          -                    -                  -                  117,567        -                         
Miscellaneous Expense 65,235            40,256           18,850        22,708        147,049        431                     
Testing and Monitoring 54,051            -                    -                  -                  54,051          -                         
Telephone -                     -                    -                  35               35                 -                         
Travel and Meetings 2,961              51                  330             184             3,526            -                         

Total Operating Expenses 4,382,291       4,316,118      2,498,538    418,526      11,615,473    625,364              

Operating Income (Loss) 4,764,981       2,488,120      (2,297)         (95,347)       7,155,457     (177,394)             

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees -                     125,118         -                  -                  125,118        -                         
Interest Income 112,256          11,107           7,889          4,238          135,490        -                         
Rent and Royalties 65,010            -                    -                  -                  65,010          -                         
Federal Grants -                     81,463           -                  -                  81,463          -                         
Intergovernmental -                     -                    -                  -                  -                    -                         
Interest Expense (1,016,000)      (244,317)        -                  467             (1,259,850)    -                         

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Exp.) (838,734)         (26,629)          7,889          4,705          (852,769)       -                         

Income (Loss) Before Interfund 
     Transfers and Contributions 3,926,247       2,461,491      5,592          (90,642)       6,302,688     (177,394)             

Interfund Transfers, Contributions and Changes:
Contribution of Assets -                     -                    -                  
Operating Transfers In 259,423          6,440,899      -                  111,747      6,812,069     220,893              
Operating Transfers Out (829,465)         (539,776)        (157,203)     (11,328)       (1,537,772)    (50,333)              

Net Transfers and Contributions (570,042)         5,901,123      (157,203)     100,419      5,274,297     170,560              

Net Income 3,356,205       8,362,614      (151,611)     9,777          11,576,985    (6,834)                

Total Net Assets, October 1, 2011 22,153,201     21,575,751    805,074      1,270,027   45,804,053    969,816              

Total Net Assets, September 30, 2012 25,509,406$   29,938,365$ 653,463$    1,279,804$ 57,381,038$  962,982$           

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Governmental
Other Activities - 

Business- Internal
Waterworks Wastewater Sanitation Type Total Service Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers 8,523,316$   2,492,232$   2,402,978$     324,121$    13,742,647$ 268,869$            
Special Assessments -                   -                   -                     -                  -                    169,693              
Payments to Suppliers (2,714,448)   (286,513)      (2,371,242)     (158,595)     (5,530,798)    (488,992)             
Payments to Employees (1,433,014)   (521,618)      (146,838)        (170,751)     (2,272,221)    (215,684)             
Other Receipts (Payments) 123,823        166,756        35,590           15,835        342,004        10,844                

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 4,499,677     1,850,857     (79,512)          10,610        6,281,632     (255,270)             

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Operating Subsidies and Transfers to 
    Other Funds (570,042)      5,901,123     (157,201)        (479,528)     4,694,352     170,560              
Other Revenue Sources - Non-Operating 65,010          206,581        -                     -                  271,591        -                         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing
    Activities (505,032)      6,107,704     (157,201)        (479,528)     4,965,943     170,560              

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Debt -                   -                  -                    
Purchase of Capital Assets (2,184,147)   (7,106,396)   -                     -                  (9,290,543)    (8,768)                
Disposals, Transfers of Capital Assets 24,886          -                   -                     815,253      840,139        -                         
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (1,865,694)   (740,995)      -                     (26,736)       (2,633,425)    -                         
Increase in Amounts Due to Other Funds -                   -                   -                     (25,651)       (25,651)         -                         
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (1,022,243)   (249,700)      -                     -                  (1,271,943)    -                         
Increase in Restricted Assets (471,138)      (621,698)      -                     -                  (1,092,836)    -                         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
    Financing Activities (5,518,336)   (8,718,789)   -                     762,866      (13,474,259)  (8,768)                

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
(Purchase) or Sale of Securities (2,703,267)   637,465        (327,123)        (256,169)     (2,649,094)    (38,396)              
Interest, Dividends and Changes in Market Value 115,136        14,652          8,506             4,394          142,688        137                     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (2,588,131)   652,117        (318,617)        (251,775)     (2,506,406)    (38,259)              

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,111,822)   (108,111)      (555,330)        42,173        (4,733,090)    (131,737)             
Balances - Beginning of the Year 5,530,373     1,472,284     652,229          79,693        7,734,579     532,684              

Balances - End of the Year 1,418,551$  1,364,173$  96,899$         121,866$    3,001,489$   400,947$           

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
    Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income 4,764,981$   2,488,120$   (2,297)$          (95,347)$     7,155,457$   (177,394)$           
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to net
  Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 526,111        983,499        7,518             89,553        1,606,681     13,416                
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Receivables, Net (195,049)      (3,824,097)   (34,842)          45,710        (4,008,278)    1,578                  
Prepaid Expenses -                   -                   -                     -                  -                    (94,464)              
Inventories 5,303           -                   -                     -                  5,303            -                         
Due From Other Funds (334,217)      (321,405)      (22,830)          (28,713)       (707,165)       -                         
Deferred Revenue -                   -                   -                     -                  -                    (142)                   
Accounts Payable (300,745)      2,520,963     258                (1,574)         2,218,902     1,346                  
Customer Deposits 29,133          250              -                     (220)            29,163          -                         
Compensated Absences 4,160           3,527           (27,319)          1,201          (18,431)         390                     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 4,499,677$  1,850,857$  (79,512)$       10,610$      6,281,632$   (255,270)$          

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES 
 

The City of Twin Falls, Idaho is a municipal corporation governed by an elected seven-member 
council. 
 
The financial statements of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles, (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the 
City’s accounting policies are described below. 
 
Financial Reporting Entity 
 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City 
and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable.  
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s 
operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government.  Each 
discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column in the 
combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the government.  Each 
blended component unit and each discretely presented component unit has a September 30 year 
end. 

 
Blended Component Unit-Twin Falls Public Library  

 
Blended component units are legally separate from the City but are so intertwined with the City that 
they are, in substance, the same as the City.  The component unit is reported as part of the City 
and blended into the appropriate fund. 
 
The Library is governed by a separate board appointed by the City Council; however, final 
responsibility relative to budget, taxing and debt remains with the City.  The Library is reported as a 
special revenue fund. 

 
Discretely Presented Component Units-Urban Renewal Agency 

 
The Urban Renewal Agency is a directly presented component unit of the City 
 
A discretely presented component unit is legally separate from the City but is financially 
accountable to the City, or its relationship with the City is such that exclusion would cause the City’s 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  Component units are reported in a separate 
column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 
The Urban Renewal Agency is responsible for rehabilitation, conservation and redevelopment of 
deteriorated properties in areas within the City’s jurisdiction.  The seven-member board is appointed 
by the City Council.  The City and the Agency have an agreement that the City will make available 
certain personnel for administrative, legal, engineering, budgeting and accounting services and 
assistance to the Agency to the extent that the City has appropriated necessary funds to provide 
such assistance. The Agency has agreed to reimburse the City annually for these costs.  The City 
has no responsibility for debt issuance of the Agency.  The Agency is presented as a governmental 
fund type. 

 
Complete financial statements for the Urban Renewal Agency may be obtained at the entity’s 
administrative offices. 

 
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

 Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities.  These statements report financial information for the City as a whole.  The primary 
government and component units are presented separately within the financial statements with the 
focus on the primary government.  Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish 
governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and City general revenues, from business-
type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers. 

 
The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues 
directly connected with the functional program.  A function is an assembly of similar activities and 
may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and 
program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity.  Program revenues include: (1) 
charges for services which report fees, fines and forfeitures, and other charges to users of the City’s 
services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including 
restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, 
construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees to developers.   
 
These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses.  Taxes and 
other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general 
revenues. 

 
 Fund Financial Statements 

 
  Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.  Major 
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with composite 
columns for non-major funds. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 

Fund Types and Major Funds 
   
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 
The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure 
for specific purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects).   

 
The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by 
proprietary or non-expendable trust funds. 

 
The capital projects funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major 
capital projects not being financed by proprietary or non-expendable trust funds. 

 
Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and 
use the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.  The City applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations.  Proprietary funds 
include enterprise funds.  Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the board has decided that 
the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for 
management accountability. 

      
Other Fund Types 
 
The City also reports the following fund types: 
 
Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or 
agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

 
Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf 
of others.  Trust funds account for assets held by the City under the terms of a formal trust 
agreement. 

 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 
  
The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP).  The City’s reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements.  The City’s reporting entity 
does not apply FASB pronouncements or APB opinions issued after November 30, 1989. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 

 
The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity 
(between or within funds).  Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses.  Proprietary 
and fiduciary fund financial statements and financial statements of City component units also report 
using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these 
statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property tax revenues are recognized in 
the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements 
are met.   
 
Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when they are both 
measurable and available.  Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay current liabilities.  The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported as 
expenditures in the year due. 
 
Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, 
interest and special assessments.  Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on 
behalf of the government are also recognized as revenue.  Other receipts and taxes become 
measurable and available when cash is received by the government and are recognized as revenue 
at that time. 
 
Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to 
accrual criteria are met.  Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 

 
Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and 
expenses related to the primary continuing operations of the fund.  Principal operating revenues for 
proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services.  Principal operating expenses are 
the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of 
capital assets.  Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial 
statements. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.  See Note 4 for information 
describing restricted assets. 
 
Budgets 
 
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.  Annual 
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue and debt service funds.  All 
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.  Project-length financial plans are adopted for all 
capital projects funds. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 

Deposits and Investments 
 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts of cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid 
short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date acquired by 
the government. 

 
State statutes authorize the City and Agency to invest any available funds in obligations issued or 
guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury, the State of Idaho, local Idaho municipalities and taxing districts, 
the Farm Credit System, or Idaho public corporations, as well as time deposit accounts and 
repurchase agreements. 
 
The City’s Investment Policy requires that investments within the portfolio be diversified in order to 
avoid risks in specific instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities. 

 
Investments are stated at fair market value, as determined by quoted market prices, except for 
certificates of deposits, which are non-participating contracts, and are therefore carried at amortized 
cost.   Idaho Code provided authorization for the investment of funds as well as to what constitutes 
an allowable investment.  The City policy allows for investment of idle funds consistent with the 
Idaho State Code 67-1210 and 67-1210A. 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the State of Idaho Local Government Investment Pool (LPIG).  
The LPIG is regulated by State of Idaho Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
Idaho.  The fair value of the City’s investments in the pool is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based on the City’s pro-rata share of the fair market value provided by the 
fund for the entire portfolio.  The LGIP is not rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. 

 
Receivables and Payables 

 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered.  These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other  
funds” or “due to other funds” on the fund balance sheets.  They are eliminated on the government-
wide financial statements.  Short–term inter-fund loans are classified as “interfund receivables 
/payables”. 

 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles for the City 
and the Agency. 
 
Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 
Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.  The costs of inventory items 
are recognized as expenditures in governmental financial statements and as expenses in 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements when used (consumption method). 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 
Restricted Assets 

 
Passenger fees collected at the City’s airport are committed for future airport expansion.  Restricted 
assets in the enterprise funds include deposit obligations and resources set aside for repayment of 
certificates of participation. 
 
Urban Renewal Agency tax increment property tax revenues are restricted first to the ongoing 
payment of revenue bonds outstanding.  When received the revenues are deposited in a separate 
account controlled by a bank trustee.  All use of the funds must be requisitioned for approval by the 
trustee before payment is made.  The amount shown as restricted cash for the Urban Renewal 
Agency in these financial statements is based on the largest principal and interest payment due. 
The payment is the required payment on August 1, 2013. 

 
Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization 

 
The City’s property, plant equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are 
stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements.  
The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets.  Proprietary 
and component unit capital assets are also reported in their respective fund and combining 
component unit’s financial statements.  Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated.  
The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $5,000 or more as purchase and construction 
outlays occur.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or 
materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.  Capital assets, including those of component 
units, are depreciated using the straight-line method.  When capital assets are disposed, the cost 
and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the 
resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations. 

 
Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows: 
 
   Land      Not depreciated    
   Buildings and Structures    20-50 
   Infrastructure           40 
   Improvements           30 
   Machinery and equipment      3-20 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects 
are constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is 
reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested 
proceeds over the same period. 

 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary funds using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
        Land            Not depreciated 
             Buildings and improvements   50 years 

                   Machinery and equipment                                      5-20 years 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 
The Urban Renewal Agency has acquired certain properties and made improvements such as 
streets, parking lots and parks in its effort to rehabilitate many areas of the City of Twin Falls.  Many 
of these parcels acquired and constructed have been contributed to the City of Twin Falls but 
certain real estate acquisitions are held by the Agency for future rehabilitation, conservation, 
redevelopment, and sale in accordance with its purpose. 
 
No depreciation has been computed or recorded in these statements for any existing buildings on 
these properties for the Agency. 

 
Fund Overdrafts 
 
The City uses a pooled cash system of cash management.  All city obligations are paid through the 
general fund.  Cash is then allocated to the other funds based on amounts received and spent.  
Some funds have investments that cover the fund overdrafts.  Also, some funds are involved in 
federal grants that the City must fund and then request reimbursement from the federal 
government. 

 
Compensated Absences 
 
It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, comp hours in 
lieu of overtime hours, and sick pay benefits. Vacation pay and comp hours are accrued when 
incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a fund liability. Vacation pay and comp hours for 
governmental funds are reported as expenditures of the related fund when paid.  Accrued vacation 
pay and comp hours of governmental funds are further recorded as liabilities in the Government 
Wide Financial Statements. 

 
 

No liability is reported for unpaid accumulated sick leave.  However, once employees reach a 
maximum sick leave accrual amount, any excess hours are accumulated in a “Retirement Account” 
and at retirement they may be converted to their dollar equivalent and used exclusively for the 
purchase of health insurance.  Retirement hour accruals and expenditures are treated the same as 
unused vacation and comp hours. 

 
Long-Term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide, proprietary, and component unit financial statements, outstanding debts 
are reported as liabilities.  Bond issuance costs, bond discounts or premiums, are capitalized and 
amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that approximates the effective 
interest method. 
 
The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other 
financing sources of the current period.  Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued  
 

Fund Equity 
 

Net Assets and Fund Balances 
 

In the government-wide financial statements, the difference between the City’s total assets 
and total liabilities represents net assets.  Net assets displays three components – invested 
in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted (distinguished between major categories of 
restrictions); and unrestricted.  Unrestricted net assets represent the net assets available for 
future operations.  

 
The City has implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions.  This Statement establishes criteria for 
classifying governmental fund balances into specifically defined classifications.  
Classifications are hierarchical and are based primarily on the extent to which the City is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the funds may be 
spent.  Application of the Statement requires the City to classify and report amounts in the 
appropriate fund balance classifications.  The City’s accounting and finance policies are 
used to interpret the nature and/or requirements of the funds and their corresponding 
assignment of nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned.  

 
Nonspendable Fund Balance - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not 
in spendable form, or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  This 
classification includes inventories, prepaid amounts, assets held for sale, and long-term 
receivables. 

 
Restricted Fund Balance – Constraints placed on the use of these resources are either 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
other governments; or are imposed by law (through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

 
Committed Fund Balance - Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes because of 
a formal action (resolution or ordinance) by the City’s highest level of decision-making 
authority, the City Council. 
 
Assigned Fund Balance – Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted 
or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes.  This intent can be 
expressed by the City Council or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to 
the City manager through the budgetary process.   
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that are available for any 
purpose.  Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued  
 
Estimates 

 
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates 
and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. It is at least reasonably possible that 
the significant estimates used will change within the next year. 
 
1. LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS 

 
On or before June 1st of each year, all agencies of the City submit requests for appropriation to the 
City’s manager so that a budget may be prepared.  The Budget is prepared by fund, function and 
activity, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested 
appropriations for the next fiscal year.  The budget includes amounts for capital expenditures but 
does not include allowances for depreciation. 

 
Before August 31, the proposed budget is presented to the City’s Council for review.  The City 
Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from or change appropriations, but may not 
change the form of the budget.  Any changes in the budget must be within the revenues and  
reserves estimated as available by the City’s manager or the revenue estimates must be changed 
by an affirmative vote of a majority of the City’s Council.  The City’s department heads may make 
transfers of appropriations within a department. 

 
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the activity level.  During the year, 
some supplementary appropriations were necessary. 
 
Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 
 
For the fund year ended September 30, 2012, expenditures exceeded appropriation in the 
Sanitation Fund by $151,611, the Parking Fund by $9,724 and the Insurance Fund by $11,146. 
Expenditures also exceed appropriations in the General Fund by $4,845,638.  This was anticipated 
by City Council, and they authorized the use of reserves to cover this. 
 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents –  
A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2012 is as follows:   

    

Reconciled Bank Accounts 1,468,536$    
State Investment Pool 1,533,278     
Certificates of Deposit 948,657        
Money Market Mutual Funds 5,840,524     
Library Operating Fund 25,931          
Petty Cash 1,952            
   Total 9,818,878     
Reported as Restricted (2,720,964)    
   Total Net Cash 7,097,914$    
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2.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS-Continued 
 
At September 30, 2012, the Urban Renewal Agency’s reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents is 
as follows: 
  
 

                 

Cash in Bank 5,243,002$  
Money-Market Bond Funds 2,399,382    
  Total 7,642,384    
Reported as Restricted (699,913)      
  Total Net Cash 6,942,471$  

 
 
The City’s reconciled bank balance is covered by $1,310,850 federal depository insurance with the 
remainder covered by collateral held by the City’s agent in the City’s name.  The reconciled bank 
balance for Urban Renewal Agency a discretely presented component unit, is covered by FDIC 
insurance of $ 250,000. 
 
Investments – The City held the following investments at September 30, 2012. 
 

       

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 595,169$          
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLM) 539,979            
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 909,200            
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 1,440,266         
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 300,633            
Corporate Obligations 18,432,893       
   Total 22,218,140$     

 
 
All investments are guaranteed by the U.S. Government except for the corporate obligations.  All 
investments were held in trust for the City in the Agents name.  The City or Agency has no 
investments in foreign currency and no exposure to foreign currency risk. 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely impact the fair value 
of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of 
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Information about the exposure of the City’s debt 
type investments to this risk, using the segmented time distribution model is as follows: 
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS-Continued 
 
 

Less Than 1-5 6-10 Over 10
Investment Fair Value 1 Year Years Years Years
FNMA 595,169$        -$             526,815$       68,354$      -$                
FHLM 539,979          18                 -                 41,366        498,595          
FFCB 300,633          -               300,633         -             -                  
GNMA 1,440,266       -               1,028             102,890      1,336,348       
FHLB 909,200          -               -                 -             909,200          
Corporate 18,432,893     4,563,630     13,869,263    -             -                  
   Total 22,218,140$   4,563,648$   14,697,739$  212,610$    2,744,143$     

Investment Maturities (in Years)

  
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.  The City’s investment policy requires a rating of A- or its equivalent 
by two or more public rating agencies at the time of purchase.  Short term credit ratings for 
commercial paper must be top tier AI/PI/FI by two of the three credit rating agencies at the time of 
purchase. The ratings of investments subject to credit risk are as follows: 
 

  

Investments subject to credit risk: Fair Value Rating

Idaho Local Government Investment Pool 1,533,278$  Not rated
Money Market Funds 5,840,524    Not rated
Corporate Bonds 1,980,785    AA+
Corporate Bonds 4,122,915    A+
Corporate Bonds 2,991,090    A
Corporate Bonds 8,832,093    A-
Corporate Bonds 506,010       BBB+
FNMA 595,169       AAA-
FHLM 539,979       AA+
FHLB 909,220       AA+
GNMA 1,440,266    AA+
FFCB 300,633       AA+

 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The City’s investment policy has limits on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer. The 
City did not have investments in any one issuer (other than State investment pools) that 
represented 5% or more of total City investments. 
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3.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS-Continued 

 
Custodial Credit Risk 

 
For deposits and investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its deposits, investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The City only conducts investment 
purchases on a delivery versus payment basis with all securities held by a safe keeper, in the City’s 
name, to eliminate custodial credit risk. 

 
 

4. RESTRICTED ASSETS 
 
Restriction on cash and cash equivalents were due to the following: 

 
2012

General Fund
  Customer or Developer Deposits 106,861$          
  Custody/Evidence Account 51,982              
  Other 5,913                
Trail Fund 40                     
Park Development Fund 293,882            
Capital Projects Funds
  Public Art Fund 32,005              
  Passenger Facility Charges Held for Lease Payments 363,699            
Enterprise Funds
  Cash within Fund to Pay Obligation of Certificates of Deposit 1,719,042         
Refundable Customer Utility Deposits 147,540            

     Total Restricted Assets 2,720,964$      

 
 
 
Restriction on cash and cash equivalents for the Urban Renewal Agency were due to the following: 

 
 

Total
Cash reserved to pay interest and principal on the revenue bonds 699,913$     
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5. TAXES RECEIVABLE, DEFERRED REVENUE, AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

 
The City of Twin Falls and its component unit, the Urban Renewal Agency, are located in Twin Falls 
County. 
 
Taxes on property are due on the 20th of December; however, they may be paid in two installments 
with the second installment due June 20.  Penalties and interest are assessed if a taxpayer fails to 
pay an installment within ten days of the installment due date. 
 
Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1, of the year for which taxes 
are levied.  After a three-year waiting period, a tax deed is issued conveying the property to the 
County with a lien for back taxes and accumulated charges.  Redemption may be made by owner 
and such persons as described by statute by paying all back taxes and accumulated penalties, 
interest and costs before sale. 

 
Taxes on personal property are collected currently.  Personal property declarations are mailed out 
annually and the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the 
Department of Taxation. 

 
Property taxes uncollected by November 30, 2012, are considered to be deferred revenue. 
 
Taxes receivable and deferred revenue as of September 30, 2012, consist of the following for the 
City: 
 
 

Fund Taxes Receivable Deferred Revenue
General 340,651$          266,730$             
Street 50,434              39,490                 
Street Lighting 2,934                2,297                   
Airport 9,224                632,139               
Library 41,435              32,444                 
Capital Improvement 15,027              11,766                 
Insurance 4,908                3,843                   
   Total 464,613$          988,709$             
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5.  TAXES RECEIVABLE, DEFERRED REVENUE, AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
- Continued 

 
Deferred revenue, per the fund balance sheets fund types and account groups, consists of the 
following: 

     Property Taxes  $    363,792 
     Prepaid Rent & Parking       624,917 
          Total   $    988,709 
 

 
Urban Renewal Agency taxes receivable and deferred revenue at September 30, 2012 consist of 
2010 property tax revenue to be collected after November 30, 2012. 

 
Amounts due from other governments at September 30, 2012, are presented as follows for the City: 

 
Fund Federal State County Local Total

General 157,149$     518,888$     147,877$    119,797$  943,711$       
Street -                  360,074       22,901        -                382,975         
Street Light -                  -                   1,183          -                1,183             
Library -                  -                   16,599        -                16,599           
Airport 39,263         -                   3,698          -                42,961           
Capital Improvement -                  408,973       6,278          -                415,251         
Liability Insurance -                  -                   1,980          -                1,980             
Pool -                  34,804         -                 -                34,804           
Historic Preservation 5,826           -                   -                 -                5,826             
Wastwater 5,635           -                   -                 -                5,635             

207,873$     1,322,739$  200,516$    119,797$  1,850,925$    

 
 
Urban Renewal Agency receivable from other governments consists of property taxes collected by 
the County prior to December 1, 2012. 
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6.  CAPITAL LEASE RECEIVABLE – URBAN RENEWAL 
 

 
On December 13, 2004, the Agency purchased the building at 621 Washington Street South in 
Twin Falls, to lease to Jayco, Inc., a major national manufacturer of recreational vehicles. 
 
The building was purchased for $2,400,000 plus expenses of $53,101.  The agency paid $82,320, 
applied the funds of a Development Block Grant of $500,000 received from the State of Idaho, and 
entered into a promissory note with D.L. Evans Bank of Twin Falls for the balance of $1,870,781.  
The note has a term of 10 years, bears interest at 4.26% per annum and monthly payments are 
$19,173. 
 
The rent due under the lease agreement is the same as monthly debt service, the term is the same 
as the note, title transfers at the end of the lease, and rents are assigned to the bank for debt 
service on the note.  These terms require the lease to be treated as a capital lease under generally 
accepted accounting principles, which give it the same characteristics as a contract of sale. 

 
 
Accordingly, the principal balance on this lease was paid in full in the current year. 
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7. FIXED ASSETS 
 
Changes in the fixed asset groups for the City for the year ended September 30, 2012, are as 
follows:    

       

Balance Balance
October 1, Additions/ Disposals/ September 30,

2011 Transfers In Transfers Out 2012

Government-wide Assets
Land 6,694,877$         -$                      -$                   6,694,877$         
Buildings and Structures 16,854,540         440,627            (4,495)            17,290,672         
Infrastructure 243,628,137       12,238,429       (94,274)          255,772,292       
Improvements 15,679,685         1,406,571         -                     17,086,256         
Machinery and Equipment 14,304,381         1,502,713         (517,863)        15,289,231         
Construction in Progress 14,375,922         4,730,758         (12,743,024)   6,363,656           
   Total 311,537,542$     20,319,098$     (13,359,656)$ 318,496,984$     

Accum. Deprec. For Govt. Wide
Buildings and Structures 5,041,645$         437,897$          (21)$               5,479,521$         
Infrastructure 136,320,872       6,693,710         -                     143,014,582       
Improvements 6,669,252           1,124,915         (1,665)            7,792,502           
Machinery and Equipment 7,909,660           838,066            (417,364)        8,330,362           
   Total Accum. Deprec. 155,941,429$    9,094,588$      (419,050)$      164,616,967$    

Business Type Activity Assets:
Land 11,252,387$       -$                      -$                   11,252,387$       
Buildings and Structures 18,925,371         -                        (172,304)        18,753,067         
Infrastructure 879,700              -                        -                     879,700              
Improvements 40,419,560         -                        (1,215,900)     39,203,660         
Machinery and Equipment 6,589,553           449,858            (83,128)          6,956,283           
Construction in Progress 20,905,260         9,118,832         (43,704)          29,980,388         
   Total 98,971,831$      9,568,690$      (1,515,036)$   107,025,485$    

Accum. Deprec. For Business Type Activities
Buildings and Structures 11,475,793$       456,950$          (57,304)$        11,875,439$       
Infrastructure 106,812              54,785              -                     161,597              
Improvements 12,155,892         864,445            (565,010)        12,455,327         
Machinery and Equipment 3,588,407           508,144            (32,261)          4,064,290           
   Total Accum. Deprec. 27,326,904$      1,884,324$      (654,575)$      28,556,653$      
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7. FIXED ASSETS - Continued 
 

Changes in the fixed asset group for the Urban Renewal Agency for the year ended September 30, 
2012, is as follows:            

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,

2011 Additions Disposals 2012

Government-wide Assets
  Construction in Progress -$                    11,553,589$      -$               11,553,589$    
  Land and Buildings 2,631,089           57,800               -                 2,688,889        
     Total 2,631,089$        11,611,389$     -$               14,242,478$   

Business Type Activities:
  Land 1,350,000$         -$                      -$                   1,350,000$      
  Buildings & Improvments 3,500,000           -                        -                     3,500,000        
  Equipment 475,000              215,264             -                     690,264           
     Total 5,325,000$        215,264$          -$                   5,540,264$     

Accumulated Depreciation
for Business-Type Activities
  Building & Improvements 116,667$            70,000$             -$                   186,667$         
  Equipment 137,500              82,500               -                     220,000           
    Total 254,167$           152,500$          -$                   406,667$        

 
 

 
 
Investments in real estate have not been allocated between land and buildings. Depreciation 
expense was charged to the governmental functions for the City as follows:  

 

  

General Government 6,651,463$       
Fire 84,052              
Police 203,665            
Library 84,693              
Culture and Recreation 216,256            
Highway and Street 378,999            
Pool 37,398              
Airport 807,470            

8,463,996         
Depreciation on Capital Assets held by the City's 
Internal Service Fund. 13,416              

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 8,477,412$       
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

Long-term liabilities consist of bonds, notes, and other indebtedness including liabilities associated 
with compensated absences. 

 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. 
 
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life 
of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable 
bond premium or discount.  

 
In the fund financial statements, government fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as 
well as bond issuance cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported 
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources. Issuance costs whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
A summary of Long-term liabilities for the City for the year ended is as follows.  Additional detailed 
information is available on the following pages. 
 

 
      
 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One year

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:

Compensated absences 1,300,616$    -$         (2,587)$          1,298,029$    -$              

Total 1,300,616$    -$         (2,587)$          1,298,029$    -$              

Business-type Activities:

Certificate of Participation
 and Revenue Bonds 27,252,699$ -$         (1,914,818)$  25,337,881$ 1,930,159$  
State Revolving Fund Loan 9,617,997      -            (711,688)        8,906,309      740,440        
Other Long-Term Liabilities 26,736            -            (26,736)          -                  -                 
Compensated Absences 135,905         -            (18,433)          117,472         -                 

Total 37,033,337    -            (2,671,675)    34,361,662    2,670,599    

Total Long-Term Liabilities 38,333,953$ -$         (2,674,262)$  35,659,691$ 2,670,599$  
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - Continued 

 
 
Business-Type Activities - Revenue Obligations 
 
In 2004, the City issued refunding certificates of participation to refund and refinance, the Water 
Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 1993 that were originally used to upgrade the City’s 
water system.   
 
Following are the outstanding certificates of participation and other obligations that the City has 
pledged income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. 

 
Certificates of participation-$3,910,000 issued August 1, 
1999, for improvements to the sewer treatment system, 
interest at 4.00% to 5.00%, payable semi-annually, 
subject to prior redemption after October 1, 2007 through 
August 2013.   
 $350,000 
 

Less: Unamortized discount       (10,989) 
Total  $     339,011 
 

Idaho Bond Bank Authority Loan Payable, Payable in 
semi-annual installments over 15 years with interest  
rates that vary from 2 to 5.1%. $ 8,560,000 
 

Less: Unamortized discount    (140,130) 
Total     8,419,870 
 

 
Idaho Bond Bank Authority Loan Payable, Payable in 
semi-annual installments over 15 years with interest  
rates that vary from 3 to 5.06%. $ 16,655,000 
 

Less: Unamortized discount        (76,000) 
Total    16,579,000 
 
Total  $ 25,337,881 

 
State Revolving Fund Loan Payable 
Division of Environmental Quality State Water Quality 
Programs, payable in semi-annual installments over 
20 years at 4%, upon project completion-Wastewater 
Treatment.   $ 5,080,780 
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 
 
 
State Revolving Fund Loan Payable 
Division of Environmental Quality State Water Quality 
Programs, payable in semi-annual installments over 20 
years at 4%, upon project completion-Water System 
Improvements.    3,825,529 
 

 
Total $ 8,906,309 

    
Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018-2022 2023-2027

Governmental Activities:
  Other long-term liabilities -$                  -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                      

Total Governmental Activities -                    -                     -                        -                     -                     -                      -                        

Business-type activities:
  Certificate of Participation 350,000        -                     -                        -                     -                     -                      -                        
     Unamortized discount (10,989)         -                     -                        -                     -                     -                      -                        
Total COP 339,011        -                     -                        -                     -                     -                      -                        

  Revenue Bonds 1,620,000     1,655,000      1,710,000         1,760,000      1,805,000      9,870,000       6,795,000         
     Unamortized discount (28,852)         (28,852)          (28,852)             (28,852)          (28,852)          (26,784)           (45,086)             
Total Revenue Bonds 1,591,148     1,626,148      1,681,148         1,731,148      1,776,148      9,843,216       6,749,914         

  State revolving fund loans 740,440        770,354         801,476            833,856         867,543         4,892,640       -                        
  Other long-term liabilities -                    -                     -                        -                     -                     -                      -                        
Total Other 740,440        770,354         801,476            833,856         867,543         4,892,640       -                        

Total Business Type 2,670,599     2,396,502      2,482,624         2,565,004      2,643,691      14,735,856     6,749,914         

Total Amounts Due 2,670,599$   2,396,502$    2,482,624$       2,565,004$    2,643,691$    14,735,856$   6,749,914$       

      
 

 
 
 
  Additional Disclosure Required by SEC Rule 15c2-12(b) (5) 

       Sewer Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 1999 
On August 4,1999, the city issued $3,910,000 Sewer Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 
1999, for the purpose of advance refunding Series 1995 Certificates to achieve a change in 
certain covenants.  (See earlier portion of Note 8 for details.) 
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 
 
Item 2 (a), Status of Certificates 

Maturity-October 1 Interest Rate Original Principal Outstanding Principal
1999 4.00% 230,000$                  -$                                   
2000 4.25% 195,000 -                                     
2001 4.50% 200,000 -                                     
2002 4.50% 210,000 -                                     
2003 4.50% 220,000 -                                     
2004 4.50% 230,000 -                                     
2005 4.50% 240,000 -                                     
2006 4.55% 250,000 -                                     
2007 4.70% 260,000 -                                     
2008 4.70% 275,000 -                                     
2009 4.75% 290,000 -                                     
2010 4.90% 305,000 -                                     
2011 5.00% 320,000 -                                     
2012 5.00% 335,000 0
2013 5.00% 350,000 350,000

Total 3,910,000$              350,000$                       
 
Item 2 (b), Proceeds Account Activity 
 
Description Amount
Proceeds from issuance of certificates 3,910,000$          
Premium 107                      
Accrued Interest 1,521                   
Issuance Costs (223,809)              
Deposit to Escrow Fund (3,687,819)           
     Balance, September 30, 1999 -$                        

 
 
Item 2 (c), Amounts on Deposit 

  There are no amounts on deposit 
 
  

Item 2 (d), Revenue and Expenditures of the System 
 
  

Year Ended September 30, 2012 
 Revenues 

 Sewer Service $     6,637,147 
 Connection Fees 335 
 Development Fees 125,118 
 Investment Income 11,107 
 Grant Revenues 81,463 
 Miscellaneous Fees          166,756 
   Total 7,021,926 
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 
 
 Expenditures 
  Personnel 525,145 
  Administration     (38,014) 
  Operation & Maintenance    2,845,488 
   Total  3,332,619       
 
  Net Available for Debt Service $  3,689,307 
 
 State Revolving Fund $     621,448 
 Certificates of Participation Services 1999        367,500 
   Total Debt Service $     988,948 
 
 Coverage Ratio              3.73 
 
There are no Continuing Disclosure Significant Events to report. 

 
Urban Renewal Agency 
 
Continuing Disclosure 
The 2005 bonds are subject to the requirements of Continuing Disclosure under S.E.C Rule 
15c2-12(b)(5). The following information is provided in compliance with this requirement. 
Additionally, these financial statements have been submitted to Wells Fargo Bank, Trustee and 
Dissemination Agent for the bonds, for placement in a nationally recognized repository.  

 
Continuing Disclosure Bond Information 
  

Maturity Interest Rate Original Principal Outstanding Principal
August 1, 2008 4.35% 955,000$               -$                               
August 1, 2010 4.60% 705,000 -                                 
August 1, 2014 4.95% 1,640,000 1,260,000                  
August 1, 2017 5.15% 1,455,000 1,455,000                  
August 1, 2022 5.45% 2,980,000 2,980,000                  

Total 7,735,000$            5,695,000$                

 
 
 
Amounts on deposit 

Revenue Allocation Fund $ 1,699,478 
Bond Fund 12 
Reserve Fund       699,913 
 Total on deposit $ 2,399,403 
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8.    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 
 
Revenue Allocation Revenues 

Property Taxes – 2011 (2012 budget & reporting period)  $ 2,079,868 
Property Taxes for prior periods  49,981 
     Total reported in Governmental Funds   $  2,129,849 
 
 

Assessed values of property within Revenue  
Allocation Area Total assessed value for 2011 $ 228,142,374 

 
Tax increment value for 2011 $ 153,034,638 
 
 
There are no Continuing Disclosure Significant Events to report. 
 

 
 

Long term debt of the Urban Renewal Agency outstanding at September 30, 2012, is as follows: 
 

Revenue Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005A, dated August 
1, 2005 and maturing August 1, 2022.  These are revenue allocation 
(tax-increment) bonds payable, both principal and interest, solely 
from the income, proceeds, revenues and funds the Agency derives 
from and in connection with the increased property taxes generated 
from the revenue allocation area as described in the bond ordinance 
and instrument.  The proceeds of the bonds provided funds to 
advance refund prior obligations issued, and establish a reserve 
fund required by terms of the issue.  The bonds are term bonds that 
require annual sinking fund deposits on August 1 each year.  Bonds 
maturing August 1, 2016 and later are subject to prior redemption 
on August 1, 2015.  The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 
4.35% to 5.45% 
 $  5,295,000 
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8.    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 
 
Promissory Note due Larry and Karen Tucker, dated June 8, 2009, 
for the purchase of real estate. This note is payable in monthly 
installments of $3,663.68, beginning August 1, 2009, including 
interest of 6.00% and matures August 1, 2019.          245,965   

 
Promissory Note due Larry McElliott, dated November 20, 2007, for 
the purchase of land. This note is payable in monthly installments of 
$1,449.96, beginning December 1, 2007, including interest of 6.00% 
and matures November 1, 2012.              2,878 

 
Total   $  5,543,843  

 
 
 

Expected annual maturities of the obligations, are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
September Total Interest Principal

2013 739,982         287,073 452,909
2014 749,715         277,840 471,875
2015 741,480         247,639 493,841
2016 742,616         221,688 520,928
2017 1,215,249      667,105 548,144

2018-2022 3,092,116      35,970          3,056,146       
Total 7,281,158$    1,737,315$   5,543,843$     

 
 
 
 

Changes in Long-Term Debt of the Agency for the year ended September 30, 2012 is as follows: 
 

09/30/11 Additions Repayments 09/30/12

Promissory note payable to Larry McElliot 19,558$           -$                   16,680$           2,878$              
Promissory note payable to Larry Tucker 676,350           -                     676,350           -                        
Promissory note payable to D.L. Evans Bank 274,238           -                     28,273             245,965            
Revenue Allocation Bond, Series 2005A 5,695,000        -                     400,000           5,295,000         
   Total 6,665,146$      -                     1,121,303$      5,543,843$       

 
    



CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 
 

 48

 9.  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions among funds, 
including expenditures and transfers of resources primarily to provide services.  The Governmental 
Fund Type and Proprietary Fund Types financial statements generally reflect such transactions as 
transfers. 
 
All City funds record payments to the Internal Service Funds as operating expenses.  The 
Proprietary Funds Types record operating subsidies as other revenue whereas the fund paying the 
subsidy records it as either an expenditure or transfer. 
 
Individual fund interfund receivable/payable balances at September 30, 2012: 

 
Interfund Interfund

Receivable Payable
General Fund 1,965,860$     -$                         
Airport 64,458            -                       
Airport Construction 42,721            295,973               
Capital Improvement 150,509          53,854                 
CDBG -                      61                        
Common Area Maintenance 3,159              -                           
Dierkes Lake/Shoshone Falls 14,026            -                           
Drug Seizure 14,378            -                           
Fireworks -                      10,437                 
Golf -                      673,655               
Historic 3,105              9,011                   
Impact Fee 62,185            -                       
Industrial Development -                      236,783               
Insurance 12,704            -                       
LID Guarantee 3,504              -                       
Parking 11,528            -                       
Payroll Clearing 35,763            -                       
Pool -                  352,227               
Sanitation 22,830            -                       
Shop Revolving 81,760            -                       
Street -                  1,024,472            
Street Light 16,512            233,920               
Trail Fund 95                   -                       
Waste Water 342,199          -                       
Waterworks 334,217          291,120               

Total 3,181,513$    3,181,513$          
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance.  
There are a few lawsuits and claims pending against the City.  The City currently is defending its 
position through its legal staff, other law firms or its insurance company if the insurance company 
acknowledges coverage. 
 
The fund is budgeted through property tax assessments and transfers from the general fund.  The 
City is insured for all risk through ICRMP (Idaho County Risk Management Program).  The annual 
deductible is $20,000. 

 
The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs, the principal of 
which are the Community Development Block Grants, FAA Airport Improvement Program and Local 
Public Works Programs which have been subjected to financial and compliance audit under Circular 
A-133.  All audits are subject to review by the granting agencies but the City does not expect any 
questioned costs as a result of review. 

 
 
11.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO 
 

The Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI) – The PERSI Base Plan, a cost sharing 
multiple-employer public retirement system, was created by the Idaho State Legislature.  It is a 
defined benefit plan requiring that both the member and the employer contribute.  The plan provides 
benefits based on members’ years of service, age, and compensation.  In addition, benefits are 
provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible member or beneficiaries.  The authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions is established in Idaho Code.  Designed as a mandatory 
system for eligible state and school district employees, the legislation provided for political 
subdivisions to participate by contractual agreement with PERSI. After 5 years of credited service, 
members become fully vested in retirement benefits earned to date.  Members are eligible for 
retirement benefits upon attainment of the ages specified for their employment classification.  For 
each month of credited service, the annual service retirement allowance is 2.0% (2.3% 
police/firefighter) of average monthly salary for the highest consecutive 42 months.   
 
PERSI issues publicly available stand alone financial reports that include audited financial 
statements and required supplementary information. These reports may be obtained from PERSI’s 
website www.persi.idaho.gov  

 
The actuarially determined contribution requirements of the City and its employees are established 
and may be amended by the PERSI Board of Trustees.  For the year ended September 30, 2012, 
the required contribution rate as a percentage of covered payrolls for members was 6.23% for 
general members and 7.65% for police/firefighters.  The employer rate as a percentage of covered 
payroll was 10.39% for general members and 10.73% for police/firefighter members.  The City 
employer contributions required and paid were $1,709,167, $1,668,948 and $1,708,061 for the 
three years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
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12.  FUND BALANCE AND NET ASSET DEFICITS 
 
Fund deficits as of September 30, 2012, which are significant, are as follows: 
 

Golf Fund- The deficit of $188,808 is due to accumulated costs exceeding revenues over a number 
of years.  The City has entered into a new lease agreement where the lessor will be responsible for 
golf course costs in the future.   
 
Street Light- The deficit of $168,414 is being reduced through excess revenues. 
 
Pool Fund – The deficit of $232,075 will be taken care of through the budget process over a period 
of years. 

 
 
13. CHANGE IN PRESENTATION 
 
The Pool Fund is presented in the current financial statements as a governmental fund.  That 
represents a reclassification from prior years when the fund was categorized as a proprietary fund.  The 
funds source of support has shifted from swimming user fees; to governmental support through a 
budgeted allocation of State Shared Revenues.  The beginning balances of the financial statements 
have been restated with the effects of the change.  
 

 
14. URBAN RENEWAL SUMMARIZED INFORMATION 
 

Year Ended
September 30, 2012

Assets 27,132,767$                   
     Total Assets 27,132,767$                   

Liabilities & Net Assets
Liabilities 23,159,893$                   
   Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets (72,129)                           
  Restricted 699,913                          
  Unrestricted 3,345,090                       
     Total Liabilities & Net Assets 27,132,767$                  

Revenues 3,009,390$                     
Expenditures 4,556,581                       
Excess (Deficiency) Revenues over
  Expenditures (1,547,191)                      

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 5,520,065                       

Fund Balance - End of Year 3,972,874$                    
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15. COMMITMENTS AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
 
City of Twin Falls 
 
On October 11, 2012, the City closed on three bond issues with the Idaho Bond Bank Authority.  
The first, with a par amount of $7,570,000, was targeted for use in the Wastewater Fund.  The 
bond proceeds will be used to finance current and recently completed construction projects for the 
collection and treatment of wastewater. 
 
The other two bonds issued with the Idaho Bond Bank Authority as the purchaser will be used to 
take advantage of interest rates that are currently lower than existing debt instruments of the City.  
Bonds with a par value of $4,030,000 and $3,070,000 were issued to refinance debt obligations to 
the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality in the Wastewater Fund and Water Fund 
respectively.  The new money bonds mature in September 15, 2027 and the refinancing bonds 
mature on September 15, 2022.  All bonds carry coupons with varying rates of interest ranging 
from 2% to 5%. 
 
The City has evaluated subsequent events through February 5, 2013, the date which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
 
 
Urban Renewal Agency 
 

Subsequent to year end the Agency closed on an interim warrant with Zion’s Bank.  The warrant in 
the amount of $28,051,000 is callable at any time and has an interest rate of 5%.  The majority of 
the proceeds were used to repay Chobani, a private Idaho corporation, funds it had advanced for 
construction projects undertaken by the Agency.  The balance of the warrant is also available for 
further construction of these same projects.  The warrant is an interim step that was designed to 
lead to long- term financing.  The Agency has passed a resolution authorizing the creation of both 
bonds and a contract to sell those long-term bonds to Zion’s Bank.  Proceeds from the bonds will 
repay the warrant.  
 

The Agency has evaluated subsequent events through February 5, 2013, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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16.  BOND COVENANT COMPLIANCE 
 

The City is subject to various covenants as a result of the various bonds and certificates of 
participation issued by the City.  During the year ended September 30, 2012, the City did not 
comply with the following covenants: 
 

      
1999 Sewer Certificates of Participation 

 
One covenant requires that the City provide no free service, including usage by the City 
departments.  During 2012, the Wastewater Fund did not bill other City departments for sewer 
service provided during the year. 
 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes, Including Penalty and Interest 11,671,966$ 11,671,966$ 11,742,238$ 70,272$       12,028,814$ 
Non-property Taxes 653,000        653,000        600,727       (52,273)        574,162        
Fines and Forfeitures 4,500           4,500           4,536           36                5,499            
Licenses and Permits 521,000        521,000        765,285       244,285       579,772        
Fees and Services 1,118,500     1,118,500     1,099,629    (18,871)        1,112,196     
Intergovernmental 1,794,343     1,794,343     1,970,627    176,284       1,859,432     
Federal Grants 73,000         73,000         91,295         18,295         86,099          
Miscellaneous 621,331        621,331        696,918       75,587         610,827        

Total Revenues 16,457,640   16,457,640   16,971,255  513,615       16,856,801   

Expenditures:
Current

General Government 2,979,710     2,979,710     2,757,684    222,026       2,662,276     
Public Safety 11,998,692   11,998,692   11,410,936  587,756       11,255,102   
Engineering 1,465,304     1,465,304     1,266,254    199,050       1,260,708     
Economic Development 153,057        153,057        118,115       34,942         120,194        
Culture and Recreation 1,470,694     1,470,694     1,387,822    82,872         1,305,154     
Total Expenditures 18,067,457   18,067,457   16,940,811  1,126,646    16,603,434   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures (1,609,817)   (1,609,817)   30,444         1,640,261    253,367        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 1,609,817     8,095,716     1,609,817    (6,485,899)   1,548,375     
Operating Transfers Out -                   (6,485,899)   (6,485,899)   -                  -                   

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,609,817     1,609,817     (4,876,082)   (6,485,899)   1,548,375     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses -$                 -$                 (4,845,638)$ (4,845,638)$ 1,801,742$   

Fund Balance, October 1st 17,170,499  15,368,757   

Fund Balance, September 30th 12,324,861$ 17,170,499$ 

2012

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Expenditures:
Data Processing 1,237,016$   1,237,016$   1,056,911$   180,105$     1,099,852$    
Council 145,698        145,698        147,270        (1,572)         145,353        
Manager 452,556        452,556        452,913        (357)            361,475        
Finance 633,377        633,377        619,108        14,269        585,321        
Attorney 179,050        179,050        173,618        5,432          176,150        
Personnel 332,013        332,013        307,864        24,149        294,125        

Total General Government 2,979,710     2,979,710     2,757,684     222,026      2,662,276     

Police 7,615,154     7,615,154     7,088,411     526,743      6,913,324     
Fire 3,717,588     3,717,588     3,610,312     107,276      3,572,650     
Inspection 325,950        325,950        371,663        (45,713)       428,856        
Animal Control 340,000        340,000        340,550        (550)            340,272        

Total Public Safety 11,998,692   11,998,692   11,410,936   587,756      11,255,102    

Engineering 1,098,222     1,098,222     922,857        175,365      906,144        
Planning and Zoning 367,082        367,082        343,397        23,685        354,564        

Total Engineering and Planning 1,465,304     1,465,304     1,266,254     199,050      1,260,708     

Economic Development 153,057        153,057        118,115        34,942        120,194        

Parks 1,037,020     1,037,020     962,133        74,887        913,967        
Recreation 433,674        433,674        425,689        7,985          391,187        

Total Culture and Recreation 1,470,694     1,470,694     1,387,822     82,872        1,305,154     

Total Expenditures 18,067,457$ 18,067,457$ 16,940,811$ 1,126,646$  16,603,434$  

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
General Fund

Statement of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 1,791,128$  1,791,128$  1,825,203$ 34,075$         1,611,936$ 
Fees and Services 250,000       250,000       245,183      (4,817)            290,442      
Intergovernmental 2,161,000    2,161,000    2,237,455   76,455           2,182,595   
Grants -                  -                  -                 -                    -                 
Miscellaneous 807,374       807,374       1,038,786   231,412         791,656      

Total Revenues 5,009,502    5,009,502    5,346,627   337,125         4,876,629   

Expenditures:
Current

Highways and Streets 1,399,548    1,399,548    1,271,394   128,154         1,206,595   
Capital Outlay 3,443,101    4,193,101    4,496,363   (303,262)        3,363,350   
Debt Service

Principal Retirement -                  -                  -                 -                    -                 
Interest -                  -                  -                 -                    -                 
Total Expenditures 4,842,649    5,592,649    5,767,757   (175,108)        4,569,945   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 166,853       (583,147)      (421,130)     162,017         306,684      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 82,681         82,681         82,681        -                    78,744        
Operating Transfers Out (249,534)      (249,534)      (249,534)     -                    (238,605)     

Total Other Sources (Uses) (166,853)      (166,853)      (166,853)     -                    (159,861)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                (750,000)$    (587,983)     162,017$       146,823$    

Fund Balances, October 1st 2,770,640   2,623,817   

Fund Balances, September 30th 2,182,657$ 2,770,640$ 

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Street Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 323,464$         323,464$    321,916$    (1,548)$        314,855$    
Fees and Services 486,538           679,055      719,411      40,356         580,655      
Intergovernmental 323,464           323,464      343,464      20,000         268,072      
Federal Grants -                       -                  -                  -                   -                  
Farm Income 26,300             26,300        33,555        7,255           30,688        
Miscellaneous 7,000               109,045      183,711      74,666         77,481        

Total Revenues 1,166,766        1,461,328   1,602,057   140,729       1,271,751   

Expenditures:
Current

Airport 799,074           1,049,074   991,876      57,198         712,731      
Total Expenditures 799,074           1,049,074   991,876      57,198         712,731      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 367,692           412,254      610,181      197,927       559,020      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                       -                  -                  -                   -                  
Operating Transfers Out (367,692)          (367,692)     (367,692)     -                   (353,643)     

Total Other Sources (Uses) (367,692)          (367,692)     (367,692)     -                   (353,643)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                     44,562$      242,489      197,927$     205,377      

Fund Balances, October 1st 651,082      445,705      

Fund Balances, September 30th 893,571$    651,082$    

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Airport Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:

Property Taxes 554,216$    554,216$      570,152$    15,936$       405,317$      
Intergovernmental 1,285,287   1,285,287     1,434,886   149,599       1,244,218     
Federal Grants -                  -                   -                  -                   102,306        
Miscellaneous or Reserves 26,500        185,240        57,309        (127,931)      26,917          

Total Revenues 1,866,003   2,024,743     2,062,347   37,604         1,778,758     

Expenditures:
Current

General Government 574,230      574,230        396,106      178,124       60,614          
Public Safety 519,377      519,377        490,979      28,398         252,769        
Culture and Recreation 318,500      443,500        414,751      28,749         201,151        
Highways and Streets 12,500        12,500          -                  12,500         14,445          

Capital Outlay 401,889      401,889        452,988      (51,099)        316,383        
Total Expenditures 1,826,496   1,951,496     1,754,824   196,672       845,362        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 39,507        73,247          307,523      234,276       933,396        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Contribution of Assets 741             741              60,938          
Operating Transfers In -                  -                   -                  -                   -                   
Operating Transfers Out (39,507)       (73,247)        (133,247)     (60,000)        (205,169)      

Total Other Sources (Uses) (39,507)       (73,247)        (132,506)     (59,259)        (144,231)      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                -$                 175,017      175,017$     789,165        

Fund Balances, October 1st 3,775,043   2,985,878     

Fund Balances, September 30th 3,950,060$ 3,775,043$   

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Capital Improvement Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Fees and Services 95,075$      95,075$      101,492$     6,417$         163,516$      
Intergovernmental -                 -                 -                  -                   20,000         
Federal Grants 1,000,000   1,000,000   319,587       (680,413)      1,011,752     
Miscellaneous 75              75              158              83                89                

Total Revenues 1,095,150   1,095,150   421,237       (673,913)      1,195,357     

Expenditures:
Current

Airport 1,147,800   1,147,800   279,035       868,765        1,056,427     
Total Expenditures 1,147,800   1,147,800   279,035       868,765        1,056,427     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures (52,650)       (52,650)       142,202       194,852        138,930        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 52,650        52,650        52,650         -                   52,650         
Operating Transfers Out -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   

Total Other Sources (Uses) 52,650        52,650        52,650         -                   52,650         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$               -$               194,852       194,852$      191,580        

Fund Balances, October 1st 111,754       (79,826)        

Fund Balances, September 30th 306,606$     111,754$      

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Airport Construction Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 8,186,511$   8,485,486$ 8,984,545$   499,059$       8,081,699$   
Taps, Connection and Other Fees 39,982          39,982        38,904          (1,078)           28,770          
Miscellaneous 92,412          92,412        123,823        31,411           100,617        

Total Operating Revenues 8,318,905     8,617,880   9,147,272     529,392         8,211,086     

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 341,865        409,311      402,599        6,712             189,718        
Personnel Expenses 1,631,196     1,631,196   1,437,174     194,022         1,414,114     
Depreciation and Amortization -                   -                 526,111        (526,111)        572,054        
Utilities 778,467        778,467      799,574        (21,107)          668,998        
Supplies 489,993        489,993      391,098        98,895           388,339        
Repairs and Maintenance 160,609        160,609      117,571        43,038           108,085        
Vehicle Expense 142,859        142,859      134,783        8,076             127,397        
Capital & Equipment 986,598        2,547,698   139,989        2,407,709      (909,331)       
Studies and Projects 32,600          218,011      193,578        24,433           983,873        
Rental Expense 122,900        122,900      117,567        5,333             117,946        
Miscellaneous Expenses 20,194          20,194        65,235          (45,041)          34,249          
Testing and Monitoring 55,000          55,000        54,051          949                44,029          
Telephone -                   -                 -                   -                    -                   
Travel and Meetings 5,500            5,500          2,961            2,539             2,001            

Total Operating Expenses 4,767,781     6,581,738   4,382,291     2,199,447      3,741,472     

Operating Income (Loss) 3,551,124     2,036,142   4,764,981     2,728,839      4,469,614     

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 62,000          62,000        112,256        50,256           89,972          
Rent and Royalties 65,000          65,000        65,010          10                 65,010          
Federal Grants -                   -                 -                   -                    -                   
Interest Expense (1,242,393)    (1,242,393)  (1,016,000)    226,393         (1,064,409)    

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp (1,115,393)    (1,115,393)  (838,734)       276,659         (909,427)       

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 2,435,731     920,749      3,926,247     3,005,498      3,560,187     

Interfund Transfers and Donations:
Donation of Assets -                   -                 -                   -                    -                   
Operating Transfers In 259,426        259,426      259,423        (3)                  247,072        
Operating Transfers Out (829,465)       (829,465)     (829,465)       -                    (792,082)       

Net Transfers and Donations (570,039)       (570,039)     (570,042)       (3)                  (545,010)       

Net Income (Loss) 1,865,692$   350,710$    3,356,205     3,005,495$    3,015,177     

Net Assets, October 1st 22,153,201   19,138,024   

Net Assets, September 30th 25,509,406$ 22,153,201$ 

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Waterworks Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 6,026,580$ 6,394,080$   6,637,147$   243,067$       5,611,424$   
Taps, Connection and Other Fees 1,500          1,500            335               (1,165)            1,455            
Miscellaneous 22,500        39,999          166,756        126,757         53,502          

Total Operating Revenues 6,050,580   6,435,579     6,804,238     368,659         5,666,381     

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 2,990,273   2,990,273     2,845,488     144,785         2,862,021     
Personnel Expenses 489,211      489,211        525,145        (35,934)          493,763        
Depreciation and Amortization -                  -                    983,499        (983,499)        981,530        
Utilities -                  -                    29                 (29)                 -                    
Supplies 20,900        20,900          23,554          (2,654)            10,709          
Repairs & Maintenance 118,300      118,300        16,440          101,860         94,041          
Vehicle Expense 48,771        48,771          49,978          (1,207)            45,747          
Capital & Equipment 987,472      7,445,870     (168,322)       7,614,192      125,788        
Studies and Projects -                  -                    -                    -                     -                    
Rental Expense -                  -                    -                    -                     -                    
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,300          2,300            40,256          (37,956)          38,677          
Telephone -                  -                    -                    -                     -                    
Travel and Meetings 1,000          1,000            51                 949                -                    

Total Operating Expenses 4,658,227   11,116,625   4,316,118     6,800,507      4,652,276     

Operating Income (Loss) 1,392,353   (4,681,046)    2,488,120     7,169,166      1,014,105     

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees 111,000      111,000        125,118        14,118           106,048        
Interest Income 20,120        20,120          11,107          (9,013)            15,481          
Interest Expense (257,701)     (275,201)       (244,317)       30,884           (276,292)       
Federal Grant -                  -                    81,463          81,463           58,969          

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp (126,581)     (144,081)       (26,629)         117,452         (95,794)         

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 1,265,772   (4,825,127)    2,461,491     7,286,618      918,311        

Interfund Transfers and Donations:
Donation of Assets -                  -                    -                    -                     -                    
Operating Transfers In -                  6,440,899     6,440,899     -                     -                    
Operating Transfers Out (539,776)     (539,776)       (539,776)       -                     (519,908)       

Net Transfers and Donations (539,776)     5,901,123     5,901,123     -                     (519,908)       

Net Income (Loss) 725,996$    1,075,996$   8,362,614     7,286,618$    398,403        

Net Assets, October 1st 21,575,751   21,177,348   

Net Assets, September 30th 29,938,365$ 21,575,751$ 

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Wastewater Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 2,769,239$   2,769,239$  2,460,651$  (308,588)$   2,179,515$   
Miscellaneous 8,000            8,000           35,590         27,590        15,614          

Total Operating Revenues 2,777,239     2,777,239    2,496,241    (280,998)     2,195,129     

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 1,707,067     1,707,067    1,744,639    (37,572)       1,699,377     
Personnel Expenses 204,528        204,528       119,519       85,009        173,497        
Depreciation and Amortization -                   -                   7,519           (7,519)         8,907            
Landfill Expenses 695,000        695,000       595,166       99,834        586,317        
Supplies 2,700            2,700           731              1,969          1,977            
Repairs and Maintenance 6,300            6,300           4,858           1,442          4,144            
Vehicle Expense 6,800            6,800           5,411           1,389          5,289            
Small Equipment -                   -                   -                   -                  99                 
Studies and Projects 2,990            2,990           1,515           1,475          1,115            
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,650            1,650           18,850         (17,200)       11,660          
Telephone -                   -                   -                   -                  -                    
Travel and Meetings 1,000            1,000           330              670             -                    

Total Operating Expenses 2,628,035     2,628,035    2,498,538    129,497      2,492,382     

Operating Income (Loss) 149,204        149,204       (2,297)          (151,501)     (297,253)       

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 8,000            8,000           7,889           (111)            6,526            
Interest Expense -                   -                   -                   -                  -                    

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp 8,000            8,000           7,889           (111)            6,526            

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 157,204        157,204       5,592           (151,612)     (290,727)       

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                   -                   -                   -                  -                    
Operating Transfers Out (157,204)      (157,204)      (157,203)      1                 (149,957)       

Net Transfers (157,204)      (157,204)      (157,203)      1                 (149,957)       

Net Income (Loss) -$                 -$                 (151,611)      (151,611)$   (440,684)       

Net Assets, October 1st 805,074       1,245,758     

Net Assets, September 30th 653,463$     805,074$      

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Sanitation Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Fund Balance Sheets
September 30, 2012

LID
Street Guarantee Library
Light Library Pool Total Bond Bond Total

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 70,083$      275,280$    -$               345,363$    14,872$    20,191$   35,063$    
Restricted Cash -                  -                  85,000       85,000        -                -               -                
Investments -                  837,050      -                 837,050      -                -               -                
Receivables (net of allowance) -                  

Taxes 2,934          41,435        -                 44,369        -                -               -                
Fees and Services -                  -                  -                 -                  -                -               -                
Intergovernmental 1,183          16,599        34,804       52,586        -                -               -                
Interest -                  809             -                 809             -                -               -                
Accounts -                  -                  -                 -                  -                -               -                

Due from Other Funds 16,512        -                  -                 16,512        3,504        -               3,504        
Deferred Charges -                  -                  -                 -                  -                -               -                

Total Assets 90,712$      1,171,173$ 119,804$  1,381,689$ 18,376$    20,191$   38,567$   

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 22,909$      5,518$        (348)$         28,079$      -$              -$             -$              
Accrued Expenses -                  10,818        -                 10,818        -                -               -                
Deferred Revenue 2,297          32,444        -                 34,741        -                -               -                
Customer Deposits Payable -                  -                  -                 -                  -                -               -                
Due to Other Funds 233,920      -                  352,227     586,147      -                -               -                
Total Liabilities 259,126      48,780        351,879     659,785      -                -               -                

Fund Balance
Nonspendable Fund Balance -                  -                  -                 -                  
Restricted Fund Balance -                  -                  -                 -                  -                -               -                
Committed Fund Balance -                  1,122,393   85,000       1,207,393   18,376      20,191     38,567      
Assigned Fund Balance -                  -                  -                 -                  
Unassigned Fund Balance (168,414)     -                  (317,075)    (485,489)     -                -               -                
Total Fund Balance (168,414)     1,122,393   (232,075)    721,904      18,376      20,191     38,567      

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 90,712$      1,171,173$ 119,804$  1,381,689$ 18,376$    20,191$   38,567$   

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Fund

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Fund Balance Sheets
September 30, 2012

Total
Other 

Historic Park Trail Impact Drug Historic Government
Preservation Develop. Fund Fee CDBG Total Seizure Downtown Fireworks Total Funds

-$                  -$              405$        263,938$     -$               264,343$    61,024$    13,179$    -$              74,203$    718,972$    
-                    293,882    40            -                   -                 293,922      -                -                -                -                378,922      
-                    137,428    -               737,008       -                 874,436      -                -                -                -                1,711,486   

-                  -                  
-                    -                -               -                   -                 -                  -                -                -                -                44,369        
-                    -                -               -                   -                 -                  -                -                -                -                -                  

5,826            -                -               -                   -                 5,826          -                -                -                -                58,412        
-                    133           -               712              -                 845             -                -                -                -                1,654          
-                    -                -               -                   -                 -                  206,378    -                -                206,378    206,378      
-                    -                95            62,185         -                 62,280        14,378      3,105        -                17,483      99,779        
-                    -                -               -                   -                 -                  -                -                -                -                -                  

5,826$          431,443$  540$        1,063,843$  -$              1,501,652$ 281,780$ 16,284$   -$              298,064$ 3,219,972$

-$                  2,178$      -$             -$                 -$               2,178$        316$         -$              -$              316$         30,573$      
-                    -                -               -                   -                 -                  -                -                -                -                10,818        
-                    -                -               -                   -                 -                  -                -                -                -                34,741        
-                    -                -               -                   -                 -                  -                -                100           100           100             

9,011            236,783    -               -                   61              245,855      -                -                10,437      10,437      842,439      
9,011            238,961    -               -                   61              248,033      316           -                10,537      10,853      918,671      

-                    -                -                   -                 -                  -                -                  
-                    192,482    540          1,063,843    -                 1,256,865   281,464    16,284      -                297,748    2,800,573   
-                    -                -                  -                  

(3,185)           -               -                   (61)             (3,246)         -                -                (10,537)     (10,537)     (499,272)     
(3,185)           192,482    540          1,063,843    (61)             1,253,619   281,464    16,284      (10,537)     287,211    2,301,301   

5,826$          431,443$  540$        1,063,843$  -$              1,501,652$ 281,780$ 16,284$   -$              298,064$ 3,219,972$

Capital Projects Fund Other Permanent Funds

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

LID
Street Guarantee Library Historic
Light Library Pool Total Bond Bond Total Preservation

Revenues
Property Taxes, Including Interest 99,979$    1,446,755$ -$                1,546,734$ -$              -$             -$            -$                 
Other Taxes 196,323    -                 -                  196,323      -                -               -                   
Special Assessments, Including Interest -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -                   
Fines and Forfeitures -               41,328        -                  41,328        -                -               -                   
Licenses and Permits -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -                   
Fees and Services -               32,886        -                  32,886        -                -               -                   
Intergovernmental -               -                 127,409       127,409      -                -               -                   
Federal Grants -               35,300        -                  35,300        -                -               5,826            
Miscellaneous -               29,561        -                  29,561        -                -               -              -                   
    Total Revenue 296,302    1,585,830   127,409       2,009,541   -                -               -              5,826            

Expenditures
Current

General Government -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              -                   
Public Safety -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              -                   
Engineering -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              -                   
Community Development -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              889               
Culture and Recreation -               1,531,502   124,178       1,655,680   -                7              7             -                   
Highway and Streets 250,225    -                 -                  250,225      -                -               -              -                   
Airport -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              -                   

Capital Outlay -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              -                   
Debt Service -                 

Principal Retirement -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              -                   
Interest -               -                 -                  -                 6               -               6             -                   

    Total Expenditures 250,225    1,531,502   124,178       1,905,905   6               7              13            889               

Excess of Revenues Over
  (Under) Expenditures 46,077      54,328        3,231           103,636      (6)              (7)             (13)          4,937            

Operating Transfers
Transfers In -               60,000        -                  60,000        -                -               -              -                   
Transfers Out 20,133      -                 815,253       835,386      -                -               -              -                   
    Net Transfers (20,133)     60,000        (815,253)      (775,386)     -                -               -              -                   

Net Change in Fund Balance 25,944      114,328      (812,022)      (671,750)     (6)              (7)             (13)          4,937            
Fund Balance October 1, 2011 (194,358)   1,008,065   579,947       1,393,654   18,382      20,198     38,580     (8,122)           

Transfer of Historic Downtown 
       to the Urban Renewal Agency -               -                 -                  -                 -                -               -              -                   

Fund Balance September 30, 2012 (168,414)$ 1,122,393$ (232,075)$   721,904$   18,376$   20,191$   38,567$  (3,185)$        

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Fund

See accountants' report.
66



City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Total
Other 

Park Trail Impact Drug Historic Government
Develop. Fund Fee CDBG Total Seizure Downtown Fireworks Total Funds

-$            -$             -$               -$                  -$               -$            -$            -$            -$            1,546,734$ 
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              196,323      
-              -               -                 -                    -                 91,567     -              -             91,567     91,567        
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              41,328        
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              -                 
-              -               610,473      -                    610,473      -              -              1,821      1,821       645,180      
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              127,409      
-              -               -                 -                    5,826          -              -              -             -              41,126        

2,542       499          8,778          -                    11,819        -              -              48           48            41,428        
2,542       499          619,251      -                    628,118      91,567     -              1,869      93,436     2,731,095   

-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              -                 
-              -               -                 -                    -                 67,261     -              -             67,261     67,261        
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              -                 

104,318   -               -                 -                    105,207      -              -              8,000      8,000       113,207      
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              1,655,687   
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              250,225      
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              -                 
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              -                 

-                 -                 
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              -                 
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              6                

104,318   -               -                 -                    105,207      67,261     -              8,000      75,261     2,086,386   

(101,776)  499          619,251      -                    522,911      24,306     -              (6,131)     18,175     644,709      

-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              6,500      6,500       66,500        
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              835,386      
-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              6,500      6,500       (768,886)     

(101,776)  499          619,251      -                    522,911      24,306     -              369         24,675     (124,177)     
294,258   41            444,592      (61)                730,708      257,158   16,284     (10,906)   262,536   2,425,478   

-              -               -                 -                    -                 -              -              -             -              -                 

192,482$ 540$        1,063,843$ (61)$              1,253,619$ 281,464$ 16,284$  (10,537)$ 287,211$ 2,301,301$ 

Capital Projects Fund Other Permanent Funds

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Proprietary Funds

Fund Balance Sheets
September 30, 2012

Dierkes Lake Common
Shoshone  Area

Golf Falls Parking Maintenance Total
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents -$               59,530$          48,929$      13,407$            121,866$    
Investments -                 256,169          -                 -                       256,169      
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollected.) -                  

Fees and Services -                 -                      -                 2,955               2,955          
Intergovernmental -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Interest -                 248                 50              -                       298             
Accounts -                 -                      356             -                       356             

Due From Other Funds -                 14,026            11,528        3,159               28,713        
Inventories -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  

Total Current Assets -                 329,973          60,863        19,521             410,357      
Restricted Assets -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Deferred Charges -                  
Fixed Assets (Net of Accum. Depreciation) 491,323     1,074,569       -                 -                       1,565,892   

Total Assets 491,323$   1,404,542$     60,863$      19,521$            1,976,249$ 

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable -$               9,950$            1,673$        3,131$             14,754$      
Accrued Expenses -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Due to Other Funds 673,656     -                      -                 -                       673,656      
Notes Payable - Current -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Compensated Absences 6,475         -                      -                 -                       6,475          

Total Current Liabilities 680,131     9,950              1,673          3,131               694,885      

Current Liab. Payable from Restricted Assets:
Revenue Bonds Payable - Current -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Customer Deposits Payable -                 -                      1,560          -                       1,560          

Total Curr. Liab. From Restricted Assets -                 -                      1,560          -                       1,560          

NonCurrent Liabilities:
Notes Payable - Equipment -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Revenue Bonds Payable (Net of Discounts) -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  

Total Non-Current Liabilities -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Total Liabilities 680,131     9,950              3,233          3,131               696,445      

Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets, net of related debt 491,323     1,074,569       -                 -                       1,565,892   
Restricted -                 -                      -                 -                       -                  
Unrestricted (680,131)    320,023          57,630        16,390             (286,088)     

Total Equity (188,808)    1,394,592       57,630        16,390             1,279,804   

Total Liabilities and Equity 491,323$   1,404,542$     60,863$      19,521$            1,976,249$ 

Business-Type Activities

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Proprietary Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Dierkes Lake Common
Shoshone  Area

Golf Falls Parking Maintenance Totals
Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services 18,029$      215,724$          46,322$      27,269$           307,344$     
Taps, Connection and Other Fees -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Miscellaneous 969             3,699               11,167        -                       15,835        

Total Operating Revenues 18,998        219,423           57,489        27,269             323,179      

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Services 11,380        56,143             1,065          21,090             89,678        
Personal Expenses 38,497        82,942             50,513        -                       171,952      
Depreciation and Amortization 40,145        49,408             -                  -                       89,553        
Utilities 2,548          4,494               -                  847                  7,889          
Landfill Expenses -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Supplies 5,161          4,893               44               -                       10,098        
Insurance  -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Repairs and Maintenance 8,697          8,715               821             2,567               20,800        
Vehicle Expenses 3,415          1,008               -                  -                       4,423          
Small Equipment 1,396          (190)                 -                  -                       1,206          
Studies and Projects -                  -                       -                  -                       
Rental Expense -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Miscellaneous Expense 87               6,824               15,651        146                  22,708        
Testing and Monitoring -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Telephone -                  -                       35               -                       35               
Travel and Meetings 184             -                       -                  -                       184             

Total Operating Expenses 111,510      214,237           68,129        24,650             418,526      

Operating Income (Loss) (92,512)       5,186               (10,640)       2,619               (95,347)       

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Interest Income -                  3,322               916             -                       4,238          
Rent and Royalties -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Federal Grants -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Intergovernmental -                  -                       -                  -                       -                  
Loss on Transfer of Assets -                  
Interest Expense 467             -                       -                  -                       467             

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Exp.) 467             3,322               916             -                       4,705          

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (92,045)       8,508               (9,724)         2,619               (90,642)       

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 111,747      -                       -                  -                       111,747      
Operating Transfers Out -                  (8,808)              -                  (2,520)              (11,328)       

Net Transfers 111,747      (8,808)              -                  (2,520)              100,419      

Net Income (Loss) 19,702        (300)                 (9,724)         99                    9,777          

Total Net Assets, October 1, 2011 (208,510)     1,394,892         67,354        16,291             1,270,027    

Total Net Assets, September 30, 2012 (188,808)$  1,394,592$      57,630$     16,390$           1,279,804$ 

Business-Type Activities

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Internal Service Funds

Fund Balance Sheets
September 30, 2012

Shop
Insurance Revolving Total

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 53,923$        347,024$  400,947$          
Investments 153,667        -                153,667            
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollect.) -                        

Taxes 4,908            -                4,908                
Fees and Services -                    -                -                        
Intergovernmental 1,980            -                1,980                
Interest 149               -                149                   
Accounts -                    -                -                        

Due From Other Funds 12,704          81,760      94,464              
Inventories -                    -                -                        

Total Current Assets 227,331        428,784    656,115            
Restricted Assets
Deferred Charges
Fixed Assets (Net of Accum. Depreciation) -                    331,833    331,833            

Total Assets 227,331$      760,617$  987,948$          

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 1,370$          407$         1,777$              
Accrued Expenses -                    -                -                        
Deferred Revenue 3,843            -                3,843                
Notes Payable - Current -                    -                -                        
Compensated Absences -                    19,346      19,346              

Total Current Liabilities 5,213            19,753      24,966              

Total Liabilities 5,213            19,753      24,966              

Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets, net of related debt -                    331,833    331,833            
Restricted -                    -                -                        
Unrestricted 222,118        409,031    631,149            

Total Equity 222,118        740,864    962,982            

Total Liabilities and Equity 227,331$      760,617$  987,948$          

Governmental Activities - 
Internal Service Funds

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Internal Service Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Shop
Insurance Revolving Total

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services -$                  267,433$      267,433$      
Special Assessments, Including Interest 169,693        -                    169,693        
Taps, Connection and Other Fees -                    -                    -                    
Miscellaneous 1,847            8,997            10,844          

Total Operating Revenues 171,540        276,430        447,970        

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Services -                    1,690            1,690            
Personal Expenses -                    216,074        216,074        
Depreciation and Amortization -                    13,416          13,416          
Utilities -                    5,288            5,288            
Landfill Expenses -                    -                    -                    
Supplies -                    19,687          19,687          
Insurance  352,815        -                    352,815        
Repairs and Maintenance -                    3,957            3,957            
Vehicle Expenses -                    660               660               
Small Equipment -                    11,346          11,346          
Studies and Projects -                    -                    -                    
Rental Expense -                    -                    -                    
Miscellaneous Expense 431               -                    431               
Testing and Monitoring -                    -                    -                    
Telephone -                    -                    -                    
Travel and Meetings -                    -                    -                    

Total Operating Expenses 353,246        272,118        625,364        

Operating Income (Loss) (181,706)       4,312            (177,394)       

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees -                    -                    -                    
Interest Income -                    -                    -                    
Rent and Royalties -                    -                    -                    
Federal Grants -                    -                    -                    
Intergovernmental -                    -                    -                    
Interest Expense -                    -                    -                    

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Exp.) -                    -                    -                    

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (181,706)       4,312            (177,394)       

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 220,893        -                    220,893        
Operating Transfers Out (50,333)         -                    (50,333)         

Net Transfers 170,560        -                    170,560        

Net Income (Loss) (11,146)         4,312            (6,834)           

Total Net Assets, October 1, 2011 233,264        736,552        969,816        

Total Net Assets, September 30, 2012 222,118$      740,864$      962,982$      

Governmental Activities - 
Internal Service Funds

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 97,118$      97,118$      99,979$      2,861$        95,717$      
Non-Property Taxes 202,515      202,515      196,323      (6,192)         189,820      
Miscellaneous & Intergovernmental -                 -                 -                 -                  -                 

Total Revenues 299,633      299,633      296,302      (3,331)         285,537      

Expenditures:
Current

Highways and Streets 279,500      279,500      250,225      29,275        271,395      
Total Expenditures 279,500      279,500      250,225      29,275        271,395      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 20,133        20,133        46,077        25,944        14,142        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                 -                 -                 -                  -                 
Operating Transfers Out (20,133)       (20,133)       (20,133)       -                  (19,174)       

Total Other Sources (Uses) (20,133)       (20,133)       (20,133)       -                  (19,174)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$               -$               25,944        25,944$      (5,032)        

Fund Balances, October 1st (194,358)     (189,326)     

Fund Balances, September 30th (168,414)$   (194,358)$   

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Street Light Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 1,420,743$ 1,420,743$ 1,446,755$ 26,012$      1,450,093$ 
Fines and Forfeits 28,000        28,000        41,328        13,328        37,895        
Fees and Services 32,500        32,500        32,886        386             32,482        
Grants -                 35,300        35,300        -                  42,660        
Miscellaneous 8,000          25,585        29,561        3,976          31,774        

Total Revenues 1,489,243   1,542,128   1,585,830   43,702        1,594,904   

Expenditures:
Current

Culture and Recreation 61,500        61,500        1,418,617   (1,357,117)  1,292,200   
Capital Outlay 1,427,743   1,480,628   112,885      1,367,743    240,467      
Total Expenditures 1,489,243   1,542,128   1,531,502   10,626        1,532,667   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                 -                 54,328        54,328        62,237        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                 -                 60,000        60,000        197,997      
Operating Transfers Out -                 -                 -                 -                  -                 

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                 -                 60,000        60,000        197,997      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$               -$               114,328      114,328$     260,234$    

Fund Balances, October 1st 1,008,065   747,831      

Fund Balances, September 30th 1,122,393$ 1,008,065$ 

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Library Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services -$              -$              -$              -$                 -$              
Miscellaneous and Reserves -                -                -                -                   -                

Total Operating Revenues -                -                -                -                   -                

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 43,000      47,000      120,002    (73,002)        54,711      
Personnel Expenses -                -                -                -                   -                
Depreciation and Amortization -                -                -                -                   37,397      
Utilities 69,900      69,900      -                69,900         86,165      
Supplies 1,000        1,000        (16)            1,016           959           
Repairs and Maintenance 7,000        7,000        3,943        3,057           7,459        
Rental Expense -                -                249           (249)             389           
Telephone -                -                -                -                   -                
Travel and Meetings -                -                -                -                   -                

Total Operating Expenses 120,900    124,900    124,178    722              187,080    

Operating Income (Loss) (120,900)   (124,900)   (124,178)   722              (187,080)   

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Intergovernmental 120,900    124,900    127,409    2,509           175,131    
Loss on Transfer of Assets -                -                
Interest Expense -                -                -                -                   -                

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp 120,900    124,900    127,409    2,509           175,131    

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -                -                3,231        3,231           (11,949)     

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                -                -                -                   -                
Operating Transfers Out -                -                (815,253)   (815,253)      -                

Net Transfers -                -                (815,253)   (815,253)      -                

Net Income (Loss) -$              -$              (812,022)   (812,022)$    (11,949)     

Net Assets, October 1st 579,947    591,896    

Net Assets, September 30th (232,075)$ 579,947$  

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Pool Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous -$               -$               -$               -$                 119$           

Total Revenues -                 -                 -                 -                   119             

Expenditures:
Debt Service

Principal Retirement -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  
Interest -                 -                 6                (6)                 -                  
Total Expenditures -                 -                 6                (6)                 -                  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                 -                 (6)               (6)                 119             

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  
Operating Transfers Out -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                 -                 -                 -                   -                  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$               -$               (6)               (6)$               119             

Fund Balances, October 1st 18,382       18,263        

Fund Balances, September 30th 18,376$     18,382$      

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - LID Guarantee Bond Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes, Including Penalty and Interest -$              -$              -$               -$                 11$          
Miscellaneous -                -                -                 -                   131          

Total Revenues -                -                -                 -                   142          

Expenditures:
Current

Culture and Recreation -                -                7                (7)                 -               
Debt Service

Principal Retirement -                -                -                 -                   -               
Interest -                -                -                 -                   -               
Total Expenditures -                -                7                (7)                 -               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                -                (7)               (7)                 142          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                -                -                 -                   
Operating Transfers Out -                -                -                 -                   -               

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                -                -                 -                   -               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$              -$              (7)               (7)$               142          

Fund Balances, October 1st 20,198       20,056     

Fund Balances, September 30th 20,191$     20,198$   

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Library Bond Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes -$                -$                -$                -$                 -$                
Federal Grants 6,000          6,000          5,826          (174)             12,000        
Miscellaneous -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  

Total Revenues 6,000          6,000          5,826          (174)             12,000        

Expenditures:
Current

Community Development 6,000          6,000          889             5,111           16,000        
Total Expenditures 6,000          6,000          889             5,111           16,000        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                  -                  4,937          4,937           (4,000)         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  
Operating Transfers Out -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                -$                4,937          4,937$         (4,000)         

Fund Balances, October 1st (8,122)         (4,122)         

Fund Balances, September 30th (3,185)$       (8,122)$       

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Historic Preservation Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous -$               -$               2,542$         2,542$         2,957$         

Total Revenues -                 -                 2,542           2,542           2,957           

Expenditures:
Current

Industrial Development -                 102,140      104,318       (2,178)          161,379        
Total Expenditures -                 102,140      104,318       (2,178)          161,379        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                 (102,140)     (101,776)      364              (158,422)      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   
Operating Transfers Out -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$               (102,140)$   (101,776)      364$            (158,422)      

Fund Balances, October 1st 294,258       452,680        

Fund Balances, September 30th 192,482$     294,258$      

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Park Development

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous -$               -$               499$            499$            -$                 

Total Revenues -                 -                 499              499              -                   

Expenditures:
Current

Trail Fund -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   
Total Expenditures -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                 -                 499              499              -                   

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   
Operating Transfers Out -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                 -                 -                  -                   -                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$               -$               499              499$            -                   

Fund Balances, October 1st 41                41                

Fund Balances, September 30th 540$            41$              

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Trail Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Fees and Services -$           -$           610,473$    610,473$     209,567$      

 Miscellaneous -             -             8,778          8,778           1,846            
Total Operating Revenues -             -             619,251      619,251       211,413        

Operating Expenses:

Public Safety -             -             -                  -                   -                    
Community Development -             -             -                  -                   -                    
Capital Outlay -             -             -                  -                   -                    

Total Operating Expenses -             -             -                  -                   -                    

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -             -             619,251      619,251       211,413        

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -             -             -                  -                   -                    
Operating Transfers Out -             -             -                  -                   -                    

Net Transfers -             -             -                  -                   -                    

Net Income (Loss) -$           -$           619,251      619,251$     211,413        

Net Assets, October 1st 444,592      233,179        

Net Assets, September 30th 1,063,843$ 444,592$      

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Impact Fees

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Federal Grants -$           -$             -$             -$                 332,722$      

 Miscellaneous -             -               -               -                   -                    
Total Operating Revenues -             -               -               -                   332,722        

Operating Expenses:

Community Development -             -               -               -                   332,783        
Total Operating Expenses -             -               -               -                   332,783        

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -             -               -               -                   (61)                

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -             -               -               -                   -                    
Operating Transfers Out -             -               -               -                   -                    

Net Transfers -             -               -               -                   -                    

Net Income (Loss) -$           -$             -               -$                 (61)                

Net Assets, October 1st (61)           -                    

Net Assets, September 30th (61)$         (61)$              

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - CDBG

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Special Assessments, Including Interest -$                -$            91,567$   91,567$       93,964$   
Miscellaneous and Reserves 84,800        84,800    -               (84,800)        -               

Total Operating Revenues 84,800        84,800    91,567     6,767           93,964     

Operating Expenses:
Public Safety 84,800        84,800    67,261     17,539         83,740     

Total Operating Expenses 84,800        84,800    67,261     17,539         83,740     

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -                  -              24,306     24,306         10,224     

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                  -              -               -                   -               
Operating Transfers Out -                  -              -               -                   -               

Net Transfers -                  -              -               -                   -               

Net Income (Loss) -$                -$            24,306     24,306$       10,224     

Net Assets, October 1st 257,158   246,934   

Net Assets, September 30th 281,464$ 257,158$ 

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Drug Seizure Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Special Assessments, Including Interest -$             -$             -$             -$                 -$              
Miscellaneous -               -               -               -                   -                

Total Operating Revenues -               -               -               -                   -                

Operating Expenses:
Community Development -               -               -               -                   -                

Total Operating Expenses -               -               -               -                   -                

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -               -               -               -                   -                

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -               -               -               -                   -                
Operating Transfers Out -               -               -               -                   -                

Net Transfers -               -               -               -                   -                

Net Income (Loss) -$             -$             -               -$                 -                

Net Assets, October 1st 16,284      16,284      

Net Assets, September 30th 16,284$    16,284$    

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Historic Downtown Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$            -$            -$              -$                 -$              
Miscellaneous and Permits 1,500      1,500      1,869        369              7,232        

Total Operating Revenues 1,500      1,500      1,869        369              7,232        

Operating Expenses:
Community Development 8,000      8,000      8,000        -                   18,317      

Total Operating Expenses 8,000      8,000      8,000        -                   18,317      

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (6,500)     (6,500)     (6,131)       369              (11,085)     

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 6,500      6,500      6,500        -                   -                
Operating Transfers Out -              -              -                -                   -                

Net Transfers 6,500      6,500      6,500        -                   -                

Net Income (Loss) -$            -$            369           369$            (11,085)     

Net Assets, October 1st (10,906)     179           

Net Assets, September 30th (10,537)$   (10,906)$   

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Fireworks Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 17,000$        17,000$      18,029$        1,029$         257,120$      
Miscellaneous 48,246          48,246        969               (47,277)        2,909            

Total Operating Revenues 65,246          65,246        18,998          (46,248)        260,029        

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 9,900            11,300        11,380          (80)               50,698          
Personnel Expenses 74,378          81,878        38,497 43,381         139,601        
Depreciation and Amortization -                    -                  40,145          (40,145)        41,131          
Utilities 3,200            3,200          2,548            652              14,027          
Supplies 2,850            5,319          5,161            158              29,083          
Repairs and Maintenance 4,500            9,000          8,697            303              24,376          
Vehicle Expense 2,600            3,600          3,415            185              27,064          
Small Equipment -                    61,871        1,396            60,475         14,451          
Studies and Projects -                    -                  -                    -                   -                    
Rental Expense 150               150             -                    150              -                    
Miscellaneous Expenses 525               525             87                 438              1,151            
Telephone -                    -                  -                    -                   -                    
Travel and Meetings 150               150             184               (34)               765               

Total Operating Expenses 98,253          176,993      111,510        65,483         342,347        

Operating Income (Loss) (33,007)         (111,747)     (92,512)         19,235         (82,318)         

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -                    -                  -                    -                   -                    
Interest Expense -                    -                  467               467              443               

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp -                    -                  467               467              443               

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (33,007)         (111,747)     (92,045)         19,702         (81,875)         

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 33,007          111,747      111,747        -                   7,172            
Operating Transfers Out -                    -                  -                    -                   (21,681)         

Net Transfers 33,007          111,747      111,747        -                   (14,509)         

Net Income (Loss) -$                  -$                19,702          19,702$       (96,384)         

Net Assets, October 1st (208,510)       (112,126)       

Net Assets, September 30th (188,808)$     (208,510)$     

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Golf Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 180,500$    180,500$    215,724$    35,224$       292,277$    
Miscellaneous and Reserves -                  62,500        3,699          (58,801)        12,687        

Total Operating Revenues 180,500      243,000      219,423      (23,577)        304,964      

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 60,800        60,800        56,143        4,657           63,590        
Personnel Expenses 71,816        71,816        82,942        (11,126)        72,394        
Depreciation and Amortization -                  -                  49,408        (49,408)        45,703        
Utilities 4,000          4,000          4,494          (494)             3,909          
Supplies 8,000          8,000          4,893          3,107           11,354        
Repairs and Maintenance 8,000          8,000          8,715          (715)             4,144          
Vehicle Expense 1,000          1,000          1,008          (8)                 910             
Small Equipment 13,176        75,676        (190)            75,866         13,040        
Miscellaneous Expenses 6,500          6,500          6,824          (324)             1,492          
Telephone -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  

Total Operating Expenses 173,292      235,792      214,237      21,555         216,536      

Operating Income (Loss) 7,208          7,208          5,186          (2,022)          88,428        

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 1,600          1,600          3,322          1,722           2,843          
Interest Expense -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) 1,600          1,600          3,322          1,722           2,843          

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 8,808          8,808          8,508          (300)             91,271        

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  
Operating Transfers Out (8,808)         (8,808)         (8,808)         -                   (8,389)         

Net Transfers (8,808)         (8,808)         (8,808)         -                   (8,389)         

Net Income (Loss) -$                -$                (300)            (300)$           82,882        

Net Assets, October 1st 1,394,892   1,312,010   

Net Assets, September 30th 1,394,592$ 1,394,892$ 

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Dierkes Lake/Shoshone Falls Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 63,800$  63,800$  46,322$ (17,478)$      67,034$ 
Miscellaneous -             -              11,167   11,167         180        

Total Operating Revenues 63,800    63,800    57,489   (6,311)          67,214   

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 1,100      1,100      1,065     35                1,030     
Personnel Expenses 56,580    56,580    50,513   6,067           55,554   
Depreciation and Amortization -             -              -             -                   813        
Supplies 50           50           44          6                  26          
Repairs and Maintenance 6,070      6,070      821        5,249           220        
Miscellaneous Expenses -             -              15,651   (15,651)        520        
Telelphone 300         300         35          265              -             
Travel -             -              -             -                   100        

Total Operating Expenses 64,100    64,100    68,129   (4,029)          58,263   

Operating Income (Loss) (300)       (300)        (10,640)  (10,340)        8,951     

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 300         300         916        616              272        
Interest Expense -             -              -             -                   -             

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp 300         300         916        616              272        

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -             -              (9,724)    (9,724)          9,223     

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -             -              -             -                   -             
Operating Transfers Out -             -              -             -                   -             

Net Transfers -             -              -             -                   -             

Net Income (Loss) -$           -$            (9,724)    (9,724)$        9,223     

Net Assets, October 1st 67,354   58,131   

Net Assets, September 30th 57,630$ 67,354$ 

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Parking Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 31,420$  31,420$ 27,269$ (4,151)$        23,964$  
Miscellaneous -             -             -            -                   -              

Total Operating Revenues 31,420    31,420   27,269   (4,151)          23,964    

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 27,400    27,400   21,090   6,310           19,695    
Personnel Expenses -             -             -            -                   -              
Depreciation and Amortization -             -             -            -                   -              
Utilities 1,000      1,000     847        153              725         
Supplies -             -             -            -                   -              
Repairs and Maintenance 500         500        2,567     (2,067)          1,064      
Vehicle Expense -             -             -            -                   -              
Miscellaneous Expenses -             -             146        (146)             127         
Telephone -             -             -            -                   -              

Total Operating Expenses 28,900    28,900   24,650   4,250           21,611    

Operating Income (Loss) 2,520      2,520     2,619     99                2,353      

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -             -             -            -                   -              
Interest Expense -             -             -            -                   -              

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp -             -             -            -                   -              

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 2,520      2,520     2,619     99                2,353      

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -             -             -            -                   -              
Operating Transfers Out (2,520)    (2,520)    (2,520)   -                   -              

Net Transfers (2,520)    (2,520)    (2,520)   -                   -              

Net Income (Loss) -$           -$           99          99$              2,353      

Net Assets, October 1st 16,291   13,938    

Net Assets, September 30th 16,390$ 16,291$  

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Common Area Maintenance

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Special Assessments, Including Interest 166,120$      166,120$    169,693$    3,573$        177,116$      
Miscellaneous 1,350            1,350          1,847          497             909              

Total Operating Revenues 167,470        167,470      171,540      4,070          178,025        

Operating Expenses:
Insurance Expense 337,130        355,130      352,815      (15,685)       339,579        
Miscellaneous Expenses 750              750             431             319             420              
Travel and Meetings 150              150             -                 150             -                   

Total Operating Expenses 338,030        356,030      353,246      (15,216)       339,999        

Operating Income (Loss) (170,560)       (188,560)     (181,706)     (11,146)       (161,974)       

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   
Interest Expense -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (170,560)       (188,560)     (181,706)     (11,146)       (161,974)       

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 220,893        220,893      220,893      -                  224,534        
Operating Transfers Out (50,333)        (50,333)       (50,333)       -                  (47,936)        

Net Transfers 170,560        170,560      170,560      -                  176,598        

Net Income (Loss) -$                 (18,000)$     (11,146)       (11,146)$     14,624          

Net Assets, October 1st 233,264      218,640        

Net Assets, September 30th 222,118$    233,264$      

2012

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Internal Service - Insurance Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
89



2012
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2011
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 267,431$ 267,431$ 267,433$ 2$                266,718$      
Miscellaneous -               -               8,997       8,997           -                    

Total Operating Revenues 267,431   267,431   276,430   8,999           266,718        

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 1,300       1,300       1,690       (390)             1,126            
Personnel Expenses 213,826   213,826   216,074   (2,248)          181,334        
Depreciation and Amortization -               -               13,416     (13,416)        12,505          
Utilities 8,800       8,800       5,288       3,512           5,958            
Supplies 23,755     23,755     19,687     4,068           19,145          
Repairs and Maintenance 5,000       5,000       3,957       1,043           5,028            
Vehicle Expense 1,000       1,000       660          340              702               
Small Equipment 13,000     13,000     11,346     1,654           6,715            
Studies and Prljects -               -               -               -                   -                    
Miscellaneous Expenses 750          750          -               750              1,050            
Telephone -               -               -               -                   -                    

Total Operating Expenses 267,431   267,431   272,118   (4,687)          233,563        

Operating Income (Loss) -               -               4,312       4,312           33,155          

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -               -               -               -                   -                    
Interest Expense -               -               -               -                   -                    

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp -               -               -               -                   -                    

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -               -               4,312       4,312           33,155          

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -               -               -               -                   -                    
Operating Transfers Out -               -               -               -                   39,921          

Net Transfers -               -               -               -                   39,921          

Net Income (Loss) -$             -$             4,312       4,312$         73,076          

Net Assets, October 1st 736,552   663,476        

Net Assets, September 30th 740,864$ 736,552$      

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Internal Service - Shop Revolving Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

See accountants' report.
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CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor's 

Number Number Expenditures

Historical Society
Historic Preservation Fund Grants 15.904 5,826$                   

Department of Transportation
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 AL-2010-01-00-00 3,899                     
Alcohol Traffic Safety & Drunk Driving Prevention 20.601 K8-2011-01-00-00 2,828                     

Department of Justice
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 3,965                     
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 5,000                     
Internet Crimes Against Children 16.800 77,928                   

Department of Homeland Security
Law Enforcement Officer Reimbursement Program 97.090 63,490                   

Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 443,548                 

Institute of Museum and Library Services
National Leadership Grants 45.312 35,300                   

Federal Highway Administration
CSI Safety Initiative 20.205 77,491                   

Environmental Protection Agency
Congressionally Mandated Projects 66.202 81,462                   

Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Improvement Program-Wildlife Hazard 20.106 AIP-3-16-0036-029 25,590                   
Airport Improvement Program-SRE Building 20.106 AIP-3-16-0036-032 108,780                 
Airport Improvement Program-Master Plan 20.106 AIP-3-16-0036-031 68,230                   

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,003,337$            

The City of Twin Falls received equipment in the amount of $59,864 from Department of Homeland Security.

Federal Grantor/
Pass Through Grantor/

Program Title
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CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year ended September 30, 2012

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal Control over financial reporting:

Material Weakness(es) identified? Yes No X

Reportable Condition(s) identified that are not
  considered to be a Material Weakness? Yes No X

Non-Compliance material to financial statements noted? Yes No X

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

Material Weakness(es) identified? Yes No X

Reportable Condition(s) identified that are not
  considered to be a Material Weakness? Yes No X

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
  major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
  reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of 
  Circular A-133? Yes No X

Identification of major programs

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Community Development Block Grant 14.228

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
  and Type B programs

Auditee Qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

$300,000

Unqualified

Unqualified

CFDA Number
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

To the City Council 
Twin Falls, ID 83301 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho, as of and for the year ended September 
30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated February 5, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. 
 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we 
considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City’s internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, City 
Council, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
MAHLKE HUNSAKER & Co., PLLC 
February 5, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR 

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

 
City Council 
City of Twin Falls, Idaho 
 
Compliance 
We have audited the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s major federal programs for the year ended September 
30, 2012.  The City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Compliance 
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal 
programs is the responsibility of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s compliance based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America;  the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB 
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s 
compliance with those requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the City of Twin Falls, Idaho complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended September 30, 2012.   
 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal 
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular 
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion of the effectiveness of the City’s internal control 
over compliance.  
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Report on Major Program Compliance 
Page 2 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, City 
Council, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
MAHLKE HUNSAKER & Co., PLLC 
February 5, 2013 
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